Oadby & Wigston Law & Democracy

\\ é’ BOROUGH COUNCIL Democratic Services
2 S’HONMQE_‘\'\@E
TO COUNCILLOR:
N Alam M L Darr J Kaufman

L A Bentley R F Eaton Mrs L Kaufman

G A Boulter Mrs L Eaton JP K J Loydall JP

J W Boyce D A Gamble (Chair) D W Loydall

Mrs L M Broadley Miss P V Joshi Dr I K Ridley (Vice-Chair)

Dear Sir or Madam

I hereby SUMMON you to attend a meeting of the POLICY, FINANCE AND DEVELOPMENT
COMMITTEE to be held at the COUNCIL OFFICES, STATION ROAD, WIGSTON on TUESDAY,
26 NOVEMBER 2019 at 7.00 PM for the transaction of the business set out in the Agenda below.

Yours faithfully

Council Offices e;r\ng, E e .

Wigston

18 November 2019
Mrs Anne E Court

Chief Executive

ITEM NO. AGENDA PAGE NO'S

1. Apologies for Absence

To receive apologies for absence from Members to determine the quorum of the
meeting in accordance with Rule 7 of Part 4 of the Constitution.

2. Appointment of Substitutes

To appoint substitute Members in accordance with Rule 26 of Part 4 of the
Constitution and the Substitution Procedure Rules.

3. Declarations of Interest

Members are reminded that any declaration of interest should be made having
regard to the Members’ Code of Conduct. In particular, Members must make
clear the nature of the interest and whether it is 'pecuniary' or ‘non-pecuniary'.

4. Minutes of the Previous Meeting 1-3

To read, confirm and sign the minutes of the previous meeting in accordance
with Rule 19 of Part 4 of the Constitution.

5. Action List Arising from the Previous Meeting 4

To read, confirm and note the Action List arising from the previous meeting.

Customer Service Centre: 40 Bell Street, Wigston, Leicestershire LE18 1AD

£
t,;: }'NVESTORS Accredited  Council Offices: Station Road, Wigston, Leicestershire LE18 2DR

s ¢ IN PEOPLE Tel: (0116) 288 8961 Fax: (0116) 288 7828

oadby-wigston.gov.uk o OadbyWigstonBC o Oadby_Wigston



10.

11.

12.

13.

Policy, Finance and Development
Committee
Tuesday, 26 November 2019

Petitions and Deputations

To receive any Petitions and, or, Deputations in accordance with Rule(s) 11 and
12 of Part 4 of the Constitution and the Petitions Procedure Rules respectively.

Review of Scale of Fees & Charges (2020/21)

Report of the Financial Services Manager

Collection and Write-Off of Miscellaneous Debtors (Q2 2019/20)
Report of the Financial Services Manager

Third Sector and Community Support Funding Requests (Q2 2019/20)
Report of the Head of Community and Wellbeing

Section 106 Open Space, Sport and Recreation Contributions
(June - November 2019)

Report of the Planning Policy Officer

Environment Strategy and Action Plan (November 2019)
Report of the Head of the Built Environment

Volunteering Vision, Aims and Policy (2019-2024)

Report of the Marketing & Insight Manager

Standards & Ethical Indicators (Q2 2019/20)

Report of the Head of Law & Democracy / Monitoring Officer

36 - 39

40-42

43 -50

51-70

71-80

81-90

For more information, please contact:

Democratic Services
Oadby and Wigston Borough Council

Council Offices

Station Road, Wigston

Leicestershire
LE18 2DR

t: (0116) 257 2775
e: democratic.services@oadby-wigston.gov.uk

You can access all available public meeting documents
and audio recordings electronically via:

il

The Council’s website at  Your iPad, Android ‘SoundCloud’ at

oadby-wigston.gov.uk or Blackberry tablet soundcloud.com or
under ‘Meeting Dates,  device with the free mobile device with the
Agendas & Minutes’ ‘modern.gov’ app. free ‘SoundCloud’ app.

Printed and published by Democratic Services,
Oadby and Wigston Borough Council, Council Offices,
Station Road, Wigston, Leicestershire, LE18 2DR


https://moderngov.oadby-wigston.gov.uk/ieDocHome.aspx?bcr=1
https://moderngov.oadby-wigston.gov.uk/ieDocHome.aspx?bcr=1
https://moderngov.oadby-wigston.gov.uk/ieDocHome.aspx?bcr=1
https://itunes.apple.com/gb/app/mod.gov/id508417355?mt=8
https://play.google.com/store/apps/details?id=uk.co.moderngov.modgov&hl=en
https://appworld.blackberry.com/webstore/content/26429152/?lang=en&countrycode=GB
https://soundcloud.com/oadbywigstonbc
https://itunes.apple.com/gb/app/soundcloud-music-audio/id336353151?mt=8
https://itunes.apple.com/gb/app/soundcloud-music-audio/id336353151?mt=8

Agenda Iltem 4

MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE POLICY, FINANCE AND DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE
HELD AT THE COUNCIL OFFICES, STATION ROAD, WIGSTON ON TUESDAY, 10
SEPTEMBER 2019 COMMENCING AT 7.00 PM

PRESENT

D A Gamble Chair
Dr I K Ridley Vice-Chair

COUNCILLORS

N Alam

L A Bentley

J W Boyce

M L Darr

R F Eaton

Mrs L Eaton JP
F S Ghattoraya
J Kaufman
Mrs L Kaufman
K J Loydall JP
D W Loydall

OFFICERS IN ATTENDANCE

S J Ball Trainee Solicitor
D M Gill Head of Law & Democracy / Monitoring Officer
C Raymakers Head of Finance, Revenues and Benefits

23. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

An apology for absence was received from Councillors G A Boulter, Mrs L M Boradley and
Miss P V Joshi.

24, APPOINTMENT OF SUBSTITUTES

Councillor F S Ghattoraya substituted for Councillor Miss P V Joshi.

25, DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

None.

26. MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING

By affirmation of the meeting, it was
UNANIMOUSLY RESOLVED THAT:

The minutes of the previous meeting held on 23 July 2019 be taken as read,
confirmed and signed.

27. ACTION LIST ARISING FROM THE PREVIOUS MEETING

By affirmation of the meeting, it was

Policy, Finance and Development Committee Chair’s

Tuesday, 10 September 2019 Initials
~Page 1~



UNANIMOUSLY RESOLVED THAT:

The Action List arising from the previous meeting held on 23 July 2019 be
noted.

28. PETITIONS AND DEPUTATIONS
None.

29, TREASURY MANAGEMENT ANNUAL REPORT (2018/19)

The Committee gave consideration to the report and appendices (as set out on pages 5 -
18 of the agenda reports pack) which asked it to note the performance and activities of
the authority’s treasury management function for the financial year 2018/19.

By affirmation of the meeting, it was

UNANIMOUSLY RESOLVED THAT:

The contents of the report and appendices be noted.

30. FINANCIAL OUTTURN REPORT (Q1 2019/20)

The Committee gave consideration to the report and appendix (as set out on pages 19 -

25 of the agenda reports pack) which asked it to note overall authority’s position for the

financial year 2019/20 at the end of the first quarter for both revenue

and capital expenditure and approve additional capital expenditure for 2019/20.

It was moved by Councillor J W Boyce, seconded by Councillor K J Loydall and

UNANIMOUSLY RESOLVED THAT:

(i) The contents of the report and appendix be noted; and

(ii) The additional capital expenditure (as set out at paragraph 3 of the report)
be approved, subject to a full report and business plan being presented to
the next meeting of the Committee; and

(iii) The allocation of the additional capital expenditure (as approved at (ii)
above) be delegated to the Chief Executive and Chief Finance Officer /
Section 151 Officer following consultation with the Chair.

31. COLLECTION AND WRITE-OFF OF MISCELLANEOUS DEBTORS (Q1 2019/20
The Committee gave consideration to the report (as set out on pages 26 - 29 of the
agenda reports pack) which asked it to note levels of outstanding debt owed to the
authority at the end of quarter one of 2019/20.

By affirmation of the meeting, it was
UNANIMOUSLY RESOLVED THAT:
The contents of the report be noted.

32. THIRD SECTOR AND COMMUNITY SUPPORT FUNDING REQUESTS (Q1 2019/20)
The Committee gave consideration to the report (as set out on pages 30 - 31 of the

Policy, Finance and Development Committee Chair’s

Tuesday, 10 September 2019 Initials

~Page 2 ~



agenda reports pack) which asked it to note the range of funding applications received

during the July 2019 cycle of Residents’ Forums and to seek Members’ approval to award

the funding grants requested.

It was moved by Councillor L A Bentley, seconded by Councillor J W Boyce and

UNANIMOUSLY RESOLVED THAT:

(i) The contents of the report be noted; and

(ii) The funding for the list of projects (as set out at paragraph 2.2 of the
report) be approved.

33. STANDARDS & ETHICAL INDICATORS (Q1 2019/20
The Committee gave consideration to the report and appendix (as set out on pages 32 -
42 of the agenda reports pack) which asked it to note the figures for local determination of
complaints and the ethical indicators for quarter one of 2019/20.
By affirmation of the meeting, it was

UNANIMOUSLY RESOLVED THAT:

The contents of the report and appendix be noted.

THE MEETING CLOSED AT 7.55 PM

&5

Chair

Tuesday, 26 November 2019

Printed and published by Democratic Services, Oadby and Wigston Borough Council,
Council Offices, Station Road, Wigston, Leicestershire, LE18 2DR

Policy, Finance and Development Committee Chair’s

Tuesday, 10 September 2019 Initials
~ Page 3 ~



Agenda Iltem 5

POLICY, FINANCE AND DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE

ACTION LIST

Arising from the Meeting held on Tuesday, 10 September 2019

narrative if an indicator has been
outstanding for two quarters.

Due by Ongoing

No Minute Ref. / *Action Details / Rg:f?g:rsng)lle Action
) Item of Business Action Due Date s Status
Initials
1. 30. - Financial A full report and business plan be ChRa Verbal
Outturn Report (Q1 presented to the next meeting of AdTh Update
2019/20) the Committee regarding the
purchase of properties for
additional Council housing.
Due by Nov-19
2. 33. - Standards & That all future quarterly indica- DaGi Report
Ethical Indicators (Q1 | tors reports include additional Update
2019/20) rows detailing outstanding and (Agenda
cumulative totals, together with Item 13)

* | All actions listed are those which are informally raised by Members during the course of debate
upon a given item of business which do not form part of - but may be additional, incidental or
ancillary to - any motion(s) carried. These actions are for the attention of the responsible Officer(s).

Policy, Finance and Development Committee

Tuesday, 10 September 2019

~ Page 4 ~

Chair’s
Initials




Agenda Item 7

Policy, Finance and Tuesdav, 26
), Development Novembe¥-’2019 Matter for Decision
%;ﬁgﬁ/ :;%f*/ Committee
Report Title: Review of Scale of Fees & Charges (2020/21)
Report Author(s): Chris Raymakers (Financial Services Manager)
Purpose of Report: This report is to allow Members to consider, review and approve the
proposed scale of fees and charges for the financial year 2020/21 for
the Council.
Report Summary: Charges consist of both those set by statute and those set by this

Council. Charges set by Council that are increased in line with inflation
will be uplifted by the Consumer Price Index at September 2019 which
was 1.7%.

Recommendation(s):

A. That members approve the proposed Scale of Fees and
Charges for 2020/21 (as set out in Appendix 1); and

B. That delegated authority be given to the Chief Financial
Officer to allow flexibility to charging charges to
encourage a more commercial approach to maximising
income.

Senior Leadership,
Head of Service,
Manager, Officer and
Other Contact(s):

Clive Mason (Chief Financial Officer)
(0116) 257 2736
clive.mason@oadby-wigston.gov.uk

Chris Raymakers (Financial Services Manager)
(0116) 257 2891
chris.raymakers@oadby-wigston.gov.uk

Corporate Objectives:

Building, Protecting and Empowering Communities (CO1)
Growing the Borough Economically (CO2)
Providing Excellent Services (CO3)

Vision and Values:

Customer Focus (V5)

Report Implications:-

Legal:

There are no implications arising from this report.

Financial:

It is important for the Council to maximise its income from fees and
charges.

Corporate Risk
Management:

Decreasing Financial Resources / Increasing Financial Pressures (CR1)
Regulatory Governance (CR6)
Reputation Damage (CR4)

Equalities and Equalities
Assessment (EA):

There are no implications arising from this report.
EA not applicable.

Human Rights:

There are no implications arising from this report.

Health and Safety:

There are no implications arising from this report.

~Page 5~



mailto:clive.mason@oadby-wigston.gov.uk
mailto:chris.raymakers@oadby-wigston.gov.uk

Statutory Officers’ Comments:-

Head of Paid Service: The report is satisfactory.
Chief Finance Officer: The report is satisfactory.
Monitoring Officer: The report is satisfactory.
Consultees: Heads of Service
Background Papers: Fees and Charges Working Papers
Appendices: 1. Scale of Fees & Charges (2020/21)
1. Information
1.1  The Council charges for a number of its services that are provided to the public. All fees and
charges are reviewed on an annual basis as part of the budget setting process.
1.2 When setting fees and charges, the following factors are taken into consideration:
e Statutory obligations;
e Policies and objectives of the Council;
¢ Inflation and relevant indices;
e Local market research and competition (where relevant);
e The impact of price changes on activity level or demand;
e Changes in taxation;
e Budget position and any associated gap; and
e The cost of providing the service
1.3  As at September 2019 the Consumer Price Index, which is a measure of inflation, stood at
1.7%. This has been used as a guide for Heads of Service when considering any increases
for 2020/21.
1.4  The fees and charges the Council sets for its services are an important income stream. It is
therefore vital that they are set at the appropriate level while giving value for money to its
customers. If these two facets of the charging process are achieved they will help mitigate
the risks to the Council identified above.
2 Information By Service
2.1 The majority of services have increased their fees and charges by the Inflation rate above,
rounding the amount in order to provide a simple, easy to understand charge. Where
services have deviated from this an explanation is detailed below. If a charge is set by
statute this is indicated as part of Appendix 1

2.2 Licensing

Taxi Licences have been held at the same price for 2020/21. This will allow a new
licensing policy to be introduced following any appropriate consultation required. Overall
the increase in charge would yield around £3,000

~ Page 6 ~




2.3

2.4

2.5

2.6

Cemeteries

The cost of an Exhumation has been adjusted in order for it to match the cost of an
internment. This has resulted in the prices at 6.6 (g) and (f) being reduced. Overall the
increase in prices should yield around £2,500

Leisure Centres

The costs of entry into the Leisure Centres are proposed to increase by inflation as per the
contract with Sports and Leisure Management. The charges will come into force from the 1
January which is the anniversary of the start of the contract.

Allotments

Previously allotments have been priced per 100 square yards, it is proposed that pricing is
by each square yard to take into account the varying sizes of the plots.

Garden Waste Service

The charging for the garden waste service was introduced for the financial year 2018/19
and has been held at £35 for the first two years and the service has built a customer base
of around 9,300 households. Charging in other Leicestershire Districts is currently as
follows.

Council Charge
Melton £64
Leicester City £51
Charnwood £45
Harborough £40
Blaby £36
Rutland £35
Hinckley and £24
Bosworth

It is proposed that the charge for 2020/21 is increased to £40 which will still leave the
Council charging at no more than the average price for authorities within the County, not
withstanding any intended price increases by our neighbouring authorities. It is proposed
that the charge for additional bins remains unchanged this year. Overall the increase should
yield around £45,000 each year.

~Page 7 ~



ajel |40 JusUND By} AQ paseasou| 0502 0002 L-ady-| 9076 10L0% sdnousb |eo07 pue sjuapisay (1
ales |gD WaLng 8y Ag paseasou) 009 00'GY L1-4dy-L 9026 1010V .. U|d |B207 pareg uoisbipy pue Agpeg| (e)
Bles |dD uaund ay) Aq pasealou| NV1d TvO01 NOLSOIM ANV ASAVO| L'}
). |40 1uauNd 8y} Ag pasealdu|
ajel |40 uauno ayy Aq pasealdu| 002kl 00°0rL 6L-4dv-| lea) tad #GE6 LO00Y SNOILYDIlddV ONINNYId TV 40 1SIT ATHI3IM| 9°L
B)EJ |40 uBLIND 8Y) Aq paseslou|
8Jel |47 JusLnd ay) Aq pasealou| 00'9€E 00°DEE 6L-1dy-| Aunbu3j sadq 968 LO0OY JUNODSIP %EE BAIB0aJ |IM SuoISuUad JEM pUB SJijauaq Pajsa) SUBaLW U asoy |
ael [dD JuaLND 3yl Aq paseainu) 00'E0S 00°56Y BL-ddy-L Aunbu3 Jad 69€6 LO0OY S1NIVIdWOD 3903H HOIH| §'}
ajel |40 uewuna ey} Aq pasealou)
ajel |40 waung 8y Aq pasealou) ooszyl |0000FL | 6L-1dv- Ainbu3 Jag GBEB LOOOY | | saljalu a1enbs [BUONIPPE 0001 JAO
ajel |40 weuno ay) Aq pesealiou) 00ZLL 00°00L gL-1dy-| | Aunbuguad S6E6 L000F | | sanaw asenbs |BUONIPPE BEE PUB QOGS Usamiag
ajel |40 uauna ey} Aq pesesiou| 00°552 00052 Bl-idy-| Aunbu3 Jad SBE6 LOOOY | | sajjaw asenbs QG 0 dn aseds 100y [BUONIPPY
ajel |40 Waund ay} Aq paseasou) 00°¥9L 00°'1L91 6l-idy-L | Amnbuzisad | G686 LO0OOY | | 0]8 SJUSLISSIPBAPE / SWO3|8) [ adeds 100y [BUOIPPE ON / @S jo abuey)
ajeJ |40 BN 8y} Aq pasesaiou| 00°#9L 00191 6l-idy-L Annbu3z aag S6E6 LOOOY | | Alinbua sasiwaud Jo asn [npme
gje) |¢7) uaLnd ay) Aq paseasau| : (pauinbay s1 uoissiwad y Buipnjour) sanbug JaylQ / (BIJBWWOY| (2)
ajel |40 Juaund sy} Aq pasealou| oo'szrl  |00°00FL | 61-1dy-L Ainbu3z Jag SBEG LO0OY | | sBuijjamp mau alow 10 G
8lel |dD uaund ay) Ag pasealou| 00ZhL 00004 GL-ady-L Anbu3z sag G6€6 1000 | | sBulljamp mau 6p-0L
el |40 weauna ayj Aq pesesou| 00'¥S2 00'0s2 BL-10y-1 Ainbugz led GREG LOOOF | | sBuljamp mau g-t
)8l |40 Juaund au Aq pasealou| 00’9l 00°L9L BL-1dy-1 Ainbu3z lag G6E6 LO00Y | 1 sBuyamp mau g-|
BlB! |40 Juawnd ayl Aq paseaisu) (paunbay st uoissiwad p Buipnjour) ssuinbu3 Jiun [enuapisay man| (q)
8jBl |42 JUBLIND 8} Aq pasealou| 0586 00'L6 6L-Jdy-1 Ainbuz lad G6E6 L000F | | (jesodoJd dn - mojjo 2uo snjd ‘esuodsal ua)UM e 'BUNaaLL JO JISIA 8IS BUO SBPN|JUl) 891AIRS PO
alel |40 JuaunD 8y} Ag pasealou) 0005 00'6Y gl-dy-, | Ainbugiad SBE6 LO00F | | (sdn MOJI0) OU LM JUSLLISSBSSE PESEq YSap) adjaIes oiseg
(219 saunbua buisOM BLIOL|/gIaY
paddoip/painbal s| uoissiusad Ji ‘saunbus a8} 0) Suom Buipnpouy) sauinbu3 |esodoid Jeployasnoy (e)
SIDHYHI NOLLYIITddV Jud| ¥'L
‘(1sadeayd ay) siJaAsyoiym) ajes Adoo Jaded juajeainba auy) Jo (Joasauyy
abueyd oN 00'Se 0062 Li-ady-L Ainbuz Jayg wed s0) Inoy Jad gz3 jo abieys e snid pefieys aq jim 01 3 JO 28 10y UORIBJ0I BIE(Q B UBY) 'sanss!
uonosioud elep Aue JNoulm sisqesm auy) o} paysignd aq Jouued pue Aj|eiuosos)s piay st UoHEULIOJUI | 1
N1ddng sjualnNoog [e'e)
- ! (1sadeayo sy s Janayoiym) ajes Adoo )
5 3 A, Jaded yuaeainba auy Jo (Joaiay) wed Jo) anoy 1ad Gz3 e pabiseyo aq |im s18ays G| Jo sS8Ixa ul sjsanbay ()]
eBueyd oN 00'sz oo'sz Lidy-y Aunbu3 sog womw 1000¥ v ‘apew abieyo ou aq M aiay) 'si@ays Gl o E“_E_xm“; e 0} joafgns ‘(sanssi ©
- uonoajosd Bjep AUB JNoyuIM) B)isgam auy} o} paysiqnd ag Ued pue A|E21U0LD3[8 P|aY SI LOHBLLIOJUI BIBYM , o
l
abueyd oN| 058 0se Li-ady-| yoed 9026 LOODY jeays sad Qy| (6)
abueyg oN 0s'8 058 L1-1dv-| yoe3 9026 L000Y 1eays sad Ly| )
abueyn oN 0s'8 0s's L-idy-) yoes 902Z6 LO00Y 188ys Jad az1s Zy| (3)
abueyn oN 002 002 ¢1-ady-| yoe3 90Z6 LO00E Joays Jad (inojoo) azis Y| (p)
abuey) oN SL°0 SL'0 gl-ady-| yoeg 90Z6 L000Y J1a8ys sad (aym pue yoelq) 821s gy| (2)
abueyn oN 00' L 00} €l-1dy-| uoe3 9026 000y LJeays Jad (1nojoo) az1s v | (a)
abueyd oN joi0 (o] 0] £l-ady-| yoe3 9026 1000V L48ays Jad (apym pue yoe|q) 9z1s py| (e)
‘saidoo pajsanbal
1_ ayy apiacsd 0} spew |im aBIeYD ou usL 0" E3 PELIxXa jou saop (Mojaq sales ay) je) abieya |ejol au §|
X «~SNOISIDFA ' SINIWNDOA ‘SNY1d 40 AdOD| €1
u — abueyg oN 0008 0008 Li-dy-) inoH Jad 95€6 L000Y (00'7€3 abseyo uip) Jnoy Jed 0o veF 1e pableys saunbua jeiswwod| (q)
© abueyp oN 000 00°0% L1-1dy-L INoH Jad 95E6 LO0OY (00213 261242 L) JBLWdOBASP [BIAIBWILD Sjdwis pue Jsaweq| (e)
n HOYVY3S SAH0I3d ONINNVd ANY ONIQTING| 2}
e x SBUOYINY |ED07 PUB JUSWWIAA0S) [BAUAD AQ 1as afuey) Aioimeig| (e)
D S334 TOYLNOD ONIGTING ANV ONINNYId| L'}
SIDYVHI NOWWOO - ONINNYTd B TOHLNOD ONIGTINgG |
spuawiwooal ay) Buipsebas uoneuedx.
A BBIELD JO [9A3] POP 3 Buipa neuedx| ﬁ vm-wgw nm.ME« — 000 |,
2 18V 1IN INAODDV % FOUVHDI 40 NOILDI¥IS3a
z 40 31va g

T apusdaY

TOUINOD INIWHOTIAIA




1210202 10} S99y 0Z/61L0Z 000k 000 L1-dy-| yoe3 L0Z6 LO0LE Pi09aJ suoenfiay Buiping jo sousisixa-uou Jo uonewayue uapEm| (4)
S} UIEJa) 0} JUSLIOW 8L} 10} USim am SISEq SIY} UQ "pajuaiuajdus
$89) AU} SABY 0} IDUN0D Yoes Je usye} aq (m sdals jxsu ay) e Ag
paaibe j pue 107 1equasop Yir| uo Bunsaw preoq ayj 1e pajussaid
aq |Im siy L “diysisuped ay) ul SIounos G ay) ssouoe saay ubie|
o} Bupjoo| Apuawno s1 diysiauped oauon Buping alysiesana ay]
'L2/0202 10§ s88) 0Z/61.02 0009 0009 Li-ady-| yoeg 1026 Loote suonenBay Suiping wou 1dwaxs s)om jo uonewlyuod usRUA| (e)
8U) ulejas O] JUSWOoW BU) 10} YSiM am Siseq S1y) uQ “pajuswsdul :
$93) 3y} SABY 0} |IDUNOD YIes e Uaxe} aq |Im SAa)s 1xaU 3y} B Ag
pesibe § pue §10z 12qWSACN Uiy | uo Bunsaw pieog ay) e pajussaid
2q (Im sy | “diysiaupied ay} ut sjIounod G 8L ssouoe sas) ubie
0} Bupjoo; Apua.Lng si diysisuped joauog Buiping anysisisasiaT sy |
3LVOIHILHID NOILITdWNOD| 6L
T0¥.LNOD ONIaTINE
%" A0 UDISBIM-AQDEO MAM
8b.eyd 4O 934} S)ISIM S|I2UNOY B} UO J|QEJIEAE AIE SjUAWNDI0( ,,
811 |dD WaunD auy) Aq pasealou| 0602 0002 Ll-idy-| MaiAy aoedg uadQ [enuuy| (A)
81l |dD uauno syj Ag pasealou| 0502 00702 LL-ldy-) ABsjens uonejuawsaidw) Buisnoy| (n)
8el |dD uauns ay) Aq pasealou| 0502 0002 Li-1dy-| dey saiog padopy| (3)
ajed |dD Waund ay) Aq paseauou| 00'9¢ 00'S€E Li-ady-| Apmg pue piyumolg B ssiS wawAodw| (s)
8jBl |40 WBLND 8y) Aq peseasu) 00'9€ 00'SE LL-ady-1 suanedyduw| uonepodsuel | pue skemybiy jo Juswssassy| (1)
8Bl | 4D juauna syl Ag pesesiou) 00°9€ 00°GE 8l-1dy-{ uawssassy Ajjiqein ueld ajoym| (b) l
8jei |4 Juaiund 8y} Aq pasealou| 0098 005 LL=ady-| juswssassy Aljiqeip Buisnoy siqepioyy| (d) ol
ajel |dD juauno sy Aq pasesiou) 00'9€ 00'se L}-idy-| - Apmg saniioe [euonesioay g Aeid| (o) a
8jel |40 yuauno ayy Aq pasealou) 00°9¢ 00°SE Li-ady-| ~JUBWSSassy spaan diysiom jo ssoe|d R ApmiS Anunwiwo) yie4| (u) P
3jel |dD JUaLNa au Aq pasealnu 00°9¢ 0o'se Li-ady-) ~APMS j1ejay | (W) q
8jel |40 JuBLnI auy Ag pasealsu| 00°9¢ 00's€e LL-idy-| + YNOIHAUBWSSasSY Ayigejeny pueT Buisnoy aibisiens| (|) o
ajel |43 wauna ay Aq pasesssu| 000k 000} Li-ady-y | +,2WBYDS Juawdejaaa( eso| () l
8iel |40 usuno ay} Aq peseasau) 00°9¢ 00'SE LL-ady-L | Absjeng uonemssuod aunjen| ([)
8iel |dD 1N 81 Ag paseasou 0502 0002 Li-1dy- 3 + Woday Buuoyuop jenuuy| (1)
8jel |40 JuBLND 8L Aq pasealou| 0G5'Gl 006Gl Li-idy-y « UBWUBAIOAU| AYUNWIWOY Jo awsielg | (y)
8jel |40 juelind a8y Aq paseslou| 00'9¢ 00'6€ L1-ady-|, ~APNIS sasiwaig pue pue Juswhoidw 3 ugsBipy pue Agpeq (6)
3Bl |40 JuaLnd ay) Aq pasealoy) 00°9¢ 00'se L}-ady-| (Ao g9 uo ajqepeay ) upny Alisionpoig pue AsaIng JelgeH | aseyd uasbip g Agpeo| ()
00'9¢ 00°GE Ll-idy-| ABajens yuswabeueyy abpap usaig uoisbipy 3 Aqpeg| ()
8.l |49 usLnd 8y} Aq paseaisu| 00°9¢ 00'GE LL-dy-| Wawssassy Jajoeiey) adeospue| (p)
8jeJ | 4O uauna auy Aq pasesiou| 0802 0002 Li-idy-L ; «» (Alenuuy paysyand) Apmg Auiqepeny pue uawhodws)| (o)
el |gD Jusund auyl Aq paseasoul 0502 0002 LL-ady-| | +s UOHEYNSUOD JO SJUBWAIE)S / Juswnoog Buluueld Alejuswaiddng s asueping Buiuue|y Keyuawsiddng| (q)
ajel |0 usun el Aq pasealou| 0502 0002 LL-ddy-L - (AlENuUY paysigng) Juswalels Algeesy pueT |eljuapisay| (e)
3jel |dD juauna ay) Aq pasesaiou) X SINIWND0A ¥3HLO| 8'}
8jBl |40 Jusuna au} Aq paseaioy| 7 R
ajel |40 Wauno auyy Aq paseaiou) 0502 0002 gL-dy-| 9026 LOLOY (dnoub jeoo) Jo wWspisal) (d( Ueld [2207] map
BB |40 JUBLIND 8Y) AQ pasealou| 00°9¢ 00'GH gL-1dy-| 9026 LOLOV (dnoub [eao) Jo Juapisas uou) gdq ueld 200 map
8jel | ¢ aLno 8yl Aq pesesiou) 0502 0002 gL-idy-1 9026 1010V (dnoub |eoo| 1o apisal) QdQ ueld [e20T peaes
Ble! |40 JUBLIND 8y} Aq pasealou| 00'9¢ 00'Sk gL-ady-L 90Z6 LOLOY (dnou6 [e00] 10 Juapisas uou) gdQ Ueld (207 pareg
218l | g0 Jusund ayl Aq pasealou| 050z 000z glL-1dy-1 90Z6 L0L0Y (dnost |eoy 10 Juapisal) OdQ UBld UDNOY Baly S3UaD) UM
BBl |40 Juauno au) Ag pasealou| 009 00'St gl-1dy-| 9026 LOLOY (dnoif [eoo] Jo Juspisal uou) 04 UBld UONIY Baly SaUar) umo |
8jel |40 juauno sy Aq pasealou| 0502 0002 gL-idy-| 9026 LOLOY (dnoub eoo) 10 Juspisas) dq ABelens aion
3Bl |47 JuaLno sy} Aq pasealou| 00 St 00'St g1-1dy-1 2026 ro_.or (dnoib [eoo] Jo juapisas uou) qdg Absjeng aion
8By JO [9A8| papuawILIodal B} BuIpJeba) uopeLe|dx. by
U3 JO [9A8] pep 43 butps neuejdxy) W _&.chm nﬂ.Mvoﬂ JONYHI 3009 &
E 18¥1 1NN iNnodav | < 39UVHI 40 NOILINOS3A
< 40 31va 19

TO¥LINCD INIFWDOTIAI0



'1.2/0202 10} 588} 0Z/610T

9} UIEJ2) 0] JUSLIDW By} J0j YSIM M SISEQ SIL} UQ “pajuaLua|dul

$9a} 8U) SABL| 0} fIUN0D YOBS B UaXE} 89 (M sda)s Jxeu sy jje Aq
paasbe J| pue 10z J2QWaAON Uiy L uo Bunesaw pieoq ay) je pajuesaid
aq | iy ‘diysisuped sy u) SIounod § sy sscioe sagy ubie

o) Bunjoo) Ajuanna st diysiauped jonuo?) buiping eaiysiasadie eyl
"1.2/0202 10} $88) 02/6102

aU) UIEJa) 0} JUSLLOLI BU} JO) USIM aM SISEQ SIY) UQ “pajuawe|dul

§88] 9y} 8ARY 0} [IDUNDI YJES JB udXe) 84 |[im sdejs xau ayj e Agq
paaibe Ji pue §10z JOQUIBAON Yip| Uo Bunsaul pieoq suj je pajuesad
aq jm siy | “diysseupied sy} u) SIOUN0D G 8y} SS0.0E 88 ubie

o) Bumoo) Apuawuno s diysuauped jonuoy Buippng anysiejsasie sy L
'LZ/020T 104 598} 0Z/61L02

8L UIRIS) 0] JUBLOL BU) JO) USIM 3M SISBq SIL UQ “pajuswua|dul

588 BU) BABY O} IDUN0Y Yors 1B UsXe] aq [m sdajs xau ay) e Ag
paaibe ji pue §1.0Z J29WeAoN Uip| uo Buneaw pieoq sy ye pajussaid
aq m sy diysieupied ay) uj §|10UNCO G 8y} ssoioe sas) ubile

0} Buoo Ajuauna si diysseuped joauo) Buiping a4ysiosadlen syl
'12/0202 104 888} 0Z/61 02|

AU UIEI) 0} JUSLLIOW DU} JOJ USIM 9M SISBQ SIY} UQ PajuaLua|dil

598} 8Y) 9ARY O IIUNOD LIea Je UBXE) Bq jim sdals pxeu ayj e Aq
paasbe Ji pue §10Z J2quWanon Uiyl uo Buneaw pieoq i) e pajussaid
aq iw siy L "diysiauped 8y ul SIOUN0 G A} SSOIDB S89) ubie

0) Bunjoo| Ajuawuna s diysiauped joauon Buiping aaysieysesla syl
“LZ/0Z0Z 104 883} 0Z/61 02

alj) UIE)) O} JUBLLIOLL BY} JOj YS 9M SISEQ SILj UQ "pajuawaidu

$88) BU} BARY 0] |I2UNOT YDBA JE USXE) 39 ||im Sda)s Jxau au jje Ag
paaibe § pue g0z J9qWeAoN Uiyl uo Bunasw pieoq sy je pajuasaid
aq [im siyL “diysieuped au) Ul SIOUNoD G Ay} ssosoe sagy ubile

o Bunjoo| Ajuauns st diysiauped [oQuo) Buiping alysiesae ay L
'12/0202 10} s08) 0Z/6102

B} UIEISJ O} JUSLLOL 84} JO) YSIM Bm SISB] S} UQ “pajuaLadul

Sa8) Oy} 9ABY 0} |I9UNOD YoES 1B UXE)} 8 |Iw sdajs pxeu sy e Ag
paaibe | pue g0z JOqUWBAON Wip| uo Buneaw pieoq au) je pajussaid
aq | siy L diysieuped ay) Ul S15UNCA G 8y ssoioe sy ubile

0} Bupjoo) Auauna si diysiauped joquo) Buipiing aaysisisadie ay |

‘L2/020¢ 10j $38) 0Z/6102

aU) UIEIR) O} JUBLIOW 3L} JO) USIM 8M SISE] SIL) U0 paluswWwa|dwl

$83) 8} 9ABY 0] (I3UNOD LYOES JB USXE) 8q |IimM sdas xau s e Aq
paaibe j pue §L0OZ J9qGWaAON UipL uo Bueaw pieoq auy) je pajuasaid
aq |im sy -diysisuped auj uj SjIounoo § 8y SS0I0E S99y ubiye

o} Bupjoo] Ajuanuno s diysiauped [eNuod Bulping eliysie)saola auy ||

'LZ/0Z0Z 40} S99} 0Z/6L0Z

BU} UIBJa) O] JUBLLOLU BU} JOj YSim M SISB] SIL U “pajusiuajdul

$98} BU} SABY O} I9UNOD YB3 1B Ua)e) a4 ||Im sdals 1xau auy |2 Aq
paaibe § pue 6107 J9QWAAON Uiy} uo Bunssw pieoq au) je pajuasaid
aq jm sy diyssauped syl Ul SJIOUNOD G BUY) SSCIJE §83) ubie

o0} Bupjoo] Auauing si diysisuped jonuo) Buippng iysis)sanie] 8y ||

00°0SL

0052

000y

00°0r

00'se

00'008

00'v¥

00°0%

00°0SL

0062

00’0

00°0F

0052

00°008

00'vy

000

GL-1dy-|

Gl-dy-L

GlL-ady-|

G|-idy-|

GL-dy-|

£1-1dy-L

Li-dy-

Li-idy-|

j2a4s J18d

10d Jad

10|d Jad

$S21ppY Jod

ssalppy Jad

JeaA Jad

INOK Jag

yoe3

286 200LZ

286 200LT

28€6 20012

2886 20012

2986 20012

28E6 20012

1026 10012

LOZ6 10042

18sls e jo Buiwen

g Jan0 joid [euonippe yoes Joj Buuaqunp /Buluen

sjoid 6-| jo Buuaquinpy/Buluen

Auadoud Bugsixe jo Buuaqunual/buieusy

s|ie1ap ssa.ppe |Bysod JO UONBULIUOD USHUA

slaguinu pue Saweu 1eass Auadosd mau (e Jo 1517

ONIMIAGNNN B ONINVYN 13341S

NY1d G381dX3 40 A¥3IA0D3Y

paidde suonenBay Buiping Yoium o) 3iom Jo uona|dwod JO UOHBULIYUOD UBIUAA

6)

(a)

2)

—_

q)

(e)

oLt

(2)

~ Page 10 ~

abieya 4o (98] papuawiodas ay) bujprebas uoneuejdxy

]

Ajjeuss;

3
1Z-0z02

3
0Z-6102

JONVHD
18v1
40 31va

LINN

3009
INROIDY
19

VAT

IDUVHDI 40 NOILAI¥OS3A

TOHINOD INTWAOTIAIA




'LZ/0202 104 se.) 0Z/61 02

3y} uIejal 0} JUSLLOW U} 4O} YSIM am SISeq SI uQ "pajuaiuajdu

$38) By} aAeY 0} 12UN0D Yoes 1B UsKey aq |iw Sdajs 1xau ayj e Ag
paaibe Ji pue g0z JEqUIBACN Uiy | uo Bupssw pieoq ay) je pajussaid
2 [Im siy | “diyssauped sy} Ul sjounos g sy ssosoe saey uble

0} Buoo| Agusuno s diysiauped joquog Buiping B1IYSI9NSaaT ay |
1210202 104 sesy 0z/610Z)

8L} UIBla) 0} JUSLUOW SY) JO} YSiM am SISeq SILJ uQ "pajuswadil

$89) BYL 3ABL 0] I2UNOD YIBS JE USYE) 8q [IMm Sdajs xau auy} e Aq
poaibe j) pue 610z JAqWSAON Uip| uo Bunaaw pieoq ayj je pajuasasd
aqg [im s1y | “diysieuped ay) Ul SIOUNOD G 8y} $S0IDE seay ubie,

0} Bunjoo| Ajuawno si diysuauped joquoy Buipyng asysiaysasien ay |
'LE/020Z 10§ 588} 0Z/6102

At} Ui}l 0} JUSWOW SY) 4O} USIM 8m SISBQ S UQ ‘pajuaiuaidul

$89) 8y} 8ABY 0} 12UNOD YIBS JB USXE) 9q ||m sdajs xau au) e Ag
paaibie §i pue §10z JeqUBAON Uiy | uo Bunaaw pieoq au) 1e pajuasaid
aq [ sy | diysauped au) ul S|IDUN0D G By} SSOIDR Saay uble

0} Buioo| Aguauna si diysiauped jonuog) Buiping aliysieysaneT ayy

'LZ/0Z0Z 404 5984 0Z/610Z)

S} UIElal 0} JUBWIOLY BU) 10} YSIM 8M SISE] S} UQ "PajusLLajdiul

$88} ay) aney 0} [1DUN0D Yaes je usye) aq |w sdais Jxau au ||e Aq
peaibe y pue |0z 19qWaAON Ui} uo Bugasw peog ay) e pajuasald
aq [im sty | -diysiauped ayy Ul S{I9UN0D G BUY SSOIIE sa9) ubie

0} Bunjoo] Aguauno si diysisuped joquo) Buiping auysiayssoia ey

'L2/0Z0z 404 5984 0Z/610Z

BU} UIEjal 0} JUSLUOLU BU) 10} USIM am SISBq Siy} UQ “pajuaLuajdul
S93} Sy} 9ABY 0} |IDUNOD YIeD Je UBYNE) aq (Im sdajs xau auj (e Ag
paaibe j pue 610z J9QWSAON Y| uo Bunssw pseoq auy) je payussaid
aq jjim siy | “diyssauiied ay} ul S)19UNoa G 8l SSoI0e 583) ubie

0} Bupjoo) Apuauna si diysiaupey lonuoy Buipiing asysisyseaiet ay
'L210202 104 583} 0Z/61.02

B} UL}l 0} JUSWOW BUJ J0f YSim am SISeq siy) LD *pajuawa|dw
S35} BY) SABY 0} |1DUNOD LIBS Je LUBYE) aq |m sdajs 1xau aup ||B Aq
peaibe y pue §10Z Jl@quanoN Uiy} uo Bugasw pieoq ay} 1e payuasaid
aq jpm siy | “diysssuped ay} ul SIoUNco ey ssoioe saa) ubje

0} Bupjoo] ApuaLna st diysiaupey fosuog Buiping anysieisasia sy
'LZ/0Z0Z 104 884 0Z/61 02|

3Y} Ue3al O JUBWOLL BY) J0j YSIM BM SISEQ SILL UQ “patuaiualduul
S83) 8y} 3ABY 0} |IDUNOD YIeB JB UaYe)} aq |Im sdals xau auy e Aq
paaibe J pue 107 18qWanON Uip| uo Bupasw pieoq 8y} 1e pajuasaud
aq |im s1y | “diysseuped ayy i jlounod g auy ssouoe sas) ubje|

0} Buoo| Apuawno st diysiauped joquon Buipjing auysussania ay)

S8'62

0085

0005

00°052 ##

00°GL

00°0S

00'sZ

S8'6C

00'85

0008

00°0Se ##

00'GE

0005

0o'sz

§l-ady-1

pL-idy-|

60-1dy-|

Gl-ddy-}

Gl-1dy-|

Gl-dy-|

GL-dy-|

yoe3

yoeg

yoeg

1sanbay 1adq

lold Jad

ucneddy 1ad

1el4 Jad

95€6 1001LT

9686 L00LZ |

95€6 10012

28E6 20012

29E6 20012

288620012

ZBEBTO0LE

wawnoop Jad ()8 'saa0u ‘siaa)) uoheuswnsop jo Buysod % uonesedaiy

(82140 ut Jo sys uo Jayys) inoy Jad ayes - iabeuepy joyuoy Buipjing

(P20 Ut 1o aus uo sayya) anoy sad sjes - JoABAINS [ONUOY Buiping

ANIQIONI INFWIDHOINI HO ADNIOHIWT NV HLIM T3 1VIDOSSY HHOM

"1ojieq Aq pasinbai si sjuapisal wouy Juswaaibe Aofew spayy om ¥ gN

‘ssaJppe siay] o) abueys ay) buipieba. ‘Yym puodsanios

Aayi Jeuy sajued (e Buiwogu Jo J500 yi Jof Aed wayl diey 0] SiUSpISa. o) pled Saluow 0] Salefas uoESUIAUWIoT
“(yueaydde ay) Aq Jow aq o) st uonesuadwon ayy) uoyesuadwon ne smd

2 159Nbay s)uspIsal e palaquinu-al | palBU-a) 12a1g

‘30 ped Jo J3a.s ay) pasaquinu sey ALOYINY 8u) Ja)e SUBSL LOREDIION "
10/d Jod 8 |euONIpPE SNId ‘asy UoHEASILILLPY

, uoneaynou Jaye juswdoeaap e o} abueys

x8|dwos Jey mau jo Buuaquiny

=

q)

e)

[4 51

(6)

~Dngn11 ~

aBiey9 JO [9A8] papusLLIWIODal oL} Buipiebal uopeuejdx3|

@
—-

Kjjeusax

3
iz-ozoz

3
0z-6L02

JONVHD
1sv1

40 31va

LINN

30090
ANNOJ2V

VAT

JOUVHI 40 NOILdINDS3A

TOMLINOD INIWAOTIAIQ



'12/0202 10} $88) 0Z/61.02

By} UIB}a) O} JUSWIOW BU) JO} USIM am $1SEQ Si} UQ “pajuswajduwl

509} 8U) SABY 0} |IDUNCD YOES JB USKE) 3q || SAa)s 1xau ay ||e Aq
peaiBe § pue 640z J2qWaON iyl uo Bugsaw pieoq ay) je pajuasald
aq jim siy | “diysiauped auy Ul SPRUNOD G AU} $S0I0E $33) uble

o} Bunjoo) Ajuaund s diysiauped jonuos Buiping auysiajsaala ay |

abueyo oN

*12/0Z0¢Z 10} 588} 02/6102

U} ulg}aJ O] JUDIOLW BL) JOJ YSIM Bm SISE] SIY) UQ “pajudwajduwi

$88 8y} 9ARY O} loUNOD Yoea Je Uaye) aq |m sdals 1xeu sy ||g _E_
paaibe j pue §L0Z JoquSAON Y| uo Bunasw pieoq ay) je pejuesaid

aq | siy L “diysssuped ey ul SIoUNoa § au $S0IIe $39) uble

0} Bupjoo) Apuaund si diysisuped jonuoy) Buipjing auysialseaa syl

1L2/0Z0Z 104 598} 0Z/6102

o} LIEJa) O} JUSLLIOLL B 10§ YSIM BM SISE] SI) UQ) "pajuawaldul

5§99} BU) @ABY 0} [I2UNOJ YOBS JE Uaye) aq |m sdajs xau eyl e Aq

peaibe j pue 610z JequwaroN Yip| uo Bunsaw pieoq ey} je pajuasaid|
aq i iy -diysiauped sy} uj SIOUNOD G Ay} $S0i0e $39) ubije

0} bunjoo] AuaLing si diysisuped jonuoy Buippng auysisisaote] a8yl
“L2/020Z 10} se8) 0Z/6102

By} UB}aI O} JUSLLOW BU} 1) YSIM am SISEq SIL) UQ "pajuawajdwl

$89) 8U) 9ARY O} 1IUNOCD YoBa Je Uaye] aq |Im sdajs 1xau ay i Aq
peaibe Jl pue 6107 J9QWIAON Uiy | uo Bunesaiu pieoq ay) je pejuasaid
aq |m siy | “diysiauped ay) ul SIDUN0D G BY) $S010e saa) uble

0} Bupioo| Apuawno st diysisuped joue) Buipiing auysislsenaT ay L
"L2/0202 10} 8984 02/6102

BY) UIB}BI O] JUBSWIOW SU) JOJ YSIM 3M SISEQ SIL) UQ "pejuawsajdwi

$83) 3L} 8ABY O} 12UNOD Yaea JB Uaye) aq |m sdays xau ay j|e Aq
peaibe ji pue §10Z J2quanopN Y| uo Bunsew pieoq ayj 1e pajuasaid
aq [jw sy diysssuped ay ul sIoUNED ¢ 8L ssosoe sas) ubie

o} Bunjool Apuauna si diysieuped joauo) Buiping siysialseaa ayL
“1210202 40 5884 07/6102

BU) UIBJ3) O] JUSLIOW BY) JO) YSIM am siseq sIy) uQ “paluewajdul

S99} 8U} SABY O} ||OUN0D YIBS JE UYL} 34 || Sda)s Jxau e (je Ag
paaibe ji pue 610z 1aquwsaon Yiy| uo Buneaw pieoq ay) je pejuasasd
aq [m siy ) diysisuped sy} Ul SISUN03 G ay) ss01oe sas) ubie

0) Bujoo) Apuauna si diysiauped joauo) Buping auysieisecial ey
‘12/0T0T 10 $89) 0Z/6102

U Ulejas 0] JUSLUOL BU} 10y YSIM am SISEQ SiY) uQ “pajuswsduwl

$88} BU) SARL 0} IDUNOD YIED JE Uaye) ag |m sdais xau auy (e Aq
paaibe ji pue g0z 1oquwancy Uiy| uo Bunesw pieoq ay) je pajuasaid
24 |m siy L diyssauped 8y} Ui sounad g ay) ssosoe $ag) uble

o} Bupjoo| Ajuaund si diysisuped jojuos) Buiping aunsi9isane syl
"L2/0Z0T 404 588 0Z/6L02

By} UIEIBY O] JUSLIOW B} JOJ YSiM BM SISEq SIU) UQ "pajuawajduwl

$88} 8} 8ARY O} IOUNOD YIS JB UBXE) 8( [im Sda)s Jxau au ||e Aq
peaibe ji pue 6107 JeqWBACH iy | uo Bunesw pseoq ay) je pejuasaid
aq [im siy | “diysiauped ay) u| sIduNod G AUy sSoJoe saa) ubie]

o} Bunjool Apuauny si diysiauped joguos Buping aiysiaisans ay |

000

0S'€

€00

800

91’0

800

00

600

€00

000

0se

€00

800

gL'0

800

¥0°0

€00

Gl -ady-|

pl-dy-

GL-idy-|

Gl-idy-|

Gl-dy-1

Gl-1dy-|

Gl-dy-)

Si-ady-|

GL-ady-|

yoe3

yoes

yoe3

yoeg

yoeg

yoeg

yoe3

yoeg

yoe3a

€SE6 20012

; L0Z6 vOZh b
9586 10012

| 95£6 LOOJZ

(1dwaex3) sanaw 2qno 95 G UBY) $58] awnjoa e yim sbuiping

(08 uonvag) NOILITOW3A 40 NOILYDIHILON

ALIMEYSIAO 40 4008d HLIM LNIAIS3YH V OL A3M HvavY 4O AlddNS

(e)e4 S58LISNY PIEPUE]S) J2)eaIay) Anuiw Jad - SUIPUE| B 0} SUIPUE| B WOl SpeL S||ed suoydeja|

(e1e1 ssauisng piepuels) abieyo UOKIBUUOD - BUIPUE| B O} AUIPUE| B W01 SPELU Sfied auoyds|a)

(e1e1 SSBUISNG PIEpUE)S) JaYEAIBY) SINUILL Jad - SAIGOW O] SAUNPUE] WOl BpewW S|ied auoydaja ]

(2184 SSBUISNG pJEpUR)s) aB1eYS UONIAULOI - SBJIGOLW O} SBUIIPUE| WO Speuw S|jea suoyde|s |

(182 piepuels) Buibessaw yxs) sjqop

(a1eJ piepuels) aynuiw Jad - B|iqow o} ajgow e LWoJj apew sjied auoydels |

(2181 prEPUBIS) BINUIL J8d - GO B WOoJ) SpEW s|jed auoyds|s |

e)

42
£V
0

u)

(6)

)]

p)

~ Page 12 ~

@ableyd JO |oAl] papuawwoaas 3y} buipiebas uoneue|dx3

5

Aljeusay:

3
Lz-0zoz

3
0Z-6102

FONVHI
18V
40 31va

1INN

3002
ANNOIOV
9

VAT

JOUVHI 40 NOILJI¥OS3a

TOHLNOD INIWJOT13A30




1vA pejerosaz 7
Alanoy ssauisng uoN N
1WA woydwexy 3
1vA4o ansnpou |
Aoy 1WA
h %09 € SABp/ WaG-LER) }aaM & SSJNUIt § SIN0Y 6 JO il | BUISIHSAPY [B10]
SBINUI U3} AISAS Ul SINUILT SUD 10} USAPY UE MOLS [IM 105 7 aN
000 00's4 61-4dy-| | 101SpBaM Jod | €506 LOOLE 1 yiuow | 1oy dn ubis siseq ue aaly syaam Z 4o 1840 Aojanposu) | (1
asn pue juswabebus abeinoous o} 89) paonpay 0001 0008 6L-1dy-| | 101SMsOM 184 | €508 LOOLE | | yBnouog au apising ssauisng| (2)
000 064 6L-4dy-| | 10ISPEBM Jad | £506 LOOLE | | Wuow | o) dn ublis siseq uo 881y syeem z Jo JayQ Aojnpony) |1
asn pue juswebebus abeinosue o} 88y peonpay 052 00'SL BL-1dy-L | 101SP@aM Jad mmomroo_.mv BN ybnoiog ay) uiyupm ssauisng| (q) J
S9IAIBG Bal4 00°0 000 9L-dv-L | 10ISPIEaM J3d | €806 LOOLE | | Aeyoysdnoss Anwwop| () | &
DI SN3ITFUIS AV1dSIA TVLIOIQ IHL NO ONISILYIAAY|SL' ) o
'LZ/0Z0Z 10) 583 0Z/6L0Z 00'sz 0o'se Li-dy-y yoe3z 3 wun ydwaexe-uou Jad abieyo jeuonippe ‘sBuiping sidnnu ypm sang| (8) m
31 Ulejal 0] JUBWOW 8L} 10§ YSIm 8m Siseq syl uQ "pajuswedul | N
S88} alj} asey 0] [19uUN0D Yoea je uae} aq |jw sdes Ixau aul e Ag l
pasibe ji pue |0z 12qWBAON Uiyl uo Bugesaw pieDq 8y} je pajuasald
aq | siy | diysisuped sy} ul sjounod G oy} ssoIoe sa9y ubje
0} Bupoo| ApuaLing si diysisuped joguor) Buiping allysiajsaia ay]
'12/0Z0Z 404 88} 0Z/61.02| 00081 00'08L Li-ady-| yoe3 i3 Saj8wW 2gna OOE Jo $$39x@ Ul Bupjing onsawog-uoN| (p)
8Y} UIRI3J O] JUBLUOLU LY 1O} YSIm am SISE] SIUL UQ ‘pajuawaidiul
593} ay) aABY 0} [oUNOD YIee Je ueye) ag [jim sdeys Ixeu ay e Ag
paaube i pue g10Z J2qWaAON Uiy} uo Bugasw pieoq sy} e pajuasaid
aq || sy | “diysisuped a8y} Ul S|jOUN0D G BU) SS0IE $33) uble
0} Bumoo) Apuauina si diysisuped joauon Buiping anysisisaoieT] ayj . i
'12/020¢ 10} 588} 0Z/6102| 00021 000z Li-ady-} yoe3z _E9e8200IC | 3 S8J3W 2IqNI 9561 40 $S39x%8 Ul Buiping onsawog-uoN| (9)
Bu} ulejal 0} JUBSWIOW BU} O} YSIM 8Mm SISE] SIL) O “pajuawaldul i
$83} al) aABY 0} 2UN0D YIBS B UaYe]} aq (1M Sda)s Ixsu ey e Aq
paaibe § pue 60z J2qUWBaAON Uiy | uo Bunsaw pieog 8y} 1e pajuasaud
aq [w s1y | “diysisuped sy U soUN0D § 8L SSOI0. Sas) ublel
0} Bunjooy Apuawno si diysseuped jouo) Buiping anysieisania ay il
“12/020¢ 10} 598} 0z/6L0Z 00021 00021 Li-idy-) yoe3 €9€6200iZ |3 SBABW 2IqN2 95" G 40 SSdx%a ul Buipiing alsawoq| (q)
B4} Ule}al O] JUSWOoLW BU 10§ Usim am siseq siyl uQ ‘pejuswajdul
S88} AUy aney 0} |IDUNOD 2B Je uayEe) aq |Im sdajs Ixau sy} e Ag
pasibe Jl pue 510z JequanoN Uiy | uo Bunasw pieog ay} je pajuasaid
aq [ siy | “diysisuped ay) vl SFOUNDI G 81 SSOIOE $38) ubjje
0} Bunjoo) Apuauna si diysiauped joguoy Buiping alnysusjsenia ey A
abieyo 40 [9A8| papualiwodal ay) bulpiebas uoneuejdxy i 3 3 ;
" 8| 1z-0z0z | ozsioz [FONTHO B [
w 1SV 1INN 1NNO22VY ﬂ JOUVHDI 40 NOILdI¥DS3a
< 4031va 19

TOYLNOD LNINOI3A3A




00'9% 00'SS 6l-idy-L | yoe3g N Jeal @aiyl
009 00°5¥ 6i-dy-L | yoe3 N 1BBA OM]
00'se 00'vE Bi-10y-L | yoe3 N 1ea) auQ
0029 0008 Bi-1dy-L | uoe3 N (894 §0 9,05) 884 ANAIDE [BUCHIPPY
00ZLL  |0060L Bi-idy-l | yoe3 N Buies jo uonenieaa-ay
0082 0042 6L-1dy-| | Yoe3 N (US1A) 82UB1| JO UOIBUBA
00'0L 0089 6L-idy-| [ ude3 N (1S1A OU) @OUBTY| JO UOTBLEA
00'L6 0068 6L-idy-| [ yoe3 N {AlUD) JBRA BRI
00'zZ2ZL 00'0ZL 61-1dy-| [ yoe3l N (jemausl) sjewiue Bunqyxg
ozl |0002ZE 61-30y-| | yoeg N (Mau) s|ewiue Buniqiyxg
00ELL 000kL 6i-40y-| | yoe3 N 1e8A @31y
00°'L8 00'68 Bi-idy-L | yoe3 N JEBA oMy
0004 0089 6i-dy-| | uoel N 1A BUQ
00¢ZL  |00°02L 6l-ddy-| | uyoe3 N (lemaual) sjad se siewiue buljes
0022 [000ZL | 6b-ddv-L | uoe3 P N (mau) siad se siewiue Gujjag
00'%SE  |000SE §l-idy-L | uoe3 N JBBA 2344 L
a0z |0060L  |6L-idv-L | uoe3 N JB3A oM
0004 00'89 §l-idy-L | yoe3a N 183 8uQ
00ZeE  |oo0ZL Bl-dy-L | yoe3 N (jemaua) sesioy ino BuuiH
00'zZ1  |00°0Z4 §l-ady-| | Yoe3 | N (mau) sesioy ino Buuiy
00044 00ELE Bi-1dy-| | Yoeg i (lemaual) Juswysigels3 Buipry
00651 00854 6i-dy-1 | uyoe3 N (mau) juawysyqeis3 buipiy
00'9LL  JOOELE 6L-1dy-| | u2e3 (jemauel) douS [BWILY 18d
00'BSL  |D0'SSIE Gl-idy-1 | 4oe3 N (meu) doys |ewiuy 189d
009 |O0€ELL Bi-4dy-1 | yoe3 g S (jlemeual) SjEWIUY PIM Snaisbueq
00651 {00951 6i-idy-L | yoe3 N (mau) siewiuy piip snosabueq
00'€Ll  |00'0LL | 6i-idveL | ude3 N 1ea BalyL
00'L6 00'68 6i-4dy-| | uoeg N JBGA OM]
00°0L 0089 6l-dy-| | yoe3 N JBBA BUQ
oozzk  |000ZL 6i-1dy-1 | uyoe3 ] (1emauai) sbioq jo Buipeaig
00'ZZL |000ZL | 6i-dv-L | uoe3 B (meu) sboq jo Buipaaig
00€EL  |000EL | 6L-idv-L | Woed N (S{BWIUE BJOW JO 2) JBa) BB
Q0kL 00601 §L-10y-L yoeg N (S[BLWIUE BI0W IO /) JEBA OM] l
0006 0088 Bl-i0v-L | Yoe3 N | (SIELUILE BIOW 10 /) JEBA BUD <
pogLl  |000LL | BLdv-L | yae3 N (sjewiue g o] dn) Jeap @3yl ~
00'L6 00'68 6L-10y-| | yoe3 SN (siewue g 0} dn) Jeah oMy
0004 00'89 6l-4dy-| | uoe3 N (siewiue g 0} dn) JBaA 8UD 2]
00'Z2) 00'0zZ1 GL-1dy-| | yoe3 j {|lemauas) Juallys)gelsy Buipseog [ewiuy m
8181 |dD JuaLNd 8} Aq PaseEsIou] 00'2ZL 000zL BL-10y-| yoeg N (mau) Juawusiiqels3 Buipieog |ewiuy la¥
e §33430N30N| 27 )
0042 0012 6i-4dy-L | uyoe3 N (S[eMmaUal g SJUBD|OdR MBU J0jf) DUILIEI| (3SD) LONENOIAXT [BNXaS PIUD| (o)
008 0o'g 6L-sdy-| yoe3 ‘N {Sjuedidde Mau) SHIBYD IdH| (u)
0 98] slepuBw YIAQ 00'83 PUE LUOGEIOUE UO 8jgeARd 00 #GF 98) SEQ S8pNIRX3|,
Q0L 002 6L-J0y-| | yoeg i yonod uaaiospuip Juoid jusweoejday| (w)
005 00’6 Bi-idy- | uoe3 ysep-naop juatuaoeiday | ()
004 002 Gi-ady-L | yoe3 (1aded) 20UBDIT 8|21WBA JO JusWaaR|day| (%)
00'L 00'L Gl-idy-L | uoe3 souedwo jo aeoyipad| (1)
WIN WN| L-1dy-L yoeg 1 et (essan-adlh) abeluen) ABUNIEH 0] B|2IUBA BIIH BlBAld WOY 8oL JO JeysuelL | (1)
0008 0008 Bl-Jdy-1 | 4oe3 N 885U9IM J3UIOUY O} B3UADIT BIOIUSA JO 18ysuell | (u)
008z 0082 g1-10v-1 | uoe3 IN 218|d 8oUBIIT BIDIYBA JO JuBWeIRday | (6)
00’008  {00°00E Bl-1dy-L | yoe3 N 82UBar B2IUBA abele] AsuxoeH| ()
00°00E |00°00E | 6L-dve [ uoe3 AN 9908917 B21YBA Bl BlEAld | (8)
00'ER 00'EY 6L-dy-| | Yoe3 { s8] Aousjaduwion aauaor] siojesadg|(n
442100 BIUBDI MBU JO} YoM JO Apog 00040+ |00°0L0L | 6L-adw-i | uoe3 N seap ani4|(1
‘93IAIBS JO 1S09 JBADD 0] SeY 150D "UONSHNSUOD o} Ine Ind 8q 0) pepu abueyd saa) seouedl| IXeL 4 :
; 80ua217 SJojeredQ aiH 8ieald| (p)
00’52 00'ET Bi-dy-| yse3g N awaoe|dey - abpeg sivaug| (9)
00'vy 00'EY 6i-1dy-L | use3 N Jsa) eaualedwon| (g)
oosiz  |00ELE 6l-1dy-| | yoe3 N JeaA aauyL |1
Lelieuie) AsuyoeH pue aiiH a1eAlUd - 8duadl sJaaud| (e)
SHVO FuIH ILVAINC OGNV JOVINHEVYD AINMIOVH| 1T
8121 %BPU| 80lid JOWNSURT LNy ay) Aq peseasoul uesq eaey mojaq sabiieyo eyl PeIeS 85WIBLI0 SSBIUN L
SFINIINT 4
4| I 3 |3onvHo 3000
| vz-0zoz | 0Z-6L0T %
H 1sv1 LINN AINNOODY | X JOWVHD 40 NOILdI¥OS3a
< 40 31va 19

xeul Oo_uwuu-

LV IND: 1




3 8INpayYds G00¢ suoneinbay (sesy) ooz 10w Bususor] x  Josol 050k G0-G84-1 | yoe3 SLE5 E002Y | N SS8Jppe JC aweu jo abueyd jo uonesynon ||
9 9INPaUDS §00Z suonenbay (sesy) €00z Yy Busuao| x 00'SLE 00'GLE Li-1dy-| yoeg VIEE C002F | N 219 Jjing BUIRQ SaSIWBIC SIaUM |UBLIBIE}S [BUOISIADIG B 1oy uonesddy|(
9 3INP8YLS 500Z suchenBey (se3y) £onz 10w Buisuasr| x  os ol 0501 G0-qa4-1 yoe3 EIEGE00ZY | N AJBIULINS 10 BIUAD) SasIWald JO 218 'ss0) ‘yay | (n
9 8Inpayos 500z suonejnbey (seal) £00z 1wy bususon| x  [oo'Lz 00'LZ S0-a84-| | uoe3 | ZIESE00ZY | N 810U ueng Aresodws | ({1
300N / uojeddy| (p)
Z @npauas €00z oy Buisusar]| X 006 00'68 §0-984-4 | uyoe3 £BEB €002y S8DUBIIT SBSILIBIG JO UOHEIEA JOUIKY
Z 8INpeyas €00z 1oV Buisuson| x  [00°506L  |00'5061 [S0-984-1 | uoe3 F9€6 £002F, (€x) 3
€ 3INPeyas g00z Wy Buisusory) X 00006 (00006 S0-994-1 | u%e3 |“pEEG 002k (zx)a
|oyooie Buyies jo ssauisng ay) ul Ajewnd 16 Aaisnioxa
8le Asly a1aym J pue g pueq ul sesiwaid of paidde s Jaydinw v
2 9jnpayag 600z suolieinbey (sesy) cooz 1ov Buisueary| x |ooses  |ooses  |so-ged-L | yoes v3EE €005 {anoge pue Lo0'sz13) 3
2 8inpayss 500z suoneinbiey (saay) €00z Py Buisueor]| x fooost  |ooosy  |so-ged-L | woeg | (000'SZ1L3 01 L00'283) O
Z 2Npayss GO0z suoneinbay (seay) cooz 1oy Buisueor| x  foosie  [oosie 50-984-1 | \Yoe3g 3 000'£83 93 LOOEE3) D
Z BInpayds 500z suoneinbey (ses)) £0oz vy Buisuaor| x  Joo 06t 00081 §0-984-} | yoe3 (D00'EEI OV LOE'Y3) G
2 8Inpayas Gooz suoneinbey (seey) e0oz 1ov Bususon| x  fooooL  |oooor  |so-aed-L | uoe3 ; (00€'¥3 01 anjea ajgesiel ou) y
4 - SpuBg 8njep ajqesiey 583) uohenddy
| S81edIe?) SAsIWLBl qN|D / SRIUSDIT SSIWAI JO UOHBUEBA 10 Map | (9)
§ 8INpayYds £00Z 10y Buisusonl X |00'0SOL  |00'0S0L  |S0-984-L | yoe3 N (£x)3
S INPaYdS €00z Py Buisusory| X looore  [00°0r9 G0-G84-4 | uoe3 N (zx)a
q |oyooe Buyjes jo ssauisng ay) u Ajuewud 1o Alaisnoxe
81e Aay} a1aym 3 pue (] pueq ui sasiwaid o} peydde St Jandninw v
S einpeysg 500z suonenbey (sesy) eooz 10w Butsuesrt| x  |ooose 0005 G0-984-1 | yoe3z (anoqe pue 100'sZ1L3) 3
S 8inpayas 500z suonenbay (seey) £ooz 1oy Buisusary| x  |oooze oo'oze §0-984-1 | yoeg (000'sZ1L3 01 L00'L83) O
S BNPBYS 5002 suonenbay (sea)) £00z 1oy Buisusan)| x  |oo'sez 00462 S0-924-1 | yoe3g 000'£83 9 L00EE3) D
S BINPaYIs 500z suonenbay (see)) £00z 10y Buisuear)| x oo o8t 00'081 S0-994-L | yoeg (000'EE3 O3 LOE'P3) G
G 8INpayas go0g suonejnbay (saey) £00z 10y Bususon x  foo'os 00°0L §0-984-1 | yoeg (00E'+3 0 Bnjea a|gqeajes ou) v
-: SpuUeg enjeA ajqesiey $884 |enuuy
STIEIUB] SBSIWBIG QNI [ $80UBIT SaSIWBIA]| (a)
9 BINPayas g0z 1wy Buisuear) x  logsg DOLE | L-idy- | yseg 80UBDI |BUCSIad B JO [EMauay IO JueiD)
80U (euosiad| ()
S00g suoneinbay (s98y) £00Z 10V Buisuson £00Z LOY DNISNIOIN| €2 1
00952 |00€26Z |61-a0v-L | uoe3 i swewysigersy xag| (z) | Y]
0088  |00'98 6l-Jdy-L | yoeg 89U897 1UBAT HO Bup | (I N
00'0S€  |00'EPE  |6L-1dy-L | yoeg 8OUBDY YIUOW Z| a
00€0Z  |00'66L 6i-ady-1 | uyoe3 80UBI| YUOW g md
00921 Qo'ezL 6i-ady-| ysey fal
00°€8 00'L6 gi-dy-1 | uoeg N | 33U30Y| Yuow |
00'LL 00704 Bl-idy-1 Yoeg N { 20USIN [BNUUY ¥aam e Aep | l
18{ino 1ad (81Iqow) buipes) jeang
00'LL 0004 Bi-idy-L | yoe3 [N (@gow Jo paxy) JUBsUOD Jo JBjsuel|
00857 |000Sy  [6Ldv-i | yoe3s N 80UBDI| YluowW g}
00’162 00682 6lL-10y-| yoe3 N | 80Ul Yuow g
00'LBE 004 61-dy-L | yoeg IN 20UBYY| YjUow £
0092} |00'€2 6l=10y-L | uoeg N 20UBY| LjUoW |
00'#0L 0020k 6L-4dy-| uoe3 N 20U |eNUUY Yaam e Aep |
o 1elino sad (paxy) Buipes) jseng
00°0F 008e gi-dy-1 [ yoe3g N souejsWnoug jo abueyn
002L 0004 BL-ddy-| yoeg N (sabeuew ays o sbueyd sul) 8duaor oy uoy BA
00'6eE 00'Zee 6i-idy-| yoe3g N AWM 4O [EMBLRY SI0J0AI0D
00'6EE  |D0ZEE 6i-idy-1 | yoe3 N 80U82 $40}08)(0D)
00'€Be  |0D0'SLE 61-dy-| | yoeg N Ajeah g - 8ousan aug Jo lemauey
00'E8E 0068 | BL-10v-L | uoe3 N 83U 8YS
£ £10Z VY s1gjeaq |eay dedg
00'SZ) 00°€ZL Bl-10y-L yoeg N paUIGWOD Sasiwald pue uosiad
00Z8 008 6i-1dy-L | yoe3 N uossag
0028 00'i8 6l-4dy-1 | yoe3 N s8SIWaIg
< SUOSIBd PUB S3SIWBld JO uonessibay - 19ssaiplieH
00SZL 00'ECh Bl-idy-| yseg e liN PaUIGWED Sasiwaid pue uosiaq
0028 00'L8 gL-idy-1 [ yoeg N uosiag
anezg 00'Le 6L-1dy-1 | Uoeg N SasiWald
3 10 uonensibay - sisAj0.308|3 ‘Buiaid je3 ‘buioope ) ‘ainpundnoy
/ ‘LoREIddY UC 30ild = YOd Wesydde ai
vOd YOd| 61-10v-1 | yoe3 0} pabueu aq iw 19Unog au Ag paunaul saaj siea (1) - (e) saouadl Jo4| g
2z 3 3 |aonwHo 3000
3| 007 | 0280 [ Tisvn | unn | annodaw | % IDUYHD 40 NOILAINOSIT
& 40 31va 70
XEWw ppoL3




(1) g uoneinBey L00Z suonenBay (siwiad sulydew anig pue Bulwes qniD) 007 Py Bulquen syt x  |ooooz 00002 20-0as-| | uyoe3 N Hulad 4o Weig
; siwiad suiyoey Buiwes gnip
(z) €1 uoneinbay L0z suoneinbey (sejep pue pueibug) (594 9ousdr sesiwald) Buiquen ayll x 10052 00'se Zh-idy-| yoe3z N 82uB217 Jo AdoD
XBW 0003 00ZFEL |00FLEL | BL-idv-L yoe3z N JUBLIBIEIS [BUOISIADIH
xew 00zl 3 00'69S 00€ss BL-dy-| | yoeg N 284 JusWalesui-ay
Xew pozZL3 00595 00'€5S 6L-idy-| | yoe3 N 20UBIIT JO J8jSUB| |
(2) 01 uonenBey Jo0z suonenbay (sajean pue puejbul) (see4 eousdi sesiweld) Buqwes ayy| X |oD0S 006¥ BL-1dy-1 | yoe3z N S80UBISWN2IY Jo abueyn),
Xew pQsL3| 00'ZPEL  |00PIEL | 6L-dy-L | uoe3d N 20UR9I7 JO UoKeLEA
XEW 0093 0D0°GaS 00'€8S 6L-ady-| yoe3z N aa4 |enuuy
Xew 00513 00°Z¥EL |00PLEL | 6L-dv-l | yoe3 IN 8OUBDIT SBSILAIY
(e} (2) £ uoneinbay £00z suonejnbey (seanoN esn Aleiodwa]) 500z 19V Bujques eyl] x |00°SZ 00SZ L0-uer-2 | yoe3 N 2oljoN as() Aleiodwa] jo Juawasedey
(1) £ vonenBay 00z suonenBay (seonoN esn Alejodws] ) 5002 19V Buqwes syl x |0000S |00 00S to-uer-2 | yoeg In BonoN asn Aesodwa |
(18ul0) sesiwald Gumeg
(2) €1 uoneinBay 200z sueneinbey (sejep pue puelBul) (see4 eouadr sesiwald) Bujqwes eyl X 0062 0052 Zh-ady-L | uoe3 [N aouaar Jo Ado)
xew 00023 00Z¢EL |00VIEL | 6L-dv-L | yoe3 |IN JUSLLBIEIS [BUOISIAGIY
xew 00z 3| 00595 00°€SS Gi-dy-L | yoeg N 894 JuBWa|e|Su-aY
Xew 00Z43 00695 |0D'€SS 6i-dy-1 | yoeg N 30U3I O 1BjSUBL)
(2) 01 uonenBay 00z suoneinbay (sejepn pue pueibul) (seay eauean sesiusld) Buiques ayy| X 10005 006F 6l-dy-| [ yoeg N seouejswnoung Jo abueyn
X (00000t j00PIEL |6i-idy-L [ yoe3 IN B0UBOIT JO UCHELEA
xew 0ooL3| 00686  |00€SS BL-dy-L | yoe3 iN 884 [enuuy
X |00'00Z1 l00®IEL |6i-ady-i | uoe3 N 80U89|7 SasiWald
I anuay) Buiwes jInpy
(z) €1 uonenbay 00z suoneinbey (sajepn pue puelbul) (see4 sousdr sesiwaig) bujqweg eyyl] X (0062 0052 Zh-dy-| | yoea N ou8IIT J0 AdoD)
Xew 00Sz3 00'ZrEl [00PIEL | 6L-idy-L | yoe3 Y 2,_ JUSLUBIRIS [BUOISIADLY
Xew 0563 00696  |00'€SS Gl-idy-| | yoe3 N 284 Juawsaleisu-ay
Xew Q563 00°58S 00ESS 6L-1dy-1 | yoez N 8IUBII1 JO IBjsUel)
(2) oL uoneinBay 200z suonenbBey (sejem pue pueiBul) (see 8ousdn sesiwaid) Buigwes eyyl X |00°0S 00'6¥ Bi-0v-| | yoe3 ' IN S80UBISWINONY JO aBuey
x |00°052L [00FLEL |6L-dv-L | yoe3 N 80UBDI JO UCHELEA
Xew 063 00698 |00€SS 6L-dy-| | yoeg N | 884 [enuuy
¥ [00'0001 [00PLEL | 6i-ady-i | yoe3 N 80uad S8sIWalY
= s8iuag) JswuepSIUT Ajlwey
(z) £1 voneinbey 00z suoiemBay (sejem pue puejbu3) (sae4 eouear sestweld) Bujqwes eytl X 10052 0008 L1-dy-L | yoe3 N 82uB0I7 JO AdDD
XEw 05ZZ3 002rEL [00PLEL | BL-idv-L | yoe3 N JUBWSIRIS |BUOISIAOIY 1
Xew 0563 00996 |00'€SS Bi-4dy-| | yoe3 N 294 Juawalejsuray o
XEew 0663 00696  |00'€SS 6i-ady-| | yoe3 N 80Ue0r jO Jajsuel) —
(2) 01 uoneINBay £00Z suonenbay (ssjem pue puelbul) (seed 9ousai sesiwe.d) bujgweo eyt X (0005 0069 6L-dy-| | yoe3 N SaDuelsWNa) jo sbueys )
X |00'0s2+ [00#IEL | 6i-dy-L | yoel 80UAIIM JO LONBLEA >
Xew ppoL3 00686 |00'ESS 6l-sdy-| | yoeg ] a8 [enuuy I
X |00'00ZL [0OPLEL |6lL-idy-} | yoe3 LE 92U80I SASIWBIY 'a¥
Ay (¥oeu] ) sesiueid Bugjeg
(z) g1 uonenbay L00z suonenbay (sejep pue puelbul) (seed aauaar sasjweid) Bujques syl X |00°6Z 0008 2i-ady-1 | yoe3 N 82U8a J0 AdoD l
Xew 0QSEJ| 00'FLEL [OOPLEL | 61-ddy-L | yoe3 N 1UBWALEIS [BUOISIADIY
XEeW 00Z1 3} 0D0'ESS 00°€5S 6L-dy-1 | Uyoe3 N @84 JUBLUBIBISU-aY
XeWw 00Z13 00'€SS  |00'ESS 6L-dy-| | yoe3 N | 80UB0M JO JBJSUBL|
{2) 01 uonenBey L 00z suohenbey (selep pue pueBul) (seed asuean seswusld) Bujques eyll x 0005 0061 6l-1dy-| [ yoe3 N SaDUBISWN2LY Jo BbueyD
XBW OSLL3| 00'?LEL |00'PIEL |6L-dy-} | yoe3 N | 80UBIIN JO UONBLBA,
Xel 00013) 00'ESS  |00'€SS | 6i-sdv-L | uoe3 N 284 [enuuy
X [oo'002s |00PLEL | 6i-dy-L | yoe3 N 80U30I sasiuald
5 sasiWald obuig
(e) g uonoag '/00z suonejnbey (sensenog |eizieWWo)-uoN 4O uclensiBey) saueno Aenos jews eyt| x |oooz 0002 L0-deg-| | yoeg N a4 [emauay
{a) £ uondag ' /o0z suonenbey (58191008 [BIBWWOD-UCN jo ucnessiBey) saueno Aj@wos jews ayl| x |ooovr 000 Lo-deg-| | yoe3 N aa4 uonediddy [eqiu|
S8Lal0T AlB10S |lEws
G00Z LIV ONITEWVD
9 BNpayYsg GOz suonenbay (seey) €00z 19v Buisueo| X (o0 LE 001z 50-924-1 | yoe3 N sia)ew Buisuady Jo pailou ag 0] i@ 1apjoysal) o} Jubiy
g 9inNpaus G0z suonenbey (ses)) conz 10y Buisueory X |0S 0L 0501 S0-984-1 | uyoe3 N Japjoy @2us0)| sesiwa.d Jo ssaippe Jo 8lweu jo abueyd jo uoyesyloN
9 8jnpeyds g0z suonenbey (seey) £z 10y Buisueor]l x  |0S 0L 0501 S0-ga4-L | Yyoe3 1N a3uadl| |euosiad Jo 918 'ssO)| ey
9 BINPBYIS 500Z suonenbay (sea)) ooz 19y Buisueon| x [0S0 0501 S0-qa4-L | uoe3 ] N 801j0u Juaae Alelodwa) Jo %8 'ssa) ‘yayl
9 8|Npauos oz sucnejnbey (sea)) £o0z 1ov Buisuean| X (0501 0501 G0-ge4-1 | yoe3z N qnio jo ssaJppe pasaisibal jueasjal jo sbiueyn
a 8|npayos ooz suenenbay (sesy) £00z 19y Busueonyl x  |0604 0501 S0-984-1 | uoe3g N qQnja Jo sa|n. jo uoijesalie Jo eweu jo abueyd Jo uonedyloN
g 8|npauss g0z suone|nbay (seay) 0oz 10y buisueo| X |os oL 0501 G0-ga4-1 | uyoe3g N AJBWLLINS JO BIBOYNIBD JO 313 '$SO| Yyl
g 8jnpeuds 500z sucneinbay (see)) o0z 10y Buisueon| X |ooez 00t 50-g94-1 | yoe3g N lapjoy aouadl| jo 28 yieap bumojie) 2210u Ajuoyine
9 8Npeysg oz suonejnbay (seay) £00z 1oy Buisuson| X |00'€Z 00'€Z S0-ge4-1 | yoe3 N 20Ua0|| $8siuSId JO JajSUB) J0) UONE !
9 JINPBUdS G0z suchenbay (see)) €00z 1oy Busueorl X |o0se 00€Z S0-994-1 | uce3 1IN Josiaadns sasiwaid se [enpiaipul Ajoads o) eouadl Alen o) uonesddy |(A
? 3 3 .
e JONVHI
EEOZ0Z | 0216107 1SV LINN m IDUVHI 40 NOILdI¥IS3a
- 40 31va

XEW 0001 3]




LVYA peler-cie 72
Aianoy sseuisng uoN N
1WA woljjdwexy 3
1vA *O m>_wﬂ_uc_ |
oW 1vA
€ Boy 2002 suoneinbay (sejem pue pueibuz) (58} UCHEJYION) SBSILIBIY Pasusan Eyooly Ul seuyoey Buwes aul| x  |00°0g 0068 Li-dy-| | yoe3 N UOILEOYRON JUBLUIARRLT IRBWOINY | (1A
(2] ¢ bay 700z suoneinbay (sajep pue puelbu3) (siuued suydew Buwes sesiwald pasuaar) 5o0g oy Bujqwen syl x jogsz 000 Li-1dy-| yaeg 3 juad jo Jgysuedy |(a {
6 B84 £00¢ suoneinBay (selem pue pueibug) (syuued sulyoep Buies sesiweld pesussi) o0z 1oy bujques sur| x |oost 0002 Li-dy-1 | yoe3 N luusd jo Adog| (m N
g Bay £00Z suoneinbisy (seiepm pue pueibu) (siuued suiysen Bues sesiweig pesuadr]) o0z 1oV Bulqweg sy x |oosz 0006 Li-dy-| | yoe3 AN Hwad uo awen Jo abueyd|(in —
() + (e)(1)6 8oy 200z suoneinbey (sejem pue pueiBuz) (siuied suiysen Bues sasiwaid pesusan) cooz 1ov Buigwes syl| x  |oo'os Oz-1dy-L | yoeg "IN 884 [eNuUy pue sii4 [
(9) € iy 100 suonenBay (sejep pue puelBu3) (SIULSG SUPE Buile sesiweld pesusaar) sooz oy Bulquen sur| x [oooor  |oosty  |zi-dv-t | yoes N WWiad Jo uoieuen ({1l g
(1) (e) £ B8y L00Z SuonenBay (sejep pue puebug) (siuag suyoepy Buiwes) sesuuaid pasusar]) 600z 10y Bujques auyr| x 00054 00'SSE LL-idy-| yoegy N nuwad jo e |t [¢
¥ L Shuuad aulydep Buiwen) sasiwald pasuar| (3) [al
9 uoneinBay 200z suoeinBey (siuwuad) (Bulwes azid) gong 1oy Buiques sut) X  loo'sh 00'SL 20-085-1 | yoe3 N uuad jo Adog 1
S vonenBay /0oz suonenbiey (snuwed) (Bulues szud) 500z 10y Bujques ay)| x foosz 00'sz L0-d8g-| | yoe3 N luuad uo slwen Jo sbueyy
(0) g uonenBay 100z suonenBay (shuued) (Burues 8zud) 600z Wy Bulgwes eyl x f00'00¢  [ooooe  |20-d8s- | uoe3 N Nwiad jo [emausy
(q) £ uoneinBay 100z suohe|nBay (syuued) (Bulwes) azud) 500z 10V Bulquwes adi| X l00°00L 0Z-1dy-| | yoe3 N nuuag Jojesad bunsixg
(e) £ uoneinbay 200z suoneinbey (siwsad) (Butues azud) cooz v Buawen syl x looooe  [ooooe  |z0-deg-) | uoe3 N Juuad j0 uein
i Sjwlad Buiwes) azig
9 By 100 suoneinbey (syuusg) (auipep Buities) snue) juswuieuelug Ajwed) Gooz 1y Buiques ayl| X fooct D0'GL £0-d95-L | uyoeg IN Huisad jo AdoD
G bay 200z suonenBey (Syuuad) (suoey Builes) snusd jusluIELBIUS Alwed) 5002 10w Buiqwes eyt x  loosz 00'62 L0-des-L | uoe3 N lwiad ue aweN jo sbueyn
(9) £ Bey 200z suoneinbay (syuuad) (suiyoep Buiues aijusg fuswuiepeIu Alwe4) 500z 1oy Buiqwen sul| x foo'ooe 00008  |so-des-i| uoe3 N Nuwiad Jo [emauay
(a) £ Bey £00Z suonenBay (syuuad) (auluoep Builes snuag uswuEUsiuS ANwed) 50z 1oy Bulawes eyl x  fooaoL 0Z-4dy-L | yoea N Huuad ojeiadq Bunsig
(e) £ Bey £00Z sucneinbey (suunad) (aulyoep Bulwes snuag uswuiepaug Ajwed) 5o0z ov Buiqwen eyt| x fooooe  |o0'0oe  |zo-des-i | uoeg IN uiad Jo juei
= J Sjulad anual JusLUeuRuT Ajlwe
91 uoneinBey L 00z suoneinBey (sywsad auiyoen an|d pue Bulwes an) coz 1oy Buques syt| x  |oost 00°SL L0-deg-L | yoe3 N Hwiad jo Adog
2} voneinbey 00z suonenBay (siuued sulyoen anig pue Buiwes qnio) 500z 1oy Buiqwes ayy| x  |ooos 0005 L0-dag-L | yoeg N 894 |enuuy puesiy
(9) (z) g uoneinBay 40Oz suone|nBey (syuuad uDEN anid pue Buies qniD) 500z 1oy Buiqwen aus| x |oooor  |oooor  |zo-des-i| uce3 N (1@pioy sieoyag) sasiWald anid) Nad jo |emausy
(2) (z) g uoneinBay 200z suoneinbay (sjuuad auiyoep anid pue Bulwes qnig) ooz oy bugqwen sut] x looooz o000z |20-des-L | uoe3 N Wwiiad Jo [emeuay
G} uoeinBay| £00Z SuoaeinBey (Siuwied auiLpEW qniD pue Buiies anin) 600z 10y Bulqwes sy | x [oo'oor  |oo'00L  |i0-des-i| uoe3 [N B jo uoielep
(@) 1o (e) (L) g uonenBay ;00Z Suoae|NBBY (SHwied aulyoey qn|o pue Guwes qniD) 600z WY Bujquen ayj| x {0000l 00001 10-d8s-| | yseg SN (12pjoy sjeayan) sesiwald anin) iwied Jo jueis
(1} 8 uonenBay L00Z suoieInBay (spued auipeyy gnio pue Buiwes qnig) co0z 1y Bulqwes syt x loo'ooz  |oocoz  |so-des-L| uoe3 |N Iwad jo juess
siwiad Bulues qnjp
91 uoieinBay 200z suonenbay (sywied sulydep ani) pue Bues gnio) 500z 19y Burawes syl| x  foost 0061 L0-08s-1 | yoe3 N Juiad jo AdoD
€l + Zi uoneinbay £00z suonenbay (siuwed sulyzel anid pue Buwes qnio) 500z 19y ulques syL| x  looos 0005 L0-d85-1 | yoeg N 824 |enuuy pue jsil4
(9) (z) g uonenBey L00z suoneinbey (siuwisd suiyoey qniD pus Buwes anig) 500210y Buigwes syy| x fooook  [oo'cor  |Zo-des-i | woe3 N (13pjoy s1eayniag sasiwald qni) IWiad jo |lemauay
(8) (¢) @ uonenbay 00z suonenbay (siuued sulyaen qnip pue Buwes qniD) 500z 1oy Bulgwes eyl x foo'ooz  |ooooz  |zo-des-L| yoes N Juad jo [emauay
§1 uoneinBay 00z suoneinBay (syuliag suyaep anig pue Buiwes anid) 600z 1oy Bulawes sy x loosor  [oooor  |zo-des-L | uoe3 N. WIS O LONELEA
(a) so () (1) g uonenBay £00z SuoREINSaY (sYUIag BuydeW gD pue Buwes qniD) 500z 19y Bulqwes ayy| x loooor  [oooor  |zo-des-t| yoes N (Japjoy @jeayiia?) sasiwald gniD) juiad Jojesadp Buysixg
TE| 3 3
A e FONVHI
.mn_ bE020Z | 026102 | ) o LINN m JOUVHD 40 NOILJINIS3a
< 40 31va

Xew 00013




00'GEL  |0O0'0EL 61-1dy-1 yoey 0026 LOOYL | N 3LVIIHILEID 1HOdX3 Aa004| 9°¢
enRy|  [emay| go-idy-1 VSIA 0026 £00%1 | N (824 LIWPY %0} snid) 834 1A Asuabiaw| ()
05vL  [0STh 81-udy-L | Aequad | 0OZB Z0OYE [N 884 Buyjeuuay| (a)
0062 |006Z) |61-idy-L yoe3 i N (pouad yuow g e ul) 32uQ uey| asop shens boqg ji uinay pue y8e)| (p)
0S8 05 L8 6l-ady-| Yoey N S|auuay 0} e pue ajon| (2)
0548  |0S48 6h-ady-L yoe3 N {umoury J) JoumQ 0] Linjay pue 1809 (g)
2 993 Z66) suoneinbay (sbog Aeng) uonosiold [eluswuosaug syl X 00§52 [00GZ | 9L-dy-L yoeg abieyp Aiojnjels - sbop Aeng| (&)
TOYLNOD 904| §°¢
00'€9 0029 61-idy-| yoe3 0Ge8 Lo0YL | | suonesUoYINY jo J3isiBay jo seidon
: LIV NOILD310dd TYLINIWNOXIANI| '€
00465 |00¥8S |6L-Jdy-L yoeg ggﬂv— | $S8UISNg oo Jo Ja)sibay jo saidon
f 10V AL34VS 004| £'¢
00'v} 00'¢cl 61-1dy-| yoe3g 9566 LOOYE I 1951631 Ul saLIUs Jo sa1dor)
; 8861 LOV NOILVIWHOINI AL34VS % LNIWNOUIANIT| Z'€
00'2L 0004 Li-nr-L [ wno jeD 00Z6 900FL (81594 Jo uoneaynuap) ) abieys ino eq| (1)
009¢ |05 Gl-idy-| | oy leg | h&ggve Josay} Hed 1o anoy Jad sysinay (1
00ZhZ |00°202 | 6L-dv-L | MsIA eyl | Zpe6 800l | | usiA e {(1
e . JUBLLIES) | [BIJIALIWOY) - Say2eonpo])| (1)
000  |00'GE 21-Inp-1, yoe3 9%£6 BO0FE i sysi Jwanbasgng | (n
00ZLZ |00L0Z |6L-4dy-L | susing 9yE6 O00PL | 1 SJISIA € JO Juawieas wnwiuiy (1

juewiBal ) dlsawoq - sayaeonpon)| (y)

SHsiA Juanbasgng| (1
1 SHSIA € JO Jusuneasn wnwiuy (1 g
R [ Siuswess | seal4| (6)«

'Ly |o00F L1-Inr-4 yoeg
00'LS  |000S BL-dy-| [ ysia L

o]

I—

1h]
00€9 (0029 | 61-Jdv-) yoe3 : siisip luenbasgns (- D)
0006 [0098) |61-dy-| SUSIA € ] SHSIA £ JO JUBLIESU) WNLLILI o
sjuaweas) bngpag IR

0

i ysia awes buunp sjsau jeuonippy
b juswieal | Ja4
JuaLW|eal | [BIIBWIWOY) - SdSEAp

00’19 |0009 6h-ady-y yoeg
00'Zé  |00°06 6l-ady-1 USIA

| i 1S swes Buunp s1sau [RuoIppY | (1t
| Juduneas] Jad|(1
juswies. | onsswo( - sdsepn| (p)

009y 00'G¥ PAS ! yoe3
002 000L 61-Jdy-| yoeg

1 spsip 31buis [euoppy (1
1 (sisiA ¢) waweas| prepueig|(i
sasiwald uyum sppunbg| (9)

00'LE  |00°0E 6i-1dy-| yoe3
0056 [00'E6 Bl -idy-| yoeg

00'kE  |000E 61-4dy-| yoe3 £PEBO00KL | 1 slhisiA ajbulg [euonippy (1
00'G6 00'€6 Bi-ady-| yoeg EPE6 900PL | ) (sysia g) Juswiess| piepuelg (1
uapseb Jo Buipingino ‘abeJeb ‘pays payoejap ui aaipy| (q)
00'LE  |OO'OE 6i-1dy-1 yoe3 £PE6 900bL | 1 SHsIA ajbuIg [euonippy | (1
BJEJ XSpU| 83U JAWNSUOD JuaLnD 8y A pasesioul usaq el mejaq sabieyd ay) pale)s BsimIaylo ssajun 00'S6 00'e6 BL-ady-| yses SPEBaDobL | 1 (susiA ) useal | piepuelg (i

sjuspoy onisawoq| (e)
TOULINOD LS3d| V'E

H1TVIH TVINIWNOUIANT £

abiieyd j0 |8as) awiLWosas ay) buypsebas uoneue|dx:
42 4O |B8AB] PBPUBLILL Ui buip. neue|dx3y um &-wgm om.wsm — oS &
3 15V1 1INN INNOD2IY ﬂ JOYVYHD 40 NOILdI¥OS3a
F 4031va 12

TTVaH 1V ININNOIANS



1YA pajerowz 7
AUAROY SSaUISNE UON N
LVA woydwaxy 3
1YA 0 anisnpUY |
R IVA
00'/9  |00'09 6L-dy-| | dnop 194 | 9S8 L00PL abuieyo Aunoy |euonippy| (q)
0029 0009 6l-idy-| | Jenaled | BSEE L0OPE ] aouapuodsauo)) ualjup| (e)
5 : B syodas lenjoey Buipnioul §1S3NDIY SSINISNE/HOLIONOS|EVE
0002 0091 6L-1dy-L yoeg 9.830!. I Bumain Joy 1senbay| (&)
0% ALDD|ZVE
00'6E  |00'EE 61-dy-| | [euonippy | B¥ES kOORE | | INoH JleH |leuonippy| (q)
000. |D0'S9 GL-1dy-| | JnoHIsud | GYES FO0PL | | (Buimain Buipnjou) snoy 1sui4f (e) | )
Eare el AFAHNS VHIWVYI NIVHA|LLVE | oy
0085 0008 Gl-1dy-| | noH a4 | 0DZ ..ac! [l abieys ApnoH [euonippy| (q) )
00°29 00'99 §l-ady-| | seuaied | 0026 ¥OOKE | N 2ouspuodsauo) usaium| (8) | o
T RARY SI™INDNI ANV GILYNIWVLNOD|0LE Dnuu
9 ‘Bey '¢ ajqe | 8es gz suonenbey (sebieyn pue swing paquasald) saiyen Jo [esodsiq pue abelois '[ercwisy ay| o ed| X +0008| +00°0S| 8lL-10y-| yoeg 3@008!. AN aoIyap jo |esodsiqg 104| (2) 1
S€3 8UUO| Og+ OE3 8UUOY g1-G') GZIBUUCL G/ - G'E ‘023 BULD|Q'F 013 3|214aA pajgaym om) G| X +00'0k| +00°0L| 8L-ady-| Aneq EBEB FOOVL | N anjeA ul 00013 UBY} 310U YLoM S BRIuaA Ji Aluo ' abelols| (q)
‘Bay 'z a|qeL 98s oz suonenBay (sebieyn) pue SWNg paquosald) SaiuRA 4o [esedsig pue abeloig '[proway B3| O] i3j8Y [ i SABP G JO WNWIXEL B YIIM 8|214ysA 210)S am Aep Aiana Joj aBieyd Ajleq
¥ ‘bay 'L aiqe | 995 gooz suonenbey (sebiey) pue swng paquosald) SaRIYBA JO [esodsi) pue 8beiols ‘eaoway ey orseey| x | +0006L| +00°05L| GL-1dy-| yoeg eREBYOORE | N UOIHIPUOA pe Ul 3|21yS A pauopuRgy (1t
¥ 'Bay ‘| 8|ge | 8as gooZ suonenbay (sebieyn pue swng paquosald) sapiyaA jo [esodsi() pue abeio)s '[eacway oy o) @ey| X +0005L| +000SL| 8L-2dy-L yoeg €866 _v81v N UONIPUOD POOL) Ul 821U A PaUOPUBgY ({1
abiey) ajayap pauopueqy| (e)
3T70IH3A A3NOANVEY| 6'E
lenjoy lenjoy| gi-1dy-| (IS0 [emay | BGE6E LODYE uoIRY Juawsdo3 Buiuualap ul paunou sasuadx3| (6)
0015 00008 | 6l-dy-L | noHJad | OSES LOOFL ¥00Z 12y Buisnoy Japun pansas saofon| (3)
(00'65) |(00#S) | 6L-1dy-L yoe3 (Z6E6 LDOPL [ N awayas piojpue| panaidde jo diysiaquiapy
(000LL) |(0D'BOL) | 6L-dv-| yoeg CBEBE00PL | N SalWwayds uone)paisoe paacidde jo diysiaquuiapy
(0082) [(00£2) |[6L-1dy-L | yoe3 ZBE6 LOOFL | N pasual| aq 0} 8snoy puodsg
: - 1o} suononpaq
00'6/9 (00689 | BL-1dy-| yaey ZBEG LOOFL | N OWH 40§ S20U20r7 Jeaj aAl4 Aojepuep Jo [emauay | (3)
00022 (00GIZ | BL-dy-L yoe3 26E6 L0OYL | N S3SIWAIY PAsUIUN o) 834 |euoippy| (P)
00228 |00'G08 | 6L-idy-| yoe3 Z6E6 LOO¥L | N (OWH) uoniednaoQ aidpiny Ul sasnoH jo Buisuadr Jeak aaly Aiojepuep|( (2)
0082 |004Z BL-ady-| yoe3 09E6 LO0¥L | N ajeoyien) uo sjelaq jo abueyn| (q)
0022k [00¥2L |6L-dy-L | yoe3 09E6 LOOFL | N sajesiyuan uotepowwWoody | (&)
ONISNOH YOLD3S JLVAINd| 8'€
: i (IWIHOS ONILYY INIIDAH GO0H)
OB 1 B0 e Ll it NOILD3dSNI SHH4 3H1L HO4 334 NOILDI4SNI-FY| L€
abseyo jo [9as) USLLILIODas Buipsebau uoneue,
10 JO [aA3] pap a1 Buip. neue|dxg| ws m_ _.m.wsm on.wsu . R %
3 18V 1INN ANNOJ2V H FOUVHD 40 NOLLdIMDS3a
=z 40 31va 19




uonesddy uo adld = ¥Od

vOd YOd BL-3dy-| - 9GEB pO66E | 3 [2ouedwo?) Jo} Alessadan] (e} je i 150 buipesaxa sisenbey - ex3| (a)
X |oosz 00'sZ Gl-idy-| | inoH a4 | BEEBFOBEE | 3 (X 00'0G+3 / Siy g1 1) spunoub 1503 Uo s1sanbal Jo sjesnyay - plepueig| (e)
e ZL NOLLD3S ¥3ANN STDHVHD (VIO4) 19V NOILYWHOANI 40 WOa33u4| o7
sa|doo paisanbau ey} apiaoid o apew |m
abiueyd ou uayl pO'EF PeRIXE 10U SAOP (anoqe Sales ay) Ie) abieyd (e1o) aul 4 : BN
- uonesliddy uo adld = vOd
YOd| 61-10y-1| - $G06 pOBGE | 3 SjuawWssINgsi( pue sasuadx3y snoaue|@asing| (U)
X |oos2 0062 Gl-4dy-| | InoH Jed 96E6 POBBE | | ‘0)8 LOIeLLIojUI Jo BUNIBYd pue LoIIoepal 'uoie||jo2 ‘ustiedo| Joj $1s00 Jels| (6)
056G 0s'c 61-ddy-| yoe3 mum.woasm ] 20lAaQg pPNoiD / [BUOd Jeulo Jo gSNn 'gAd ' 0luo eiep jo uononpouday| (4)
SZ'h SZ'L 8l-udy-| | ebeqiad | 9SE6POGBE | | 0w - Jaded [ewsou "aliym pue yoelq ‘piepuels ‘Buiuud Jo Adosojoud| (3)
G0 580 g1-udy-| | ebeq o4 | 96ES ¥OBEE | | |v - Jaded |ewiou 'sllum pue xoe(q ‘piepuels ‘Bunuud Jo Adosojoud| (p)
ob 0 SH'0 gl-idy-| | obedsad | DGEEFOBEE | | 2y - Jaded jeunou ‘ajiym pue yoejq ‘piepuels ‘Bunuud o Adodojoud| (2)
GL'0 G0 gl-sdy-| | abedq sad mn@g% 1 gV - Jaded [euiou ‘Sliym pue %oejq 'piepuels ‘Bunuud o Adoosojoud| (g)
0L'0 oLo Gl-idy-| | abed o4 | GGEE LOGEE .._. Py UIW - Jaded [eujou ‘aliym pue yoe|q ‘piepuels ‘Bunuud Jo Adosojoyd| (e)
MEB| @SBD/0D| Wolj auepint wyiw aul u seold - 8seasdu) ON SADUVHD (¥13) SNOILYTNDIY NOILYWHOLNI TV INIWNONIANT| 9%
uonesddy uo adld = YOd
X |vod vOd 61-idy-| yoe3 N (1@ J@isibay paxsew 'isisibas uado) sialsibal Jo aeS| (p)
x |ooo 000 6-idy-| yoeg N uonessibal jeaucisiy jo jooud ualiupa| (9)
X |000 000 61-1dy-| uoe3 N sjuawnaop jo buipsemiod| (q)
X looo 000 6l-10y-| yoeg N uonesisibal jo jooud usnum| (e)
S3DIAYIS TVHOLIII| SV
8SEBIOUION| X oo'e 86-1dy-| use3 I (spsom po1 Jad doz xew L0inels) SMy1AE 40 S3IdOD| ¥
X |08l o8aL gl-idy-1 | 1un yoe3 suonsenb usiium umg| (y)
x |08l o8l gi-idy-| [ wunyoeg 88 |aased |euclippy YH6ZNOD| (B)
x Joal o8l gL-idy-| | Jun yoe3 93} jsoJed jeuonippy LOTI| O
X |odl 281 gL-4dy-1 [ 1un yoe3 (yoea g'g pue |-L' | 0) sbay Buiping 6ZNOD| ()
X [o8L o8l gL-idy-1 | Jun yoe3 (Uoea zz-¥ suonsanp) |euondo 6zuad| (p)
610Z 1890100 || - peadey |lew3 sad| X |0066 (0006 | @i-dv-i | yosess sad yoieag ¥EZNOD| (2)
6102 12qOj20 || - paalgdey jlewd Jad) X |00°0E 0092 gl-Jdy-| | yoJeas jad yaseas 1017 {a)
X |osL o8l 8i-1dy-| | youeas sad (lersawwod ¢ [enuapisey) (H6ZUeD pue OT1) Uoieag |Ind| (e)
(0771) S3DUVYHO ANV V20| £F
uonesiddy uo 8dud = ¥Od
X vOd YOd| 61-1dy-i - 3 ‘018 Sall|euad BANRASILILPY [ IAI] Snosue|SasI| (%)
X vOd vOd| 61-1dy-1 - 3 S834 pue s1s0)) “oj sobuenp 'sjeunqu) 'spnog snoaueRosiy| (1)
YOd YOd| 61-10y-| - g sluswasingsig pue sasuadxy snoaue|@osiy| (1)
00'L8 0009 Bi-sdy-| | Jnoy ad | (payiienty-uon) sejey ALnoH snoaue(@osi| (U)
2184 X8pU| 80l JAWNSUDY) 1UBLIND ay) AQ paseasdu| uaaq asey molaq sebieyd auy) palels aSImMIBYI0 SSaIUn 00ZZE 000z |Bi-4dv-1 | Jnoyusd I (payllenD) sajey AlncH snoaue|@osiy| (B)
Ajuo |dD) 0502 0002 61-4dy-| | 20p yoeg T syuawnao( (euibuQ jo uoeayan| ()
Ao 14D 00ty |oozy 1-sdy-1 | 20p yde3 i s8)eolan ‘siinepyy ‘sjuawsiels ‘'suoneiejaeg Aoinies| (a)
Ao |40 00'er o'z BL-4dy-| | 185 yoeg I saunbug Ausdosd poyeseaT / ploysaid| (p)
vOd| 61-4dy-1 | 18s yoeg I ‘9je sjuswsaiby Jeuip 'seausdl 'saseat ‘satiseyn ‘sieysuel) [eiswwon| (9)
Aluo 14D 00°0L9 {00009 ([6L-idy-L | 12s uyoeg I ‘018 sjuawaaiby JsylQ ‘seousdln ‘'sasean ‘sabieyd ‘siajsues) xadwon| (g)
Ao |42 0L'S0E |0000E |6L-idy-L | 198 Yoy [ "0ja sjuswesiby JaylQ 'saouadr 'sasea 'sabieys ‘siapsues) adwig| (e)
S3IDIAYIS FALLVHLSININGY / TVO3T| ZV
Ao 1dD DO'Er 00ZF 61-1dy-1 | 20p yoeg m@ﬁ@vﬁm@m a il ‘0@ sjugwnnsy) ‘spaaq ‘siuawaalby 'sioenuon |eba snoaueeosiy| (p)
Ajuo |dD 0S'GL 00°GlL 6i-4dy-| | 185 Use3 9026 10T0E | Z (AjuQ AdoD-pieH) sainuiw| (2)
Auo |40 0602 0002 6l-idy-| | 185 yoegy Do«m Lozee {2 (Ajup Adon-pJeH) sjuswnooq puncibyaeq g suoday 'sepusby| (q)
Ao 14D 004€  [00°6E i-dy-| | 195 uoE3 | 8026 10208 | Z {AjuQ Adop-pien) yoog 18bpng ¥ Hoday [enuuy| ()
3 ) SINIWND0A TNINNOD A3NILH3D / IVIDILAA0 40O S3IdOD| b
S3OHNOSIY FLVYHOJIHOD
8D1EY3 J0 |aAa] POPLALIIOII 1) BUIPIEhal UONBUER|aXT mum_ 3 ) {— ‘.waou
®
3| "E00%|FE2 ) svr | uwn | uNnodov | 39UVHD 40 NOILAINOS3T
= 40 31va 19

~ Page 20 ~



Bsw g0 1p

jeA pajel-oiez 7
>:>=U€. SsauIsSNg UON N
1vA woyjduexg 3
1VA jo amsnpu| |
LT
abieyd Jo [aA3| pepualLodal 8y} buipiebes uoneuedx
U3 10 (oA pap U3 buipiebes uoneue|dxg ﬁ _.N.wuom _&.MSN S— 000 |,
E 15V 1IN INNOJOY | < 29YVHD 40 NOILINOS3a
g 40 31va 9

~ Page 21 ~



jeA paeJ-0i87 7
AJARDY SSBUISNE UON N
1vA woydwsexy 3
LVAJo anisnppoup |
A8y IVA
1WA JO BAISNIDUI PUB JS02 [BNIOE SE(LF JO 1SO0) ‘Papnjoul uaaq ) ot 2. ? .
Alsnoiasid Jou sey siy) Ing $qoy o) 013 pebieys Ajjuenna aie sjueus) - abieyo maN 0004 VN VN 4oe3 29¢6 1000} ! §40y JOOp |EUNLIOD) 66
uoHE|UI Ylim aul| Ul esealou) 0002 08'6L 6lL-1dy-1 | ApnoH P566 0511 3 saijijioe) uayopy pue sbunol eunwwo)| 8's
UOIRJUI YlIM BUK Ul 9se8IU| 05'9L 0L'91 6L-idy-L | ApnoH vSS6 L0811 e | (swayos Buisnoy passljays) abuno| [BUNWWOY - aliH wooy| L'
UOoNE[JUI UM Ul Ui eSealou) 0S8 0S8 Bl-ady-L | Aeem | 8096 J0SLL 1 (%G Jo @jes [vA) obelols 1910005 Joj abieyd| 9'g
UOIBUI YIIM BUI| Ul 8SB8.0U| 0091 0SSt 6L-1dy-L [ ubBIN 0096 LOZ¥L 3 UCI}EPOLULLIODOE [9]0Y 10} UOINGUIU0D |Buosiad| §°
swes eyj ulewsy (6] 8 or'Ly 6-1dy-| yoe3g 95e6 £0021 a3} uonessiuiwpe suondo BuisnoH| #'§
UOREHUI Y1IM BUil| Ul 8seslou| 0662 00'S2 6L-1dy-L | Apeam | 0096 LOZrL 3 ableyo |9)soH| €°G
LWEeS ayj ulewsy 06'ZF 062y BL-1dy-| yoeg 2556 00T 85BU2INd SSNOH JOj SUBOT &1 Salleuuonssny | Z2's
UOHE}UI YJIM BUI| Ul 8sB2.0U| 00'¢ce ov'ie 6lL-1dy-1 | BN 2686 L0511 3 SWwooy 1s8n9 jo 8sn| L's
ONISNOH
abBieyo Jo |9A8] papuawiwodal ay} Bu| 1ebol uoneue)dxg] ¥ M
e ; ) s m rm-wwnn oﬂMEN i o =
> 18V LINN INNODJDV M JOUVYHD 40 NOILdIYNOS3a
= 40 31va 19

BNISNOH

~ Page 22 ~



188
Ajjeusayxg

00°0L

00°891L
o0o'8ly
00°LEL

00°891

00°ZZ¥

00'622

0078

0089
00691
00°0L¥

00°6EL
28914

00°g91

00'GL¥

00°'Gce

00'0¢8

6l-1dy-|
6lL-1dy-|
6L-1dy-|
6L-idy-|
V/N

61-idy-1

6l-1dy-|

6L-1dy-|

61-1dy-|

00¢6 20102
0026 20102
0026 20102
0026 20102

0026 20102

0026 20102

0026 20102

0026 20102

W w o

‘uojsbipn pue AgpeQ Jo ybnoiog a8y} Jo JUapISal UoU & JO 9SED Ay} Ul 3|gnop ale sableyd anoqe ay |
JUapISay UON

Sausy jo Bupsness y

“HNeA 1o aAelb e ul sulewsal pajewsid Jo Jusulaiul ay) 10

'sieak Z| papaadxa ylesp Jo awi ay) je sbe asouym uosiad vy

'sieaf g| pseoxe Jou pIp INg YIUOW 8UO Papaadxa Yjeap Jo awy sy je abe asouym p|iyo v

"YlUOLU 8UO0 paadxa Jou pIp Yiesp jo awi) ay) e abe asoym pjiyo vy

juspisay

-1 9ABIS) B Ul Juswialu| 104

IAVHEO NOWWOD HO JLVAIHd V NI - LNIJWHILNI

jueoldde Jad z jo wnwixew e o} pajiwi| st Ausjewa) uoisbipp ul sjojd uoiewsald Jo sjo|d |eung Jo aseyoind
Kisyawa) AgqpeQ 1e paniwuad Jou S| 8ouBApE Ul S}ojd uoleLLRIO JO [BLNG JO 8seyding

‘uonejol Ul Ajuo s|gejiese

Speuw aq [IIM SalI8aWad ay) yloq 1. |eung Jo sjybu saisnjoxa pue juswisiul oy saoeds aAeib Jo uoneoo|e sy
‘S310ON

"s1eak (g Jayuny e Joj ‘paseyaind A|snoiaaid aaelb e ui [eung Jo 1yBry JO JUBIS) JO paa(] 8yl pusixe o

sieak 0| Jo pouad e Joj UsAIB SI YoIym [eUNg JO JUBID JO paa(] BY) JO aNSSI 8L} 8pNjouUl SA0GE S88) 8|

uoisbipn pue AgpeQ jo ybnolog ay} jo Juapisay UON € JO 2SeO au) Ul pa|ga.) aie sabieyo anoqe ay |

Juspisay UON

((wwpg/) .9,z Bulpaadxa Jou jelowaw 1o} 83} uoneolidde sepnjoul 'S)19)sED OM)

Jojj0(d ajbuis &) Aisjswa) uoisbipy Jo Ausjawa) AqpeQ Je aouelquIsWaY JO UspIES ay) Ul Jojd sulews) pajewsaln
((wwpgy)

.9 ,Z Buipeaoxa jou |eliowseuw Joj 83} uoiesijdde sapnjoul (abe jo sieaA z| Buipnjoul pue o} dn pliyo e Joj Aislawan
uoisBipp Jo Aisjawa) Agpe(Q jo uonoas s,ualp(iy2 8y} Ul [BUNG U0 auo 1oj arelb a|buis ) aaelb s.ualpiiyn
fwwogy) .9,z Buipsaoaxa jou

leowsaw Joj 88} uoneosidde sepnjoul :sj@ysed Use xis 0} dn pue sjeunq uiod omj Joj anelb ajbuis e) anelb ynpy
juspisay

IVING 40 LHOIY JAISNTOX3 ANV IAVHO 40 ISVYHIHNd

"Pa|gNop aq ||Im 88} Juawialul 8y} sinoy
asay} Jo episino sbupjooq Jo4 (Aepud) wdpp'z pue (Aepsiny] 03 Aepuojy) wdg L ¢ SI pa}00q 8q UEBD JUSLLIB)UI
ue ey} swy 1sele| sy} :(shepu uo wdpg'z) wdgy' 0} WeQE: 6 WOl Sjuswuialul 1oy uado ale salajawan) ay|

S3¥ILINID

(a)
(A
(Al
(1
(n
(1
(e)

z9

(1
&)

(9)
(1

~ Page 23 ~

3
Lz-0zoe

3
02-6102

JONVHD
1SY1
40 31va

3002
AINNODOV
19

VAT

JOUVHO 40 NOILdIMOS3a

CEIEETEIER]




SNOINVTIIISIN| 99
suolneondde || yym pasojous aqg 0} aie s99
‘JUaWNUOW 8y} O UO0[10a.1a ay) Jalje uaye) UONOE UB Se pauyap si uondiuosul [euonippe uy
"pPanoLal aq |[IM P3J|EISUl JI pue (Uoisua)xg
Aayawan ucisbipy ‘B:a) Alajawan umen se pajeubisap Alajawsd Jay)la JO SUOHDSS 9SO} JO SoUBIqUIBSLISY
JO suspJes) ay} ul pamojje jou ale (wwpg/) 9,z Buipasdxa sjeuowsl pue sauojspeay ‘sbuibps qisy
‘S3I1ON
00°6% 00'8Y 61-1dv-| | 0026 20L0Z | | 99} uoljeJjsiulipe - |eLowaw Bunsixa Jo Juawaoelday| ()
00°6¥ 008y 6L-idy-1 | 0026 20L0Z | | uonduosul isuly dy) Jaye uonduosul yoes 1o4| (p)
00°L6 00'S6 61-1dv-L | 0026 20L0Z | | (WwQQL X WwogL) suly X sulg Buipssox3|(il
00°L9 00°09 6L-idy-L | 0026 20L0Z | | (Wwoo| x wwg|) suly X suig Buipsaox3 JoN|(1
‘Aglawan) AgpeQ Je aduelquiaway JO Uaples) ay) 1e |euowsaw ayj uo anbe|d paguosul ue ade|d o} Jybu ayy Jo4| (2)
00'6Z2 00'GZZ 6lL-1dy-1 | 0026 20)0Z i (moj2g g3 10N 9@8s 1nq) anelb e 1ono Jo Buisojous suojsie|d 1o suoisiaplog ‘auoisqey| (q)
0002 00°00Z 6l-1dy-1 | 0026 20102 | (molaq S31ON 29s Ing) (Wwg/ JaAo) uig 1z Buipasoxa|(lll
00°Z0L  |00°00L 6L-1dy-| | 0026 20L0Z | | (wwpgz o) wwEg) uIg Yz Buipasoxa jou Ing 3| Buipasoxa|(il
00'LL 0002 6l-1dy-1 | 0026 20L0Z | | (wwpog) wbtay ur | Buipssoxa oul(!
9Seq pue 3SBA ‘19|qE]} |BLIOWSLW 0 duoispeay v !
‘lounon) ay) Jo (eacsdde 0y 19algns Jnea Jo aaelb e uo aoe|d 1o 10818 0} Jybu ay) Jo4| (&) M
SNOILJI¥OSNI ANV S1378VL ‘SINOLSIAVYO ‘SINIWNNOW| 59 |
©
o
00°006 00688 6L-1dy-L | 0026 20L02 | 3 Uy x us|(n !
00°SLL'L |00G60°L |6L-dv-L | 002620102 | 3 u6 x us|(!
-nea 10 aaelb pajiem e jonujsuoo o) jJybu sy Jo4| (e)
S1INVA ANV SIAVHD AITIVM| +'9
000°L3 JO wnwixew e 0} pajiwl| aq ||im ajgeaidde ataym Apisqns (1ouno) ay |
HONONOE JIHL NIHLIM L3W 39 LONNVO SAI3N HLIV4 Y¥IHM LO1¥1SIa LNIHI4410 V NI LNIAISTH V 40 TvIHNg| €9
ajendoidde ataym anelb e jo BuiBBip ayy spnjoul sabiieyd anoge ay |
‘310N
00'siz  [000IZ 6L-idv-L | 0026 2Z0L0Z | 3 'Sjuapisal uou pue sjuapisal 1oy (A1 pue (1 (11 (1 ye sabieyo aroge pue
1BA0 901]0U SINOY $Z UBY) SS3| YIIM SUIBLIS] PAJEWSIO 0 82110U SINOY g UBY) SS8] yim |eunq Joj abieyo jeuonippy| (2)
g X £ J JONVHD 3002
© | Le-020zZ | 02Z-6L0C =
3 1Sv1 LNNOJDV W.n J9UVHI 40 NOILdIYOS3a
= 40 31va 19

EETEER]




1VA pajel-oie7
AlIAOY ssauisng uop
1WA wouy ydwaxg
LVA O SAIsn[ou|

RS IVA

Z
N
3
|

‘ybnoiog sy} wolj panow yleap jo ajep ay) Buipaasaid AjgjeipaiuLul

syjuow g 8y} uiym pey Ing (siow Jo) sieak aANNIasuU0D G Joy ybnolog syl uIylm papisal pey oym uosiad y
HO awoy Buisinu Jo [enuapisal ay) o} Buinow Buipasoaid Ajsleipawiwi (8iou 1o)

sieak aAlNdasU0D G 8y} 10} YbBnolog sy} uiyum SSaIppe Ue Je papisal pey Jng s$9| 10 siesA ¢ 1oy ybnolog ay) Jo
apisino (Juswysi|gelss Jejiwis 1o) awoy Buisinu Jo [eluSpISal B Ul papIsal ‘Yieap JO s} 8y} 1e peYy oym uosiad v
¥O yieap Jo a1ep ayy Buipasoaid

Aj@1eipawiwi sieak @ANN2asuU09 G Joj ybnolog ay) UIyiim Ssalppe aleaud e je papisal pey oym uosiad

-SE pauysp sl IN3QIS3Y € sjusuwusiul Jo4

ybBnolog au) uiylm ssaippe swoy jusuewlad e sey ‘Buif|dde jo swiy 8y} e ‘oym uosiad v

'Se pauljap s! INIQISIY € |eung Jo Jybiy Jo Juels jo sseyoind 104

1N3dIS3d WY3L IHL 40 NOILLINI43a

(m

— o~

~ Page 25 ~

00°G9l 00022 6L-1dy-L | 0026 20L0Z | 3 10/d 19)seD - (s|encidde Aiojnjels pasinbal ey} 0 102(gns - JapjoH paaq Ag peisanbal alaym) uonewnyxg| (y)
0004y  |00°029 61-1dv-L | 0026 20L0Z | 3 Jo/d |eungq - (sjeaoldde Aiojnje}s pauinbai sy 0} Jo8lqns - JapjoH peaq Aq paisenbal sisym) uonewnyx3| (6)
002kL (0000 61-1dv-| | 0026 20102 | | (Iounog Aq pajlelsul pue papiaoid) Jess [eHOWSW & spiemo) uoljeuod| ()
00%0Z [0000Z |6L-idv-L | 002620102 | | uojeuoq - seaJ |eowaw jo Bunueld pue aseyoind| (a)
00ZLL  |000LL 61-1dv-1 [ 0026 20102 | | |esauny sad - Aigjawa) uoisbip Je jadey) ayy jo asn| (p)
V/N : SWwIo4 JusLwuiaiul Jo adoN| (2)
00°LE 00°0€ 61-4dv-| | 0026 20L0Z | N Anus jo saidod pajeoyiua)|(1)
0001 0001 6l-1dv-1 | 0026 20L0Z | N Inoy ued Jo unoy Jad - uosiad ul - sig)sibal jo yoleag
00°'L€ 00'0€ 61-1dv-L | 0026 20L0Z | N noy Jed Jo unoy Jad - jels |punog Aq sisjsibal jo yoseag|(1)
‘woJjesay) syoelxe pue se1doo ‘sisisibal jo seyoleag Joy| (q)
00°€S 002 61-1dv-1 | 0026 20L0Z | N diysiaumQ anels) Jo saysuel] | (e)
e x| 3 ¥ laonveo| 3002
® - - g -
m R ORORG IR0 D 1sv1 INNODOV u IDYVHI 40 NOILLI¥OS3a
= 40 31va § )

CEIRETE[TER]




x 10L'v3 0LEF 00'¥3 09'E3 gl-uer-1 ] Aead Yo - siuua] a|qel| (6
x |5¢'G3 06'v3 j0E°S3 SLY3 gl-uer-L || jead - sluua] ajge] | (4
x 10SvEF 0SPEF 06°eed 0S°EE3 glL-uer-1 || %ead 4o -spis eanld| (s
x |00°L¥3 0£°Zv3 GO'Sr3 0L'L¥3 gL-uer-L | {ead -apiseand| (p
x |S9v3 0Zv3 05'v3 SOv3 glL-uer-| || Buiwiow 8y eapoy| (2
x J0E'63 SE'83 _oo.mu 0183 Ll-ddy-1 | Mead JO - uojuiwpeg| (q
x 10£°LL3 0Z'oL3 00°L1L3 06'63 Li-ady-L | yead - uojuiwpeg| (e
TIVH S1¥0dSs| L2
F™ULNID FHUNSIFT SAONVIMHY
X JSL'S3 S9'¥3 0063 0SS 73 gl-uer-p |} suoissasuon)| (g
X |SL'63 SO¥3 _oo.mu 0s'v3 gL-uepr-L |} unpy| (e
VYNNVS| 92
x 100813 0S°LL3 gl-uer-L || spienfay| Joy abieyg enx3| (g
x 100693 00293 gL-uer-L || siH |ooyag Buung| (e
3¥IH 8N / (sanoy jooyos Buunp) 3M¥IH TOOHIS| §'L
l
x 10¥'¥13 00'¥L3 gl-uer-p || Jlounp| (q e
x 105923 05923 gL-uer-L | unpy| (e N
S1193a 103HI1a WIMS| ¥4 m
«
x |008L3 0S°LL3 gL-uer-| || spJenbayi Joj abieyn enx3| (g Al
x 1000EL3 00°0EL3 glL-uer-L (eauy poo4 uiayy /jood utiyy ) - saped| (e 1
JYIH JLVAIRD| €L
x |00'6L3  |GZLLF  |006L3  |STULLI glL-uer- |3 (uz/L) L1 aeaud| (q
x 109°L3 GL93 G193 S2°93 gl-uer-L (3 Jownpainpy| (e
HNOH Z/L / SNOSS3T TOOHIS WIMS| 24
X 1Gp'G3 06'v3 0e°63 SLP3F glL-uer-L || enby| (4
x [00€3 0L'e3 0L'v3 SLEF gl-uepr-L [ NPy uoissas ajgejepul| (2
x |00'€3 0LZ3 0623 09'Z3 gL-uer-L || Jounr uoissas ajqejeyu|| (p
X 100E3 0423 0623 09'¢C3 gl-uer-1 |} suolssasuo)| (2
x [00'€E3 0Le3 0623 09'¢3 glL-uer-| || Jownr| (g
x |0Z'¥3 08'€3 oL'v3 0L€3 gl-uep-L || anpy| (e
NOISS3S/ SNOISSINGY| L2
ST00d ONINWIMS
JoBHUOS 2} Jad se uoneyui Jo ajel ay) Aq pasealoul saaud ||y
= = (W7S) @3LINIT INFWIDVYNYIN FHNSITT SIHOdS
abieyd Jo [aas| papuawiwodal ay) buipiebal suoneuejdxy Y 3 ) 3 3 F—_—
SEy i B L s
5| 02°40°L0 | 02°LO°LO | 6L°LO°LD | 6L°LOLO =
8| sequep pien sequisly pieo 18v1 M 39HVHI 40 NOILdI¥OS3a
=1 uoN ainsia uoN ainsjeq | 70 31V0

NNY A TIVNHILXT) SIHINGD SuNSIa1




AIAnoy ssauisng uoN N

1A wolydwexy 3

LvAjoanisnpu| |

= K3y IVA

x 10€€3 00€3 0Z'e3 06'23 gL-uep-L || (pausisibay) pajqesig| (o

x 1663 00'%3 o3 SBEF gl-uepr-1 | uoIssag / uoissaouo)| (q

x 106°L3 GL'93 0E'L3 §5°93 glL-uer-L || uoissag /inpy| (e
B/u e/u (19sn |ensed) WAD| 6L

BfU B/U

x 108'EF 0G€3 0LEF 0V'e3 glL-uer-1 || suoissag aoue( Jounp| (8

X eju e/uf gr-uep-| || su0Issag anuiw gof (p

X 1S€'13 §9'93 SL'L3 S+'93 glL-uer-L || SU0ISSaS AINUIW G| (0

X 10003 0003 gl-uer-| || suoissag aynuiw og| (q

x |see3 GEEF SZ'eF GZEe3 gL-uep-1 | InosIop 3PAD| (e
olanis| 8.

wﬂmzu JO |3A8] papuswiLodal 3y} m:__ﬂumw. suoneuejdxy 3 3 3 3 3
"2l oz1o10 | oz'1o'ko | erborto | eucrorko | FONVHO |
8 | soquew | pies . |aequmpt] Pnies lsv1 |% IDYVHO 40 NOILdI¥DS3a
it UuoN ainsian uoN ansian 4031va

TNNY ATIVNHILXS) SIHLNID JdNSIF1

~ Page 27 ~




dpg / punod jsaieau 0} pspunol pue |49 Je 9seaioul

dpg / punod }saJeau 0) Papunol pue |47 e aseadul
dpg / punod jsaJesu 0} papunol pue |42 Je asealoul
dpg / punod jsaieau 0) papunol pue |40 1e aseasoul
dg / punod 1Saieau 0} PapUNOI PUB |40 1B 8SEaJDUI

dpg / punod j$8ieau 0} PBpUNDI PUB |4 JE 8Sealoul
dpg / punod jsaleau 0} papunod pue |40 JE 8sealoul
dpg / punod jsaieau 0) papunol pue |4J Je asealsul
dpg / punod 1s81e3U 0) pApPUNC PUB |40 1B 8SEaldul
dps / punod 1SaJeau 0) Papunol pue |47 i 8sealsul

dpg / punod }Saieau 0} papunol pue |40 JE 8Sealoui
dpg / punod }saJe3U 0] PapuUnol pue |47 Je 8seaioul
dpg / punod }sa1eau 0} pEpUNo. PUe |49 Je asealoul

dpg / punod jsaiesu 0} papunol pue |42 je aseasoul
dpg / punod jsaieau 0} papunol pue |40 je asesloul

00'LE

oSy

05'8¢
00'9r
0516

ooel
0s 8l
00891
05'S2
056}

oozl
058}
00891

_oo_ 4
059l

0oy

0S v
0068

00'0e
VIN
ooy
Q0'8¢
00'sy
0006

st
00’8l
00591
00'se
0061

0S'LL
0081
00sel

0502
009t

YN
oge

SLEY
0948

61-1dy-|
G-idy-)
gl-idy-|
gl-ady-|
gl-1dy-|
gl-1dy-L

61-10y-L
61-1dy-|
6l-1dy-|
61-1dy-|
6l-1dy-|

6-1dy-|
6l-10y-|
6l-1dy-|

6l-1dy-1
61-1dy-|

yoe3

uossad Jad
yoe3
yoe3
yoe3

yoe3

yoe3
nsodaq
INOH Ja4
INoH Jad

yoe3
yoe3
nsodag

InoH Jad
INOH Jad

BES6 20002

0£S6 20002

2£S56 €000
0€56 0002
0ES6 20002
0£56 <0002

€56 60002

6266 $0002
€56 $000Z

——uuww

B TTR T

Wb

(480 Alojonponul Jeak auo) Jaquiaw map - 18421 | uoseag
wea| Bulisip

uosiad Jad - }aya1] AunoH

(g} Japun) Jownp - 19491] Uoseas

1NPY - 1801 UOsSEsS jIeH

HUNPY - 18)01] UOSEsg

simog

SANNOHUD NOILVIHIIY

papunjaJ Jou aaj aJIy - 801jou SAep / UBY) SS8| UlIM SUONE||8OUBD)
aaj ally jo

9,GZ UInjal - SAep , Uey) aiow Jng SAep {| UBY} SS3| SUONE||8oUET)
33} 31y JO %08

uInjas -sAep | UBY) 2J0W JNQ S¥98M g UBL] SS3| SUONE||SIUED

@9) ally Jo

9,G/ UINjal - $%98M § UBL) 240U JNg $%98m g LBy} SS8| Uoie||aouen
23}

341 JO %001 WIMal - 320U SHIOM g UBL} BI0W U]IM UOIE||2oUED)
J¥IH WOOY 40 NOILYTT3DNYD

spiemuo wdg

woly Bupooq sinoy ¢ jo ableyd wnwiuiw - a4y Buiuaaa Aepinies
(Aep Bunjiom sad abieyo) sAay jo uinjal sje

(molaq (a) o) uonippe u1) sAay 1s0| Joj abieyn

(1ed Jo ||ny) Buyoogq sad ysodap s|gepunjey

as [eloJswiWwa)

a5 [BI2JAWWOCD) UON

[IIH uioyiAy |

3led aquieon

Suoljired ?jqeLVvA - 4NOH ¥3d 3dIH WOOY

(Aep Buppiom Jad abieyd) sAay jo uinjal aeT]

(mofeq () o} uonippe u) sAay 1s0| Joj abieyn

(ued 1o ny) Bupyooq Jad ysodap sjgepunjay
splemuo wdg

wouy Bunjoeq sinoy  jo abieyds wnwiuiw - any Buuans Aepinieg
s |elvaWwwWon)

8 |BI0JBWLLIOY) UON

|BI2J2UWILIOD UOU - 3JJUID SBBYD) JA}EM
|BI2I3WWOD - 31U S3|UBY ) JA}BAA

peoy spuejdn

1IBUNN elleYS

|BI2JOWIWOD UOU - 2JJUa)) Jaal4

|BI242WIWOD - 3JJUSY) 13914

peoy Agelg

suoljired ydwax3 YA - Y4NOH ¥3d IHIH NOOY

FHIH NOITIAVD ANV SONNOHD NOILYIHITY

(1A
(A

(mr
(m
(n

I
(e)
£8

(8)
(p)

(a) q
(e) ¢
z8f
()

(p)
(9)

(g)
(e)

~Page 28

aBIBLD JO |9A3] PApURLILIODa] alj) bujpiebal uojEue|dxX]

3

e

Ajjeusayx

3
1Z-0202

3
LZ-0z0zZ
pseo

2ins|a

3
0z-6102

3
02-6102
pie)
ainsie

JONVHO
1sv1
40 31va

1INN

3002
INNODIV
19

NOITIAY

VAT

JO¥VHOI 40 NOILdI¥OS3a

dvd




00'00E 00'0S2 6l-1dy-| | Aeqiad |Z566 20002 | 3 Aep 1ad - punoig jo asn (1
uleb [eiouaWwwoo Jog SBHIANDY - SBIBD pue saja4| (u)
(enoge se syisodap Jayjo yoalew o)) (4D snid ggL3F 00'89L ‘pasn s| uoljined
al1aym (1ued Jo nj) Buijooq suods yo-suo Joj isodap ajgepuniay | MIN
(souBINSUI pue $}03UD AI0JoBSIES 1VA + 02 1VA+
01 Jo8lgns) suoissas Yleay / spods Jaalep o) uieb [euosiad 99'6l
10} syded Buisn siojoruisul paiyenb Joy s| pue abieys mau e si siy| sasodinid ssaulsng Joj syJed Buisn si0jonisul a1eAld | MAIN
(siseq uginbe. uo BLLL 00'LL (2198 LYA
JilH wouiAy ] jo asn saxo- uoisBIpn s1an00 Jenoiued ul) ableys meN lI'H uwioufy | pue yied aqwoon) pa)ooq si yopd ou aieym
syled uo sanialoe s,ualp|IyD 1o} swooJ Buibueys | 1aji0} Jo asn I MIN
(11H wouAy ] pue yied aqwoog 1daoxa) |yA
wouj Jdwaxa aie ‘Jayiabo) paxyooq alow Jo saydjew | jo sburoog
; Ajuo yoyd aige | YA UON 3iBd MO|lIM
dpg / punod jsaiesu o) papunol pue |47 Je asealoul 0502 0002 61-4dy-| | Bupjooq Jag Ajuo youd ajge ] YA Hied MO|jIAA
s1amoys/swool Buibueyo yim s|qe | A UCN IBd MOIIAA
dQg / punod }saleau ) papunol pue [4) Je asealu| 00'iy 000 6L-1dy-| | Bunjooq lag slamoys/swool Buibueyd yim ajge | YA Yed MOI|IAA
(sg| J8pun) SWes} YINOA / I0IUN[ - SISPUNGY
Aluo youd 8jge | YA UON Hied MOJlIM
dg / punod jsalesu 0} papunol pue |40 Je asealoul 000 0562 6L-1dy-| | Bunjoogq Jad : Ajuo youd a|ge | WA Yed MOjIIAn
siamoys/swoos Buibueyo yum ajqe] YA UON HIBd MOJ|IA
dog / punod 1s8ieaU 0] papunol pue |dD 1B 8sealoul 00'09 0065 6L-1dy-| | Bupjooq Jag S1amoys/swood BulBueyd Yim ajge | WA Sded MOJIIA
} (sg| 18AQ) sgn|D JOIUAS - SIBPUNOY
(IiH uioyhy L pue sued agquood jdaoxa) | A l
s woyj Jdwaxs ale 'Jayiabo) payoog asow 1o sayodjew (| jo sbupoog o))
Go-idy-| | Bunyoog Jag cmmmnooow 8pIS B G - Yled |euowapy aoead|(in | N
L£SBZ000Z B|geLYA UON 3.ed Mojjip ()
dpg / punod }saieau 0} papunod pue |49 18 asealoul 0009 00'68 6L-4dy-| | Buryoog Jaq ommwwoaow., 3|qe 1 VA ed mojian] (A m
LES620002 S|geLYA UoU Mied pecy Aqejg (a
dog / punod }seieau 0} papuUNo. PUB |4) 18 asea.aul 00'09 00'65 L-1dy-| | Bunjoog Jod | 8EGEZ000Z 3|qeL1VA ed peoy Ageig (a1l |
dpg / punod }saieau O} papUNC. PUB |47 1B 358a1oul 00°08 0065 gL-1dy-| | Buiyoog Jadq ..mmmmuaaow ajey PIEPUEBIS 1B | YA O} 193[qns - Yied aqwaoo)|(m
LES620002 8|gB [ YA UOU Jied peoy spueldn
dpg / punod 1S91BaU O} PAPUNOI PUE |47 1B asealoul 0009 0065 61-1dy-| | Bupjoog Jad | 8ES620002 8|qe | VA Nied peoy spueidn i
dog / punod }saieau 0} papunol pUE |40 1B 8sea.oul 0009 00'65 61-1dy-| | Bunjoog Jod | GESE 2O00T (siemoys yum)
3)eJ pIBPUBIS 1B | YA 01103[qns - anua) Auunwwo) [jiH uloyihy |
(sg| J8nQ) sqn|D Jowuag - |legioo4| (a)
dog / punod 1sa1e8U O} PApUNOL PUE |47 18 9SBaloul 0502 0002 6l-1dy-| | Bunjoog Jad | ZES620002 | 3 {n
dog / punod Jsaieau o} papunol pue |49 1e aseasoul Q0 Ly 00°0% 6L-1dy-} | Bunjoog sod | 9EGEZ000Z | | {1
: : (s1eah g1 - 0L) suInoA - (legiood| (p)
dpg / punod jsalesu 0} papunol pue |42 1e 8seasoul 00891 00'G9l 6l-1dy-| | Bunicog Jed | 9ES6Z000Z | | (318Y PJEPUEIS 1B | WA 01 103[gNS - jied aqwoo)) Awspeay (1l
££S620002 | 3
dog / punod }saieau o} Papunol pue |47 1e asealoul roo_ Ll o0 LL 61-1dy-| | Bunjoog Jod | 9ESEZ000Z | |
ES620002 | 3
dpg / punod jsaiesu 0] papunod pue |47 Je asesioul 05'zz2 00°ZZ 61-idy-| | Bunjoog 1ad | GESEZ000Z | | 3|QE | YA Sal)I|128) Jamous Yiaa| (1
(mojaq pue s,0L Japun) sqniy sownp - jegioo4| (2)
$£S620002 | 3 3|qe L YA UON yolew sad ((n
dpg / punod jsaieau 0} papunol pue |47 Je asealoul 0592 00'S4 glL-1dy-| | uoiew ;a4 | EESBZO00Z | | a|qe | YA Udlew Jad|(1
1242u7) (q)
abiela Jo [aAs| pepusLILIODal 3l BUIpJebal uoneus|dxg| @ 0
g R o = m _.N.WNQN _.N.wgm aN.M_.cN em.wwew AONEHS e b=
m pies pieo 18V LINN AINNODOJV ﬂ FOHUVHI 40 NOILI¥OS3a
& aunsiaT ainsi 40 31va 19

NMIAVd R S

d




1A pajel-01a7
AjAljoy ssauisng uoN
1WA wouy Jdwax3
1¥A JO anisnjou|

l

o5 IVAR

*SASY JO LINLAJ UOU / UIN}aJ 3)e| 8Y) Jo) palas) st (Jsodap ay)

2A0QE pue JaA0) ableyo |euonippe uy “aiiy 118y} woly Buisue aisem
0 8s0dsIp pue 8ACWSI 0] S|IB) JaJIY B 818UM 10 / pUe Jasn jxau

ay) Joy Apn pue ueajd Buip|ing ayl aAea| ) S|Iej 4241y ay) a1aym Jo /
pue pasned abewep Aue 10j ||nj Jo ped ul playyim aq Aew syisodaq

(

%

o
0
l

S31ON
(enoge 89s) |Z-0Z0Z 104 211y uoyined Joj isodap se swes 00891 00591 §l-dy-| | usodeq | $Z96 £20Z9 | N "punc.B
JO UOIPUO Lo Juapuadap sjoym 10 Led Ul paulnial aq o) - isodag (!l
3.4 EETH YIN Aeq Jad Aep sad - punou jo asn (1
saipond
: [lounoy) Jo aaloddns sjuaas Ajunwwoy) - sejeg pue saja4| (1)
00'000°L 00°GeL l-idy-L | usodsQ  |$296 £2028 | N ‘punosb
JO UONIPUOD UO juapuadap ajoym 10 Led ul pauinial aq o} - usodag | (1!
BBJeyD JO [9A3] PAPUSLILIODS] aY) mc_ sebas uopeuejdx @ m
U2 JO |3A3] pap Y P jax3 @ x 3 7 3 3 JONYHO 3009
o1 Z-0Z0Z | L2-020Z | 02-6102 | 02-6L02 e
3 pieo pieo 1sv1 1INN ANNOD22V M JFOUVHI 40 NOLLdI¥OS3a
& alinsian ainsian 40 31v0 L)




‘wrd pgiLz Ag aus ay) s1eoen snw Bunasw Buiuang
x loool 00°0L $1-1dy-| 3 (inoy Jad) sdnoigy AioysiH jeimien| (p)
x 10SpPL  |0SHYL | pL-dy-L 3 sinoy g o3dn| (9)
X 00°1EL  |00°LEL | pl-ady-y 3 sinoy ¢ o3 dn| (q)
x |00°k2h [00°LZL | pl-ady-L 3 sinoy ¢ 03dn| (e)
{ALIMBYTIVAY J44VLS OL LDArENS) SYVMNO ‘W'd S¥'SL - SONINIAT ANIHIIM
(ALINIBYIVAY 44V1S OL 1D3rans) SANYMNO W'd S¥:9L - DNINIAT AVAMIIM
SONINIAZ - (ISN JAISNTOX3) TIVH / WOON ONILITW 40 JMIH| ¥'6
x 1000€ 0008 L1-ady-) "2)2 spied ‘sainjoid Buijjes sdnoub oy Aep 1ad 00'0£3F
x loosz  [00'S2 pi-1dy-| 3| Ava¥3d (0M8nd TVHINID FHL OL NIJO) SNOILIGIHXI HO4 TIVH 40 JMiH| €6
x p1-idy-| 3 (21ep awes ue apew sbunjooq (je j sigeandde Ajuo) Buiyooq
; Uixis uo sjgewied - alow Jo xis jo sbuyooq x20|q Jo} unoasip %40l | (d)
] 1ayiebol |jey pue woos Bunasw ay) yioq Bupjoog 105 unoosip %ot | (o)
x loos 00'G P1-ady-| dojde) umo inoA apinoid aseald
‘0067 Jo abieyo auy e e ajqejiene aue siojoalosd eppaw eubig| (u)
(senuiw Gy sad G/°43)
W'e 006 210429 00°'61F 40 elos-oud pied aq o) si Buiuado Ales Aepyaap| (w)
x l00g6  |00G6 | vi-dy-| | sjgemEyD (‘wd pe:gL "we po:ot ) Aep Iy pusseam| (1)
x J00S6  |00'S6 pL-dy-| | any ougngd (‘wdoe:gL ‘wepp:oL ) Aep iy pusyasp| ()
x |00G0L |00'GOL | pi-idy-| | auy 8jeAud (‘wd pg:gL ‘we gp:0y ) Aep iy pussespm| (1)
x 10005 |00°0S vi-idy-| | aiqeleyn ‘wrd pgigL 03 'wd pOig} Jo wrd 0gZL O ure 00:0L pussesm| (1)
x 10005  |00'0S pl-1dy-| | any ognd ‘wrd ggrgl o) 'wd oigl 0 wrd 0gZ)L O We 000 PuSSIM| (U)
x looog 0009 pL-idy-L | any ejeaud ‘wrd pgigl o) 'wrd ppie ) Jo wrd 0giZ L oF we 0g:0L puaysam| (6) | !
X 100004 [00°00L | bL-idy-L | BiqeileyD (‘wrd g9l 0) 'We 00:6) Aep Iy Aepyaam| () M
x |o00ork  [00°OFL | wi-sdy-L | saHonand | 3 (‘wd pg:9L 01 ‘we 0:6) Aep |1V Aepyaam| (2) ©
x 10005k (000G | vi-idy-| |aaH ajeaud ('wrd oeigl 0) 'we 00:6) Aep i1y Aepyaam| (P) | oy
x 10009 (0009 yl-dy-L | aiqeineyd ‘wd ggig) oy wrd gLigl Jo wd Gyl o) we 06 Aepyeam| (o) | @
x |00SL  |00°GL yi-idy-| | auH 2ngng ‘wd pgig) oy wd GLIEL Jo wd GpizL O ‘Wwre po:6 Aepyeam| (a) | O-
x 10006 (0006 pl-idy-L | 1Y aleAld ‘wd pg:gL o1 wd GLig) Jo "wrd Gpig) o) ‘we 0oi6 Aepypap| (8) | !
{37ALS JYLVIHL 05 OLdN SIHVL) WOOHSSY1D IHL 40 IMIH| 26
x l00S6 006G ri-idy-| | a|qeeyn (‘wd pg:gL ‘we 00:04 ) Aep Iy pusnsam| (1)
x l00S0F [00°G0L | #L-ddy-) | B4H o1and (‘wd pgigL we 001 ) Aep jiv pussaspm| (%)
x J00GLL  [00GLL | pL-ady-| | BaH SleAud ~ (wrd pgigl ‘wee 00:01 ) Aep (1w pusxaap| (1)
x 10005 [00°0S vl-dy-| | sigeieyd ‘wd ogigL o) 'wrd gorgL Jo wid 0gizL o) we 0oL puaaam| (1)
x 10009 |00°09 yi-idy-| | auy 2ngng ‘wd ggrGL 0} 'wd Qoigl 1o wd gzl 0} 'we ppi0L puadesm| (U)
x 10059  |00'S9 pl-idy-| | 2y sjeaud ‘wd peigL o) 'wrd ogl Jo wd OgiZL O 'we o0l pusaam| (B)
X 1000pL |00°0vL | ¥i-idy-| | ejgejueyD (‘wd pgigl o1 'we 0o:6) Aep |1y Aepxeap| (3)
x 10005k |00°0S1 | pL-dy-| | any 2ugng ('wrd og:9L o1 'we 0:6) Aep Iy Aepyasp| (3)
x 10009k 00091 |pi-idy-| |auY sjeaud (‘wrd g9l 0} ‘we 00:6) Aep (v Aepyasp| (p)
x 100G. |00SL yi-1dy-| | aigeleyn ‘wd 0gigL oy wrd GLigL Jo wd Gl O) 'We 006 Aepyesm| (9)
x loo0s (0008 yi-idy-1 | auH dngng ‘wd ggigL o1 wd GLigt Jo 'wrd Gpiz) o) 'w'e 00:6 Aepysam| (a)
*x 10000} |00°00L | pi-ady-L | BiH Speaud ‘wd g9l 01 wd GLigl o ‘wid Gpig) oF we 006 Aepdaapm| (e)
x 10005 00°0S 11 0§T 1B 841y LWOOJ DURASLW 10 [|BY Byl 10} 8)el 311y INoY g
(37ALS JYLVIHL S2 OLdN SANVL) TTVH NOILIGIHX3 40 3¥IH| 1'6
1e3A siy) sabueyo pasodid ou ale
aJay) pue Juswabeury 2.nsi97 pue spodg Ag UnJ MOU SI anuUeD By |
JHINID INJANOHIANT TTIH SHI08g 6
abieyo jo [ans| papuawiwodal auy) buipiebal uoneueidxg [ 3 3
" 2 | 1zi0z0z | eumioz | FONYH P
g 1sv1 IdAL < JDUVHI 40 NOILdINOS3A
=3 40 31va
ATIVNEID) n




1VA pales-0lez 7
3_>:UQ ssauisng UoN N
1VA woyjdwexg 3
1¥Ajoansnpoul |
Ty 1VA
YOd vOd | 9t-dy-L S3VS AOOM
vOd YOd | 9i-idy-| Jnoy Jad GG3 9]eds ||BWS 'YOd AHdVYD0LOHd ANY ONIWTILS
(uonesiiddy uQ 92Ud = YOd)
D)2 Jayeads/I0)onIisul JO 10D ‘WOo0J JO 3sn ‘papircsd s|eLalew
uoleIapISuoD ol Buiye) S|Seq JuaAa AQ JUSAS UB UO paje|ndjed aie Aay|
‘a18y pals!| jou ale 0s pue sjuedoied
10 abe g JuaAs Jo adA) ay) 0) Buipiodde Aiea suaaa Joj 2lgnd ay) o) sebiey)
(vOd) 2178Nd 3HL OL N3dO S3ILIAILOY ANY SLNIAI G3SINVOHO
x looe 002 pL-1dy-| 193ys 1ad inojod gy (p)
x 1610 GL'0 pL-idy-| 188ys Jad auym pue yoe|q gy| (2) mu
x lo0'L 00’} pl-idy-L 18ays Jad unojoo py| (q) b
x loLo 0L'0 pL-idy-L 193ys sad alym pue 3oe|q py| (&)
SIDUVYHI ¥3dvd or.mnmu
(A7ddV SNOILIONOD ® SWHIL ) XO8 LIM LSY3S-ININ IHL SY HONS
X 100°0€ 000E pl-ady-| SdNOYD ANY STOOHIS A8 JHIH HO4 I19VTIIVAY SAILIAILOY 431 4713S| 6'6
x |sai4 2ai4 pl-ady-L slapeaT/sisydes |
x log'z 052 9| -dy-| (uoisses Jad pyiyo sad) ualpyyo Oz aroqe abiieyd [euonippe 3y} sjooyds jie Jod| (9)
x |oosy  |00'SH yl-ady-| saliepunoq uolsbipn pue AgpeQ uiyum Paed| S|00Y2S Joj uaIpyd 0 oidn| (9)
x loo'ss  |00'SS pl-1dy-1 salepunoq s,19uno) ybneiog 8y} apIsino sjooyds 1o} ualpiiya oz oidn| (&)
-: Buimoljoj ay) uo paseq ajgeoidde si abieyo paxy v
'sidnd Gg jo azis winwixew o] dn ApAloe j0oyos Jad
SdNOYO TO0HIS| 86
x 00'SS 006G pi-dy-| dNOYD AISINYOYO H3d - SHNOL| L6
X |oo'ss 0068 pl-1dy-| dNOXD H3d - SHIVYL| 96
x |oaiq 2al4 ¥ 1-ady-| G Jepun uaippy| (2)
x |s3i4 EETE] t1-1dy-| suszyig Jouasg [ ualpiyn| (q)
x |eai4 20214 pi-1dy-| sinpy| (&)
FHINID NOILIFIHX3 OL AMLIN3| §'6
abJeyo Jo [2A9| papuawiwodal ay) buipsebal uoneuejdxy W % 3 3 —
"8
£ -
2 BZIOTOC | SHBIIT 1SV 3dAl M A9HYHO 40 NOILdIYOS3a
= 40 31va




1A pajel-olez 7
AyAoy ssauisng uoN N
1WA woy jdwaxy 3
1VAJo 8AIsSnpuU| |
Koy IVA
0581 00'8L 8l-idy-L | yoe3 | ZOE6 L000Z I SAIM 1SOT HO4 IDHVHI| 0L
abueyo oN 0009 0008 gl-dy-L | yoe3 | Zz96 L000Z | N 379VANNL3Y - LISOd3a| €01
abieyo aA0QE B} UO UOIONPal 9%,Gg
SN3ZILID HOIN3S| Z'0L
1eak Bumoljoy ay) ;aqusydag gz
0} Jaquisidas Gz WOl SunJ Jeak Jual Juawio|y
10 099} 8l-idy-L | uyoe3 | 2656 L0ODOZ | N peoy uozeqeig (g
9L'0 00°GL 8i-1dy-| | yoe3 | ZGS6 LO00Z | N ajBuel] - suaplen Jeysayouep (y
410 09'9L gL-idy-1 | yoe3 | 2856 L000Z | N a|buejoay - suaplen Isissyouey (¢
f?.o 0.8l 8l-dy-L | yoe3 | 2666 LO00Z | N aueT auojsalAy (z
610 0481 8l-dy-L | yoe3 | 2666 LO00OZ | N peoy uoisbip (1
pieA asenbs Jad - | L0z Jlaqualdes 6z Jaye
peousWWod Aoueus) asaym - sjuapisal o} Joid Jo uay| (q)
‘- 9SUBS 2J0W SAjEW aLo 00°GlL gl-1dy-1 | yoe3 | 2668 L000Z | N pied alenbs 1ad - sjuapisal 0} joid jo Juay| (e)
pieA aienbs sed uone|nojes e os spiek asenbs gg| Jo sajdynw ;
jou aue sjoid Ing spieA bs goL Je pajejon|es alam sajes Ajsnomasd|
SIN3AIS3H| L'0L
. SINIWLOTTV
abieys jo |aAd uaww eb [
U9 JO |2A3] pap 023l 3y} Buipsebal uoneuedxy & m. _.N[wNoN oN-M_bN ——— oS &
m 1sv1 1INN | LNNOJJV M 3A9YUYHI 40 NOILdI¥OS3a
= 40 31va 19
e —

~ Page 33 ~

SINIWLOTIV



3 1Se1e8U O} papunol pue |40 Ag peseaiou|

3 1SalesU 0} papunos pue |dD Aq paseaiou)

3 1sa1e8U 0) dn papunol pue |40 Ag pasealou]

safuoyine
180 ym aulj ul Buideay 8B1eUD JO LOKONPOIIUL BDUIS 8SB210UI SI

009

0099

oo8lL

0002

00°0%

00'S
00'€e

00's
00€e

00'SY

0059

0021

0002

00'se

ol¥
00'¢ce

oLy
00'¢e

6L-1dy-|

61-1dy-|

g-1dy-|

g|-dy-|

gl-1dy-|

61-1dy-|
6L-1dy-|

BL-1dy-1
B1-4dy-|

00Z6 L0L02

0026 10202

4126 G080Z

81£6 S0802

01£6 LO80Z
01£8 10802

016 L0802
01£6 10802

ZZ

‘5501/U8S 9]RIRdaS OM] BJE SWA)I [BOU]D8(8-UOU PUE EDLIIB]3 JO UORIS|I0D BY|

soem Jad wa Jad - Spieog 801jouU 10 ainjiuwing j2ans ‘saoeds ognd

uo Suoo|jeq 1o [eusiew [eucnowoid ‘Buisiaspe pasoiddeun Jo [eAOLaY
sa¥vodg 3DILON 211and ANV S33VdS N3dO

‘S133¥LS NO ONISILYIAAY ISIHOHLNVYNN 40 TYAOWIY

SIVIWINY 21LS3W0A a3SVII3a 40 T¥S0dsia

S|iB}ep Jayuny 10j SUONHIPUOD § SUWLa) sjeledes aas asea|d ,
(1eak sad pz3 Apuaund - uoio8)|0d Joj aBieyd B Inoul [|IM asay])
2z1s Aue Jo suiq [euolippy

‘punoi Jeak |le uonoa|joo Ajublupo) e sapircid siy|

(Liq a3y Op L X | Ajuo si a1y ji saidde s 2))

suiq a1))| OF | * g o¥dn Jo uig axy opE X | 0} saldde abieyo syl

JOIAHIS NOILOTTT10D FLSVM NIAHVD

( ybnosog ay) ul Bunyiom sisajunjon Aq esn-ad 10} )

a1ju8n) JUSWUOIIAUT [IiH $100]g 0} USXE) 8Q Ued S|00| USPIED ,

wnuue 1ad suon28||00 Sjeiedas om) UBY) SJ0W OU - SWSJ! N0} JO LWNWIXBN
- saingag Ay Weuag Ajigesiq 40 Jyauag Xe| [uno) yeuag Buisnoy
- BUIAI@08l SJUBPISal BS0U) JO) 'BAOJE SLUS]I |[B 10) UOHDS|0d 83l

ws}| [euoippy Yoe3

way |

- g SwWay| |eowoa|g Joj sebieyd

quawdinby

[ENSIA OIPNY 'SiBUsemysiq ‘sielig ajquin ‘ssulyoep Buiysem
‘818|007 ‘J8zaal4/abpu4 ‘abpli4 'SUOISIAB[R | 'SJaUBS|D WNNJBA

- pajoaj|00 aq ued swayl [eouyosje Buimolio} syl

way| [euohippy yae3

way |

-1 aue ,Juswdinbg pue sjoo] uspies) Joj sebieyd

‘apoiyaa 0} uaye) Bulaq

uaym Jids Jou op sway os ybnoua Buons aq pinoys sbeg - 3ON
'pa10a||02 10U SWa) 8s0Y) Joj papunjas Juswled pue LoRoa(|ed-uoU
Ul JNSaJ [|im 0S Op O} ain|iey - Sjuswalnbal BulpuBy [enuELl Saysnes
pue Buipeo) sajeloe; Algeuoseal jey) wuoj e ul pajuasald aq JSAl sway
‘We)l ue Se passep |sued yoea puUB pejueWSIP 8q SN SPaYg
‘SLUB) |ENPIAIPUI SB PASSED 3 ||IM 8)SEm pal pue paxoq ‘pabbeg
‘x0q e ul paiddns ag jsnw ssejb usxoig

‘pa}R8||02 8q JOU [|IM SMOPUIM pade|dal JO alsem Buip|ing S Yyons swiay|
‘pajejal yom Buip|ing 1o juawanoidul 8snoy - SWey ansawo( (1Y

- pe1o8|jo0 8g UBd SWal |E2U}08|d uou BuImo||o) 3y L

3sN434 ATOHISNOH 40 NOILD3TT0D

3ISN-434 QTOHISNOH 40 NOILIFTT0D TVID3dS

(e)
il

£l

(@)

(e)

TLL

(q)
{u
(1

(e)
(Y

~ Page 34 ~

13

abJeyD JO |2A8) PpapuswWiWodal auy} Buip.ebas uoneue|dx3

19

Ajjeuiaixy

3
XALTAITA

3
0Z-6102

FONVYHD
1sv1
40 31va

3000
ANNODDV
19

VAT

IDOUVHOI 40 NOLLdI¥OS3d

S30IANZS 10d3d




1VA pejer-oiaz 7
Ajanoy ssauisng uoN N
1VA woydwaexy 3
1¥AJoaAaisnpul

l
Fey IvA o
dog / punod jsaiesu o) pspunos pue 1dD 18 aseaiu 0000z | 00G6L |6L-dv-L | £LOZ L0S0Z | sajejd sweu pajunow aweld (1 Dn.u
dog / punod jseleau 0} pepunos pue |d) je aseaiou) 00'0¢l | 00'SZL |6l-dy-L | ELOZ LOBOZ ssje(d aweu pajunow A ((1 )

: A |2 [PuUNoY ay) jo uonaiosip au) je juswsaibe o) slgns pue juspisal Jo jsanba. ayly| (e)
S31V1d JWVN 1334LS 40 NOILYDO13d| 2'LL

uoneal|ddy uo 8old = vYOd
vOd vOd | L1-idv-| [ 0026 L0£02 | N Sealy passels) sleAlld abieT jo Bumopy| (o)
YOd VOd | Li-1dv-| | 0026 L0202 | N SEaJE Jayjo pue syied 1eD jo Buiues|n| (q)

YOd VOd | 2i-dv-1 | 0026 L0L0Z | N senauw bs oz uey) Jajeasn|(n
0002t | 00GLL |6L-4dv-L | 0026 L0202 | N (Aungeyins Joj uonoadsul ays pue Auigejieae o jslgns) sansw bs oz oy dn|(1

Sealy paned %20|g pue pagge;s jo buiues|n| (e)
SVIUVY ONIMYVYd GINMO ATILVAIND 40 ONISNVI D] 9°LL

‘pauiel awoou; sybemino Buisessou) 0 }s00 [ejiden se oje) uiejey 00'g 00°E GL-1dy-| | 00S6 L0SOZ | | (e1qeoi|dde aieym) sinoy ¢ 1840 Jo shejs 403 abieyd Buppey
Bunyed jeans yo| (e)
SHYVd ¥V TIONNOD| S'LL
006 00'¢e6 61-1dy-| | 0026 10402 | N siaysod A o ebeioys pue umop Bupie| | (o)
3 iSaiesu 0} papuno. pue |40 Aq paseaiou) 009 00°S¥ 6L-1dy-| | 0026 L0202 |'N $80nou pasosddeun Jo |eroway| (q)

abiey2 jo |ana] papuawwiwooal 3y mc_u:..mn._ uoneue|dxgy o 3 3
~ 8| 1z-0z0z | 0z-610z |3ONVHO [ 300D [,
3 18V ANNOJJV uAv JDYVHI 40 NOILdINOS3a
= 40 31vd 19




Agenda ltem 8

Policy, Finance and

Tuesday, 26 Matter for
Development ! .
! November 2019 Information
r»o;ﬁﬁﬁ/ :‘;‘}> Committee
Report Title: Collection and Write-Off of Miscellaneous Debtors
(Q2 2019/20)
Report Author(s): Chris Raymakers (Financial Services Manager)
Purpose of Report: The purpose of this report is to inform Members of the levels of
outstanding debt owed to the Council at the end of quarter one of
2019/20 and for Members to approve any write-off of uncollectable
debts as per the Council’s Financial Regulations.
Report Summary: The current economic climate continues to make debt collection a

challenging exercise. Previous years arrears for both Council Tax and
business Rates are being eased down but Universal Credit is now
having a greater impact on rent arrears as more tenants migrate away
from legacy benefits.

Recommendation(s):

That the contents of the report be noted.

Senior Leadership,
Head of Service,
Manager, Officer and
Other Contact(s):

Clive Mason (Chief Financial Officer)
(0116) 257 2736
clive.mason@oadby-wigston.gov.uk

Chris Raymakers (Financial Services Manager)
(0116) 257 2891
chris.raymakers@oadby-wigston.gov.uk

Corporate Objectives:

Building, Protecting and Empowering Communities (CO1)
Growing the Borough Economically (CO2)
Providing Excellent Services (CO3)

Vision and Values:

Accountability (V1)
Teamwork (V3)
Customer Focus (V5)

Report Implications:-

Legal:

There are no implications arising from this report.

Financial:

The implications are as set out at paragraphs 2 to 6 of this report.

Corporate Risk
Management:

Decreasing Financial Resources / Increasing Financial Pressures (CR1)
Reputation Damage (CR4)
Increased Fraud (CR10)

Equalities and Equalities
Assessment (EA):

There are no implications arising from this report.
EA not applicable.

Human Rights:

There are no implications arising from this report.

Health and Safety:

There are no implications arising from this report.

~ Page 36 ~



mailto:clive.mason@oadby-wigston.gov.uk
mailto:chris.raymakers@oadby-wigston.gov.uk

Statutory Officers’ Comments:-

Head of Paid Service: The report is satisfactory.
Chief Finance Officer: The report is satisfactory.
Monitoring Officer: The report is satisfactory.
Consultees: None.
Background Papers: None.
Appendices: None.
1. Introduction
1.1  As part of the income collection function, the Council operates a comprehensive debt
collection process which covers all service areas of the Authority.
1.2 The Council uses three principal methods for collecting these debts:
(i) Direct contact with the debtor by letter or telephone;
(i) Referring the debt to a collection agent; and
(iii) Legal action through the courts.
2. Council Tax and Non-Domestic (Business) Rates
2.1  Council Tax and Non-Domestic (Business) Rates (NDR) make up the largest debits within the
income collection area. These income streams have a combined annual debit to collect of
around £44 million.
2.2 At 30 September 2019, the arrears in this area were:
Service Council Tax NDR
Previous Years Arrears £ £
Arrears at 30 June 2019 1,467,943 682,366
Arrears at 30 September 2019 1,372,530 684,985
2.3 Council Tax has seen a reduction in arrears of around £95000 (6.5%) in the second quarter of

2.3

3.

3.1

the year. NDR arrears have risen during this quarter by around £2,000 (0.3%), however this
has been due to £23,000 of new liabilities being raised against the previous year

At the end of the second quarter 57.31% of the Council Tax debit had been collected against
a target of 58.50%. 55.8% of the Business Rates debit had been collected (Target 55.92%).
There is an annual a target of 98.5% for both taxes. It has been noticeable over the last five
years that Council Tax in particular has become more difficult to collect as Council Tax Support
has bought more people into the taxpaying bracket. This is reflected across the Country where
the average Council Tax collection rate for Shire Districts across England was 97.9% in
2018/19.

Overpayments of Housing Benefit (Revenues and Benefits)

Recouping the overpayment of housing benefit has become an increasing problem for
Councils across the country over the last few years. Oadby and Wigston have, since 2015,

~ Page 37 ~




3.2

3.3

3.4

4.1

4.2

4.3

brought this under control. The majority of cases have been collected from ongoing benefit;
however, where the claimant is no longer receiving or is entitled to housing benefit, the debt
is passed over to the recovery team.

Historically, the Council has raised almost 14,000 overpayment invoices totalling over
£4.2million of debt, successfully collecting £3.6million. In 2019/20 debt levels in
overpayments have increased to around £648,000 from £645,000. The figure has already
started to be reduced again in July and is currently within the target set in the Council’s KPIs
for the year.

The total still outstanding is listed below by age:

Days Overdue
£ £ £ £ £
0-90 90-182 182-365  Over 365 Total
30 June 2019 57,092 25,438 79,886 482,629 645,045
30 September 2019 52,755 39,511 55,428 499,810 647,504

The Universal Credit (UC) system will have an impact on the recovery of these debts. As
debtors migrate from Housing Benefit to UC the Council will no longer be able to collect
overpayments from on-going benefit so alternative methods of collection will have to be
used. This will put pressure on collection resources as more cases are dealt with directly with
the debtor. This has not yet made a significant impact on collection however this is likely to
change when full migration takes place in the future.

Housing Rents

The Council runs a housing stock of approximately 1,200 dwellings with a total collectable
debit of £4,730,000 of which £2,440,000 is paid for by Housing Benefit.

Rent arrears are split between current and former tenants. Current tenant arrears have risen
during the second quarter and are currently 5.0% of the annual debit

Current Former Total
Tenants Tenants
£ £ £
Arrears at 30 June 2019 192,840 127,499 320,339
égregars at 30 September 241,604 131,598 373,202
1

From 13 June 2018, the Council moved to UC ‘full service’” which will see the gradual migration of
working age tenants from Housing Benefit to the new UC system. It has always been anticipated
that that this will put pressure on this particular collection area as tenants may no longer get their
rent paid automatically. At the end of quarter one the amount of arrears which related to UC
claimants totalled £85,000. The Council requests direct payments from the Universal Credit Team
at the DWP whenever appropriate however delivery of the payments by the government has
proved slow and inconsistent, directly causing an upturn in arrear. The income collection team are
working with the DWP to manage this with a substantial amount of direct payments being
received this month. It is expected that the new structure in place will show a down turn in
arrears over the third quarter.

~ Page 38 ~



4.4 Toward the end of the last quarter the new income apprentice commenced work talking on the
administration duties and some low level debts allowing that the experienced income officers can
focus on the higher value debts.

5 Miscellaneous Sundry Debts

5.1  The current position relating to collection of outstanding invoices is summarised below:

Days Overdue
£ £ £ £ £ £
0-90 91-180 181-365 | 366-730 731+ Total
31 March 2019 34,599 9,620 48,454 19,119 | 143,761 | 255,553
30 June 2019 60,204 12,885 20,472 39,493 | 148,789 | 281,843

5.2 During the second quarter of 2019/20, miscellaneous debt rose by £26,000 mainly due to an
increase in recently raised debts. Of the total debt of £256,000, approximately £109,000
(125 accounts) is actively managed through instalments. Of this total £49,000 relates to
overpayments of housing benefit collected through the sundry debts system.

5.3 In this quarter:

e The Council has referred four cases to the collection agent;
e £224 was written-off under the financial regulations by the Section 151 Officer;
e Seven accounts have completed their arrangements to pay; and
e A local performance indicator for the department is the proportion of debt over 90 days
old as a percentage of the total estimated annual debit. At 30 September 2019, this
percentage was 19% (the target for 2019/20 being under 15%).
6. Write-Off of Bad Debt
6.1. There are no write-offs to be considered by Members at this Committee.

~ Page 39 ~



Agenda ltem 9

2l Policy, Finance and Matter for
ﬁﬁ ), Development N::::Il::‘:-'zzgw Information and
r»o;ﬁﬁﬁ/ :;%f*/ Committee Decision
Report Title: Third Sector and Community Support Funding Requests
(Q2 2019/20)
Report Author(s): Avril Lennox MBE (Head of Community and Wellbeing)
Purpose of Report: To inform Members about the range of funding applications received
during the October 2019 cycle of Residents’ Forums, and to seek
Members’ approval to award the funding grants requested.
Report Summary: A total of 6 funding applications were received during the October

cycle of Residents’ Forums.

Recommendation(s):

That funding for the list of projects identified in the report (at
paragraphs 2.2) be approved.

Senior Leadership,
Head of Service,
Manager, Officer and
Other Contact(s):

Stephen Hinds (Deputy Chief Executive)
(0116) 257 2681
stephen.hinds@oadby-wigston.gov.uk

Avril Lennox MBE (Head of Community & Wellbeing Services)
(0116) 257 2673
avril.lennox@oadby-wigston.gov.uk

Veronika Quintyne (Community Engagement Officer)
(0116) 257 2648
Veronika.quintyne@oadby-wigston.gov.uk

Corporate Objectives:

Building, Protecting and Empowering Communities (CO1)

Vision and Values:

“A Stronger Borough Together” (Vision)
Customer Focus (V5)

Report Implications:-

Legal:

There are no implications arising from this report.

Financial:

The implications are set out in the report.

Corporate Risk
Management:

Decreasing Financial Resources / Increasing Financial Pressures (CR1)
Regulatory Governance (CR6)

Equalities and Equalities
Assessment (EA):

There are no implications arising from this report.
EA not applicable.

Human Rights:

There are no implications arising from this report.

Health and Safety:

There are no implications arising from this report.

Statutory Officers’ Comments:-

Head of Paid Service:

The report is satisfactory.

~ Page 40 ~



mailto:stephen.hinds@oadby-wigston.gov.uk
mailto:avril.lennox@oadby-wigston.gov.uk
mailto:Veronika.quintyne@oadby-wigston.gov.uk

Chief Finance Officer: The report is satisfactory.

Monitoring Officer: The report is satisfactory.
Consultees: None.
Background Papers: e Minutes of South Wigston Residents' Forum held on Tuesday, 22

October, 2019 7.00 pm
e Minutes of the Oadby Residents' Forum held on Tuesday, 15
October, 2019 6.30 pm

Appendices: None.

1. Introduction

1.1  The Residents’ Forums are held four times a year; these provide the opportunity for local
people to apply for funding to support local community projects. Residents or community
groups are required to complete an application form, which includes details of costings,
which are then presented to the relevant Forum. Once these are approved at Forum level,
they then go to this Committee (PFD) for final sign-off.

2. Applications Received
2.1  Atotal of 6 applications were received during the October cycle of Forums as shown below,
from the South Wigston Forum and the Oadby Forum. None were received from the

Wigston Forum during this timeframe. However their current budget allocation is: £48,451.

2.2 Members are asked to provide their approval for the following projects:

Forum Item requested Amount
South Wigston There was a request for the purchase and installation of a £300
Residents’ planter tub costing £300. This is to be placed in Garden
Forum Street, South Wigston.

There was a request for two litterbins to be placed near £900

to the School entrance to Fairfield Community Primary
School. The price of each litter bin is £450.The full cost
for two litterbins is £900.

There was a request for the purchase and installation of a £250
perch seat for installation in the bus shelter on Gloucester
Crescent. The cost is £250.

There was a request for the purchase and installation of a £650
seat to be placed on Taylor’s Bridge Road on the open
space area. The cost of the seat is £650.

Current budget
allocation: £17,328 | Total £2,100

(Continued overleaf)

~ Page 41 ~


https://moderngov.oadby-wigston.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=284&MId=1776&Ver=4
https://moderngov.oadby-wigston.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=284&MId=1776&Ver=4
https://moderngov.oadby-wigston.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=282&MId=1768&Ver=4
https://moderngov.oadby-wigston.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=282&MId=1768&Ver=4

Forum:

Item requested:

Amount:

Oadby Residents’
Forum

Current budget
allocation: £42,449

There was a request made for the purchase and
installation of a litterbin on the pavement in close proximity
of the alley from Adlington Road to Launde Road. The cost

of the litterbin is £450.
There was a request for the purchase and installation of a

litterbin to be placed on the pavement by the Depot on
Wigston Road. The cost of the litterbin is £450.

Total

£450

£450

£900

~ Page 42 ~




Agenda Item 10

" Policy, Finance and Tuesdav, 26 Matter for
), Development Novembe¥-’2019 Information and
r»o;ﬁﬁﬁ/ :;%f*/ Committee Decision
Report Title: Section 106 Open Space, Sport and Recreation Contributions
(June - November 2019)
Report Author(s): Emma Brackenbury (Planning Policy Officer)
Purpose of Report: This report is to inform Members of the latest position regarding
projects that could be funded through financial off site Section 106
Open Space, Sport and Recreation Contributions.
The report also clarifies the mechanism that is in place in relation to
the identification of open space, sport and recreation infrastructure
requirements and the identification of S106 funding.
Report Summary: This report builds on the Section 106 Open Space, Sport and Recre-

ation Contributions report that was noted by Members at Service
Delivery Committee on 11th June 2019. It provides an up to date list
of potential open space, sport and recreation infrastructure require-
ments which could be funded through Section 106 Contributions.

All projects notified to Officers since the previous Policy, Finance and
Development Committee have been assessed by the Council’s Section
106 Officer Working Group and those which comply with the 3 Comm-
unity Infrastructure Levy (CIL) tests, have been added to the list.

Recommendation(s):

A. That the list of potential open space, sport and recreation
infrastructure requirements (as set out at Appendix 1)
are approved; and

B. That the projects will be progressed in line with the
Council’s Capital Programme.

Senior Leadership,
Head of Service,
Manager, Officer and
Other Contact(s):

Stephen Hinds (Deputy Chief Executive)
(0116) 257 2681
stephen.hinds@oadby-wigston.gov.uk

Adrian Thorpe (Head of The Built Environment)
(0116) 257 2645
adrian.thorpe@oadby-wigston.gov.uk

Jamie Carr (Planning Policy Team Leader)
(0116) 257 2652
jamie.carr@oadby-wigston.gov.uk

Emma Brackenbury (Planning Policy Officer)
(0116) 257 2668
emma.brackenbury@oadby-wigston.gov.uk

Corporate Objectives:

Building, Protecting and Empowering Communities (CO1)
Growing the Borough Economically (CO2)

Vision and Values:

“A Stronger Borough Together” (Vision)

~ Page 43 ~



mailto:stephen.hinds@oadby-wigston.gov.uk
mailto:adrian.thorpe@oadby-wigston.gov.uk
mailto:jamie.carr@oadby-wigston.gov.uk
mailto:emma.brackenbury@oadby-wigston.gov.uk

Teamwork (V3)
Innovation (V4)
Customer Focus (V5)

Report Implications:-

Legal:

There are no implications arising from this report.

Financial:

The financial implications are contained in the report and any
schemes which are approved will be added to the capital programme.

Corporate Risk
Management:

Economy / Regeneration (CR9)

Equalities and Equalities
Assessment (EA):

There are no implications arising from this report.
EA not applicable.

Human Rights:

There are no implications arising from this report.

Health and Safety:

There are no implications arising from this report.

Statutory Officers’ Comments:-

Head of Paid Service:

The report is satisfactory.

Chief Finance Officer:

The report is satisfactory.

Monitoring Officer:

The report is satisfactory.

Consultees:

None.

Background Papers:

e Developer Contributions Supplementary Planning Document (2019)
(accessible at Developer Contributions Supplementary Planning
Document - Oadby and Wigston Borough Council)

Appendices:

1. Current Section 106 Projects (Fully Funded)
2. Current Section 106 Projects (Funding Not Allocated)
3. Completed Section 106 Projects (Since Last Report)

1. Section 106 Projects

1.1.  The Council has in place a Developer Contributions Supplementary Planning Document. This
Supplementary Planning Document enables the Council to negotiate a range of financial
contributions, including those towards off site infrastructure relating to open space, sport
and recreation when granting planning permission for new housing developments of 11 or
more dwellings, where provision is not made on site. The specific details of the financial
contribution are set out in the Section 106 Agreement that accompanies the planning
permission. The financial contribution normally includes both a capital and revenue element.

1.2.  There are several key ‘rules’ that the Council must abide by when accruing and spending
the financial contributions based on the Legislation relating to Section 106 Agreements:

o The contribution(s) must be spent on infrastructure that is necessary to mitigate
the impact of the new development; directly related to the development; and,
reasonable in scale and kind;

~ Page 44 ~



file:///C:/Users/CMason/Downloads/Section%20106%20Open%20Space,%20Sport%20and%20Recreation%20Contributions%20June%20-%20November%202019.docx
file:///C:/Users/CMason/Downloads/Section%20106%20Open%20Space,%20Sport%20and%20Recreation%20Contributions%20June%20-%20November%202019.docx
file:///C:/Users/CMason/Downloads/Section%20106%20Open%20Space,%20Sport%20and%20Recreation%20Contributions%20June%20-%20November%202019.docx

1.3.

1.4.

1.5.

1.6.

1.7.

1.8.

1.9.

. The Council should identify what the financial contribution will be spent on at the
time of negotiating the Section 106 Agreement; and

o The Council must spend the financial contribution within the timeframe set out in
the S106 Agreement (usually 5 years, unless otherwise stated).

In order to ensure that the Council meets these rules, a Section 106 Officer Working Group
is tasked with regularly reviewing the Council’s position to ensure that spending of financial
contributions is done so in accordance with the appropriate Legislation.

It is particularly important that the Council has in place a ‘current’ list of potential open
space, sport and recreation infrastructure requirements that are required to mitigate the
impact(s) of the new development. This list will then be taken into account by the Council
when negotiating financial contributions with developers. In negotiations, the Council will
work with the developer to identify the most relevant infrastructure project(s) on the list
that a financial contribution could relate to in order to mitigate the impact of the
development. Where possible and appropriate, an infrastructure project with some funding
already allocated to it will be given a higher priority for future funding.

The current list of Section 106 projects that are fully funded through Section 106
Contributions is attached at Appendix 1. The current list of projects where funding is being
compiled through Section 106 Contributions is at Appendix 2. Any project where currently
no funding is available through Section 106 Contributions is at Appendix 3. These lists will
be reported to this Committee every 6 months. The projects are listed in no priority order.
The list sets out; the project; the estimated total cost; the amount of S106 funding
currently allocated to it; and, the current stage of implementation.

Members are invited to suggest additional open space, sport and recreation infrastructure
requirements to add to the list at any time by email to planningpolicy@oadby-
wigston.gov.uk. Requests may arise, for example, through the Residents Forums. The
request will then be considered by the Section 106 Officer Working Group to ensure that it
meets the necessary rules associated with S106 funding. If it meets the rules it will be
added to the list, for Member approval.

It is important to clarify that once a project is added to the list, it cannot be delivered until
the necessary funding has been identified in line with the process explained earlier. Due to
this, it may take several years to fully accrue all of the funding required to deliver the
project. Changes to the CIL regulations mean that the pooling restriction has been lifted.
Therefore going forward, the Council can pool as many Section 106 together as required.

Once the capital element of a S106 Agreement has been spent, the revenue element is
transferred into the Council revenue budget to account for the additional cost to the Council
of maintaining additional infrastructure. A list of the completed projects since the last
report is at Appendix 4. However, members must be mindful that S.106 revenue
contributions are finite and when they are expended, the revenue liability falls directly onto
the Council Tax payer. Consequently, the Council must take all necessary steps to ensure
that future revenue impacts are minimised.

It should also be noted that in addition to Appendix 1 to 3, the Council also has an
Infrastructure Delivery Plan (IDP) that also has a live list of strategic and larger local
infrastructure projects. Also the Council’s Playing Pitch Strategy (PPS) has a number of
projects included. Whilst not all of these projects in the IDP and PPS will come forwards via
S106 and not all relate to open space, sport and recreation, where they do they tend to
form larger, more strategic projects that may require larger sums of money from various
sources of funding.

~ Page 45 ~



~ of abed ~

APPENDIX 1 — CURRENT SECTION 106 PROJECTS (FULLY FUNDED)

Site Name

Settlement

Description of Project

Estimated
Cost

Funding
Available/
Allocated

Stage of Implementation

Park Projects — Enhancements and new provision within the schemes i
equipment, new trees and new benches. The current list of park projects identified is:

nclude but are not

limited to, new play equipment, new adult fitness

On order. Delivery Due week

equipment.

William Gunning SO.Uth Provision of new litter bins. £1,000.00 £1,000.00 commencing 9" December. Installation
Park Wigston
weather dependant.
Blaby Road Park | South Provision of new adult fitness £20,000.00 £24,235.65 | Funding allocated. Equipment on order.
Wigston equipment. Installation will be prior to the end of this
financial year.
Funding partially allocated from Section
Provision of new adult fithess 106. Remaining funding to come from
Willow Park Wigston £20,000.00 £13,538.59 | Capital budget. Equipment on order.

Installation will be prior to the end of this
financial year.

Street Trees — To

provide additional street trees in areas of the Borough with poor tree coverage. Locations and suitable tree specimens will be

confirmed by the Council’s Arboricultural Officer, however current suggestions are:

Brabazon Road

Oadby

and New Street. Planting of new street trees. £6,000.00 £6,000.00

Florence Wragg |y, 4p,, Provision of new street trees. £1,000.00 £1,000.00

Way Play Area

IF_{?)l;réceston Wigston Planting of new street trees. £850.00 £873.00

Welford Road. Wigston Planting of new street trees. £1,600.00 £1,627.66

Ervins Lock. SO.Uth Planting of new street trees. £1,600.00 £1,746.00
Wigston

Gloucester South . £3,000.00 £3,000.00

. Planting of new street trees.
Crescent Wigston
Dorset Avenue. | South Planting of new street trees. £3,000.00 £3,000.00

Funding Allocated. Due to the high level
of failures this year of trees planted in
2018 a community watering initiative is
currently being derived by the Council’s
Arboricultural Officer, using a model that
has worked successfully elsewhere. Once
this is in place progress will be made
with the planting with work to commence
during this planting season.

T Xipuaddy



Wigston

~ Page 47 ~



~ gfy abed ~

APPENDIX 2 — CURRENT SECTION 106 PROJECTS (FUNDING NOT ALLOCATED)

Site Name

Settlement

Description of Project

Estimated Cost

Funding
Available/
Allocated

Stage of Implementation

Park Projects — Enhancements and new provision within the schemes include but are not limited to,
equipment, new trees and new benches. The current list of park projects identified is:

new play equipment, new adult fitness

Provision of new play

Ellis Park Oadby ) £45,000.00 £0.00 Waiting for S106 funding to be identified.
equipment
Ellis Park Oadby Provision of new park trees. | £1,500.00 £0.00 Waiting for S106 funding to be identified.
Florence Wragg | (5, Provision of new adult £20,000.00 £0.00 Waiting for S106 funding to be identified.
Way Play Area fitness equipment.
Iliffe Park Oadby E;?l‘é'ﬁfs” of new park £1,350.00 £0.00 Waiting for S$106 funding to be identified.
Uplands Park | Oadby E;%‘Qﬁfs” of new park £3,900.00 £0.00 Waiting for S106 funding to be identified.
Brocks Hill Oadb Provision of new play £45,000.00 £0.00 Waiting for $106 funding to be identified
Country Park y equipment. AR ' 9 9 '
Freer Park Wigston Provision of new play £45,000.00 £0.00 Waiting for $106 funding to be identified.
equipment.
Provision of new
Freer Park Wigston Football/Basketball £5,000.00 £0.00 Waiting for S106 funding to be identified.
Equipment to use at Freer
Park.
Horsewell Lane | \yioston Provision of new park £3,900.00 £0.00 Waiting for S106 funding to be identified.
Park benches.
?pe:cdeows Open Wigston Provision of new park trees. | £1,000.00 £0.00 Waiting for S106 funding to be identified.
Willow Park Wigston Provision of new park trees. | £750.00 £0.00 Waiting for S106 funding to be identified.
Willow Park Wigston Provision of new notice £5,550.00 £0.00 Waiting for S106 funding to be identified.

Z Xipuaddy



~ 617 obed ~

boards.

Willow Park Wigston Provision of new litter bins. | £4,500.00 £0.00 Waiting for S106 funding to be identified.
Willow Park Wigston provision of new park £6,500.00 £0.00 Waiting for $106 funding to be identified.
Blaby Road Park SO.Uth Provision of new notice £5,550.00 £0.00 Waiting for S106 funding to be identified.
Wigston boards.

Blaby Road Park \?\z;g’gon Provision of new litter bins. | £4,500.00 £0.00 Waiting for S106 funding to be identified.
Pochins Bridge | South Provision of new adult £20,000.00 £0.00 Waiting for S106 funding to be identified.
Open Space Wigston fitness equipment.
William Gunning | South Provision of new adult £20,000.00 £0.00 Waiting for 106 funding to be identified.
Park Wigston fitness equipment.
William Gunning | South Provision of new park " . . .
Park Wigston benches. £2,600.00 £0.00 Waiting for S106 funding to be identified.
William Gunning | South Installation of new land Estimated cost

. ) not currently £0.00 Waiting for S106 funding to be identified.
Park Wigston drainage.

available.




~ 0G abed ~

APPENDIX 3 — COMPLETED SECTION 106 PROJECTS (SINCE LAST REPORT)

Site Name

Settlement

Description of Project

Value of Project

Stage of Implementation

Provision of new play

Aylestone Lane,
Leicester Road.

William Gunning Park South Wigston : £6,000 Complete.
equipment.
Station Road,
Launceston Road, West
Avenue, Holmden Complete. Nine Bus shelter
Avenue, Rolleston Road, | Wigston Bus shelter seats £2,025 :

seats installed.

¢ Xipuaddy



Agenda ltem 11

Policy, Finance and Tuesday, 26 Matter for Information
2N Development November 2019 and Decision
%;ﬁgﬁ/ :;%f*/ Committee
Report Title: Environment Strategy and Action Plan (November 2019)
Report Author: Adrian Thorpe (Head of The Built Environment)
Purpose of Report: The purpose of this report is to seek this Committee’s approval of the
Environment Strategy and Action Plan.
Report Summary: The Environment Strategy and Action Plan sets out how Oadby and

Wigston Borough Council will contribute towards reducing carbon
emissions both in terms of actions that it can take as an organisation in
its own right and in terms of the Council role in influencing local
residents and businesses and encouraging a partnership approach
involving a range of stakeholders.

The Council has established a cross party Environment Working Group
which will seek to implement this Action Plan and co-ordinate the
Council’s response to Climate Change.

Recommendation(s):

That the Environment Strategy and Action Plan (as set out at
Appendix 1 to this report) be approved.

Senior Leadership,
Head of Service,
Manager, Officer and
Other Contact(s):

Anne Court (Chief Executive)
(0116) 257 2601
anne.court@oadby-wigston.gov.uk

Adrian Thorpe (Head of The Built Environment)
(0116) 257 2645
adrian.thorpe@oadby-wigston.gov.uk

Corporate Objectives:

Building, Protecting and Empowering Communities (CO1)
Growing the Borough Economically (CO2)
Providing Excellent Services (CO3)

Vision and Values:

“A Stronger Borough Together” (Vision)
Accountability (V1)

Teamwork (V3)

Innovation (V4)

Report Implications:-

Legal:

There are no implications directly arising from this report.

Financial:

There are no implications directly arising from this report.

Corporate Risk
Management:

Decreasing Financial Resources / Increasing Financial Pressures (CR1)
Effective Utilisation of Assets / Buildings (CR5)

Failure to Respond to a Significant Incident (CR7)

Reputation Damage (CR4).

Equalities and Equalities
Assessment (EA):

There are no implications directly arising from this report.
EA not applicable.

~ Page 51 ~



mailto:anne.court@oadby-wigston.gov.uk
mailto:adrian.thorpe@oadby-wigston.gov.uk

Human Rights: There are no implications directly arising from this report.

Health and Safety: There are no implications directly arising from this report.

Statutory Officers’ Comments:-

Head of Paid Service: The report is satisfactory.

Chief Finance Officer: The report is satisfactory.

Monitoring Officer: The report is satisfactory.

Consultees: Environment Working Group

Background Papers: None.

Appendices: 1. Environment Strategy and Action Plan (November 2019)

1. Information

1.1 The Environment Strategy and Action Plan is attached at Appendix 1. The draft
document has been considered by the Environment Working Group and has subsequently
been referred to this Committee for formal approval.

1.2 At its meeting on Thursday 21 November, the Environment Working Group will be
discussing and agreeing a Vision Statement to include in the Environmental Strategy and
Action Plan. A verbal update will be provided at this meeting in order that the Vision
Statement can be approved as part of the Environmental Strategy and Action Plan.

1.3 The Environment Working Group has identified four key objectives that will focus the
activities of the Environment Strategy and Action Plan and which are set out in the
document. These are:

- Reducing Emmissions
- Raising Awareness

- Partnership Working
- Volunteering

1.4 The Environment Strategy and Action Plan contains a number of overarching actions
relating to each of the objectives. The actions are considered to be long term actions that
will be delivered incrementally up to 2024 (over the same time period as the Council’s
Corporate Plan).

1.5 In the same way as the Corporate Plan the Environment Strategy and Action Plan is to be

considered as a ‘live’ document and it will be reviewed and updated on an annual basis as
necessary. Similarly, ownership of the document is shared between Members and Officers
to ensure a comprehensive approach towards implementation of the actions.

~ Page 52 ~




Oadby and Wigston
Borough Council

Environment Strategy and
Action Plan

November 2019

Oadby & Wigston

BOROUGH COUNCIL




1.2

1.3

1.4

Introduction

Oadby and Wigston Borough Council is committed to playing its part in
responding to the growing evidence that urgent action is required to respond
to global warming.

A ‘Special Report on Global Warming of 1.5°C”was published by the
Intergovernmental Panel on Climate Change (the United Nations body for
assessing the science related to climate change) in October 2018. It found
that we are already seeing the consequences of 1°C of global warming
through more extreme weather, rising sea levels and diminishing Arctic sea
ice, among other changes. The report highlights a number of climate change
impacts that could be avoided by limiting global warming to 1.5°C but that this
requires rapid and far-reaching transitions in land, energy, industry, buildings,
transport, and cities. Global net human-caused emissions of carbon dioxide
(CO2) would need to fall by about 45 percent from 2010 levels by 2030,
reaching ‘net zero’ around 2050.

This Strategy and Action Plan sets out how Oadby and Wigston Borough
Council will contribute towards reducing carbon emissions both in terms of
actions that it can take as an organisation in its own right and in terms of the
Council role in influencing local residents and businesses and encouraging a
partnership approach involving a range of stakeholders.

The Council has established a cross party Environment Working Group which
will seek to implement this Action Plan and co-ordinate the Council’s response
to Climate Change.

Environment Strategy: Vision

Oadby and Wigston Borough Council is committed to making a positive
impact to improve the environmental sustainability of the Borough.

Environment Strategy: Objectives

The Council has identified four key objectives that will focus the activities of
this Action Plan in order to enable it to fulfil its Vision.

- Reducing Emmissions
- Raising Awareness
- Partnership Working

- Volunteering

2

~ Page 54 ~



4.2

4.3

5.2

Oadby and Wigston Borough Council Corporate Plan 2019-2024

The Council has a Corporate Plan which sets out the overarching context for
the Borough up to 2024. The Corporate Vision is ‘A Stronger Borough
Together, Improving the Lives of our Communities’ and it includes three
Corporate Objectives:

- Building, Protecting and Empowering Communities
- Growing the Borough Economically
- Providing Excellent Services

The Corporate Plan details how these Corporate Objectives will be met and
how success will be measured on an annual basis.

The Council will ensure a consistent approach between the implementation of
the Corporate Plan and the Environment Strategy and Action Plan.
Responding to Climate Change and reducing Carbon Emissions is essential
in enabling the Corporate Vision and Corporate Objectives to be delivered.
Therefore, the Environment Strategy and Action Plan will be taken into
account in the implementation of the all of the actions contained in the
Corporate Plan. The Corporate Plan is a living document and can be updated
to include further environmental actions in its annual review.

Local Plan 2011-2031

The Borough Council adopted its Local Plan in April 2019 which sets out the
approach to delivering the sustainable growth and development in the
Borough. The Local Plan seeks to ensure that all new development within the
Borough, whether it is new build or conversion, is required to illustrate the
highest standards of design and construction. It requires all development to
respect local history, character and vernacular, whilst incorporating measures
to conserve energy, achieve sustainable energy generation and minimise
waste. It requires a development to contribute towards reducing greenhouse
gas emissions; reducing flood risk, both existing and future; and, achieving
sustainable waste management.

The Local Plan seeks to actively encourage travel planning, working from
home, cycling, walking and access to fast, frequent and affordable public
transport. Whilst encouraging the reduction of private car use, it seeks to
improve the highway network within the Borough to ensure as reliable and
free flowing movement of vehicular traffic as possible.

%



6.2

Leicestershire Joint Strategic Needs Assessment 2018-2021

The Leicestershire Joint Strategic Needs Assessment analyses the health

needs of the population. It aims to improve the health and wellbeing of the

local community and reduce inequalities for all ages. It forms a continuous

process of strategic assessment and planning with the aim to develop local
evidence-based priorities for commissioning which will improve the public's
health and reduce inequalities.

The Leicestershire Joint Strategic Needs Assessment includes a specific
chapter dealing with Air Quality. This chapter specifically identifies the
Borough of Oadby and Wigston as having high levels of 'outdoor environment’
deprivation (based upon the levels of air quality and number of road traffic
accidents) and a significantly worse (higher) rate than nationally of babies
born with a low birth rate.

4

~ Page 56 ~



Action Plan

Objective: Reducing Emmissions

RE1: Ensuring New Council Buildings are Energy Efficient

This action primarily relates to new build facilities although there may also be some
opportunities to retro-fit existing buildings. There are opportunities to look at energy
efficiency in relation to the Council Offices, any new build community centres and
pavilions and any new build properties built to increase the Council’s HRA housing
stock. In relation to new build properties consideration will be given to ensuring that
appropriate green space is provided for the benefit of residents. Where possible,
consideration will be given to the use of solar panels.

Timescale: Dependent upon each specific project, however, the Corporate Plan
requires certain schemes to be brought forward during 2020.

Cost: Dependent upon each specific project. However, payback will be a key
consideration. In relation to a new build or making an addition to existing stock then
the revenue savings for measures such as solar, water reclamation, green roofs etc,
will need to be calculated within the business case as opposed to a traditional build.

Environmental Impact: It will reduce the impact that the Council’s buildings have
upon climate change. Local impact and contribution to national impact. Will take into
account the following elements: energy and carbon dioxide emissions; water;
materials; surface water run-off; waste; pollution; health and wellbeing; management;
ecology.

How action effect change: This action will enable the Council to lead by example in
terms of delivering energy efficient buildings.

Links to Corporate Plan: GBES To have finalised proposals for the redevelopment
of at least one town centre site; GBE6 To have finalised proposals for the delivery of
a new doctors surgery in South Wigston

Short Term Actions/KPls

To have completed a costed Conservation Plan of Bushloe House by end of
December 2019

To have reviewed the HRA Business Plan by the end of March 2021 and in doing so,
commenced an appraisal of options to improve the energy efficiency of the Council’s
Housing Stock

To consider viable options to integrate energy efficient measures in new
developments brought forward through regeneration projects - ongoing

5

%



RE2: Encouraging Sustainable Transport

This action relates to providing opportunities for the use of sustainable transport.
This includes:

e negotiation and liaison with developers in the consideration of planning
applications

e installation of electric car charging points in town centres/car parks

e taking opportunities to get involved with and influence long term transport
proposals through the Leicester and Leicestershire Strategic Growth Plan

e encouraging the use of the Grand Union Canal towpath by cyclists

e keeping a watching brief on the introduction of a Clean Air Zone in Leicester and
influencing with regard to and potential impacts upon the Borough

e Reducing the environmental impact of transport within out borough by adopting
responsible practices and policies around staff travel and ensuring our IT
provision supports home working, teleconferencing and paperless meetings

e Live steaming of Council meetings to enable residents to view Council business
from home rather than having to travel to attend

e Introducing a staged reduction of the age of vehicles that are licensed with the
aim of ensuring that all vehicles are Euro Standard 6 compliant

Timescale: Short, medium to long term dependent upon each specific project

Cost: Dependent upon each specific project. With the exception of the footbridge at
Ervins lock it is anticipated that costs will either be staff costs, funded by grants or
Section 106 Contributions

Environmental Impact: It will reduce the impact of harmful transport related
emissions into the atmosphere. Local impact and contribution to national impact

How action effect change: This action relates to policy and practice employed by
the Council and influencing policy and practice of partners.

Links to Corporate Plan: BPE11 Install footbridge at Ervins Lock

Short Term Actions/KPls

To introduce a bicycle pool for Council staff to use when undertaking site visits by
the end of March 2021

To develop specific proposals for the introduction of electric car charging points in
town centres/car parks by the end of December 2020

To have introduced live streaming of Council meetings by the end of March 2021

To have met the first stage in the reduction of the age of vehicles that are licensed
with the aim of ensuring that all vehicles are Euro Standard 6 compliant

To have investigated potential to review the Council’s staff car loan scheme to
encourage purchase of low emission vehicles by the end of March 2020

To have reviewed the Public Realm Supplementary Planning Document by March
2021

~ Page 58 ~

6




RE3: Ensuring Council Vehicles are Energy Efficient

This action primarily relates to the purchase of new vehicles for the Depot.
Consideration is given to the purchase of those vehicles which have low emissions
and improved fuel efficiency. Alternative powered vehicles (electric / bio fuel etc.) will
also be considered on a case by case basis, as new technology develops and
improves. The supplier of our current fleet of refuse vehicles is in the process of
improving the development of an electric option and although this is currently
considered to be not economically or practically viable at present it will be a major
consideration in our next round of purchasing should it be found to be effective and
within the budget allocation.

Timescale: New replacement vehicles required will be purchased when the current
vehicles are approximately 7 years old. Consideration of electric vehicles is
dependent on the development of these new vehicles and infrastructure being in
place.

Cost: This is dependent upon each specific vehicle required. However vehicles with
the best power supply / emissions will be a priority.

Environment Impact: The local impact will include reduced emissions/ pollution,
and improved health and wellbeing.

How action effects change: This action, particularly the future consideration of
alternative powered vehicles, will showcase the Council as an authority committed to
reducing emissions, as well as a providing a positive contribution to the national
impact.

Links to Corporate Plan: BPE22 To keep our environment as clean as possible

Short Term Actions/KPls

To introduce Miles per Gallon (mpg) targets across the Council’s fleet of vehicles to
ensure that they are used in the most efficient manner possible by April 2020

RE4: Develop an Energy Performance Certificate Strategy for all Council
Housing Properties

We measure the performance of our homes using a SAP score (standard
assessment procedure). SAP scores are banded into EPC (Energy Performance
Certificate) ratings for homes, and an EPC certificate is produced each time an
assessment is carried out. This action will establish our performance baseline for all
properties; develop an Energy/Environmental Strategy for council homes and
estates; develop road maps for each property archetype, to understand how to
achieve long term targets most cost effectively; agree an Energy Investment Plan
incorporated within an overall HRA Asset Management Strategy for 2020-2025. In
addition, our investment programme to maximise the energy efficiency and

7

%



effectiveness of the heating and hot water services to each of our homes requires
the renewal of boilers that are 15 or more years old and where necessary the
associated heating systems.

Timescale: Short term — deliver EPC actions by May 2020. Boiler replacement
programme 2019-20: 290 properties at an estimated cost of £435,000; 2020-23: 310
properties at an estimated cost of £465,000; 2023-29: 300 properties at an estimated
cost of £450,000

Cost: Any costs associated with EPC work are already budgeted for. For boiler
replacement programme see above

Environmental Impact: Local impact and contribution to national impact

How action effect change: This action relates to policy and practice employed by
the Council.

Links to Corporate Plan: Providing Excellent Services.

Short Term Actions/KPIs
To have delivered EPC (Energy Performance Certificate) actions by May 2020
To have replaced boilers in 290 properties by the end of March 2020

To have replaced boilers in 310 properties by the end of March 2023

RE5: Reduce the Use of Paper and Plastics
We will do this by:

e Continuing our transformation work to migrate paper processes to an electronic
capability through the use of the Electronic Documents and Records
Management System

e Replacing internal paper transactions and processes with online forms

e Introducing responsible printing protocols, reducing the amount of printing or
printing efficiently where it is required

e Increasing the number of customer transactions that can be done on line

e Introduction of e-billing for both Council Tax and Business Rates for the Council’s
25,000 paying customers, each of which currently requires at least one piece of
written correspondence per year

e Making Committees paperless —this will achieve a reduction of over 50,000
sheets of Committee papers printed annually

e Reviewing all opportunities to stop or reduce the use of plastics

Timescale: This work is in progress and will continue. For e-billing for both Council
Tax and Business Rates we will aim to go live before the start of the 2021/22 annual
billing process

8

~ Page 60~



Cost: Officer time. For e-billing a new module(s) for the Academy IT system will be
required with both capital and revenue implications. However, this is an invest to
save situation and ongoing savings will accrue.

Environment Impact: The production and use of paper and plastics has a number
of adverse effects on the environment and is significant due to the amount. This
action will allow the Council to reduce its carbon footprint by reducing fossil fuelled
energy use such as electricity and reduce paper and plastic usage.

How action effects change: These initiatives support existing national and global
campaigns encouraging responsible reduction of paper and plastic usage and
reducing travel where alternative ways to conducting business can be implemented.
This action relates to policy and practice employed by the Council, however will
require buy-in from tax payers and as a result full impact will take place over a
number of years.

Links to Corporate Plan: PES 6 Average time taken to process Benefit Claims;
PES7 Average time taken to process change in circumstances; PES8 The number of
online transactions submitted by residents will increase; PES17 Facilitate the
Migration to Paperless Committees; PES25 Council Tax Collection Rate; PES26
NNDR Collection Rate; PES27 Reduce Former Years Arrears for Council Tax;
PES28 Reduce Former YEARS Arrears for NNDR; PES29 — Reduce outstanding HB
overpayments; PES32 Redesign the way our services work to ensure effective
working practices; PES33 Migrate paper processes generally to electronic cabability;
PES 36 Continue to improve value for money at the Council

Short Term Actions/KPIs
To have facilitiated the move to paperless Committees by March 2020

To have eliminated the use of plastic cups by March 2020

REG6: Reducing the Overall Council Carbon Footprint at the Main Council
Offices

We will do this by:

e Reviewing desktop computer and printing equipment to ensure that the Council is
using the most energy efficient equipment using the lowest voltage suitable

¢ Reviewing Homeworking policy — Expand the homeworking arrangements of
Council Staff with the view of moving services off site. There are many areas
across the authority which do not require or at least lend themselves to not
having a permanent office base

Timescale: Medium Term — Start immediately survey of all equipment and review of
homeworking policy. A pilot scheme could be considered for 2020/21

9

%



Cost: Dependent on initial survey and will require commitment to a capital budget
Environmental Impact: Reduce the consumption of fossil fuel Electricity

How action effects change: Will require advice and extra resources from the
Council’s ICT contractor

Links to Corporate Plan: PES32 Redesign the way our services work to ensure
effective working practices

Short Term Actions/KPlIs

To have completed a homeworking pilot scheme by March 2021

RE7: Develop a Procurement Strategy to Maximise Use of Sustainable
Materials

The Council will develop and rewrite its procurement strategy to maximise the use of
supplies made from only sustainable sources. We will do this by:

e Reviewing both Gas and Electricity tariffs that the Council uses to make sure that
we are always on the most ‘green tariff’ available.

e Investigate the use of electric vehicles to carry out services for example fully
electric refuse vehicles which are not only cleaner to environment but quieter
creating less disturbance at early hours of the day.

e Ensuring that our tenders for major refurbishment/new build contractors require
contractors to meet high environmental standards by achieving 1ISO14001
Environmental Management.

Timescale: Deliver during 2020/21

Cost: The review of the procurement strategy would be carried out in house by
officers. Sustainably sources purchases will be delivered from existing budgets and
future capital programmes.

How action effects change: This will require considerable officer time to review
current procurement practices and the sustained support from members and SLT
together with commitment from officers to carry out the new strategy

Links to Corporate Plan: PES32 Redesign the way our services work to ensure
effective working practices

Short Term Actions/KPls

To have the new Procurement Strategy in place by the end of March 2021

10

~ Page 62 ~



Objective: Raising Awareness

RA1: Raising Awareness of Initiatives and Opportunities to Support and
Encourage a Cleaner Environment for our Residents

We will do this by increasing awareness amongst our staff, councillors, residents,
businesses, contractors, partners, community, stakeholders and voluntary groups
through initiatives including training and providing environmental learning
opportunities to embed a culture of responsibility to work in a sustainable and
environmentally friendly way.

Timescale: Short Term
Cost: Officer time and possible budget allocation for materials.

Environment Impact: Increasing awareness will encourage responsible practises to
improve the air quality in the Borough

How action effects change: This initiative supports existing national and global
campaigns to promote better awareness of environmental issues

Links to Corporate Plan: Building, Protecting and Empowering Communities

Short Term Actions/KPls

We will include regular articles in the Council’s Letterbox publication - ongoing

RA2: Raising Awareness of Initiatives and Opportunities to Improve Air Quality

We will install an Air Quality Monitoring Station at Blaby Road/Station Road junction
in order to Monitor NOx Levels and Provide Evidence for Declaration of Air Quality
Management Area. The Council recognises the link between improved air quality
and health and wellbeing and the benefits in order to reduce imbalances across the
Borough. We will investigate opportunities to promote this via Clean Air initiatives in
the Borough.

Timescale: Short term - Current municipal year before mid-May 2020
Cost: £25,000 provided by S106 monies

Environment Impact: If monitoring indicates that an Air Quality Management Area
needs to be declared the Council will put together a plan to improve the air quality - a
Local Air Quality Action Plan.

How action effects change: This action will enable the Council to lead by example
in terms of improving air quality. The Council will work with partners under the
auspices of the Leicestershire Joint Strategic Needs Assessment 2018-2021 to

11

%



improve the health and wellbeing of the local community and reduce inequalities for
all ages.

Links to Corporate Plan: BPE20 We will ensure installation and activation of Air
Quality Monitoring Station in Blaby Road, South Wigston

Short Term Actions/KPls

To have installed an Air Quality Monitoring Station at Blaby Road/Station Road
junction by the end of May 2020

To have considered opportunities to use the public wifi equipment in town centres as
a means of also monitoring air quality by the end of March 2021

RA3: Provide Educational Opportunities Relating to Engaging with Nature

Educating the next generation about the life cycles of plants and animals, wildlife
habitats, woodlands, wildflower meadows and ponds is important to the Borough
Council. This action provides educational opportunities, by working with specialist
instructors to deliver a range of experiences to school pupils and visitors to the
Borough, for example, Brocks Hill County Park. Activities include pond dipping, mini
beast hunts and den building.

Timescale: This important action is on-going.

Cost: Utilising the local leisure provider to deliver educational opportunities with no
cost to the Local Authority.

Environment Impact: The aim is to up-skill the next generation in order to conserve
and enhance the range of habitats and their associated species to ensure that the
Borough’s parks retain their ecological value into the future.

How action effects change: This action will influence policy and practice of local
partners who utilise the Borough'’s parks for educational activities — e.g.
schools/community groups who will take the learning back into their classroom
environment.

Links to Corporate Plan: Building, Protecting and Empowering Communities

Short Term Actions/KPlIs

To have provided 1000 educational opportunities to individuals by the end of March
2020

12

~ Page 64 ~



RA4: Manage our Parks to Protect the Countryside, Preserve the Local
Landscape and Nurture Wildlife

The Parks in the Borough provide a range of opportunities for visitors to enjoy the
countryside, including wildlife watching, recreation, wild play and exercise.

Timescale: Short Term. In terms of Brocks Hill, the overarching management plan
runs from 2018 — 2022, when it will be reviewed and updated.

Cost: The cost to deliver this action is officer time as well as access to the current
budget allocation. Possible additional budget allocation required for materials.

Environment Impact: The aim is to conserve and enhance the range of habitats
and their associated species to ensure the Borough’s Parks retain their ecological
value into the future.

How action effects change: This action will influence policy and practice of local
partners such as schools and community groups who utilise the Borough’s Parks.

Links to Corporate Plan: Building, Protecting and Empowering Communities

Short Term Actions/KPIs

To have reviewed the Brocks Hill Management Plan to come into effect from April
2022

Objective: Partnership Working

PW1: Increase Tree Planting

The primary benefits of trees are that the process greatly contributes to producing
the oxygen that we and all other animals need to breathe and sustain life. It is well
documented that trees reduce the amount of storm water runoff, which reduces
erosion and pollution in our waterways and may reduce the effects of flooding which
are projected to become more intense with the progress of climate change. Many
species of wildlife depend on trees for habitat. Trees provide food, protection, and
homes for many birds, Insects and mammals. In the short term (before May 2020)
we will complete digital mapping of all council owned property and land; assess
OWBC land usage, identifying constraints and opportunities; engage the Forestry
Commission, Woodland Trust and The Tree Council to ascertain the most
appropriate funding available. In the medium term (before March 2023) we will
implement new and improved landscape management programme for maximum tree
and meadow grass coverage — Climate change, carbon neutral, air quality, flood risk,
pollinator’s.

Timescale: See above

13

%



Cost: There are a number of grant schemes available that we will seek funding from
including The Countryside Stewardship (CS) Woodland Creation Grant (WCG) and
the Urban Tree Challenge Fund (UTCF)

Environmental Impact: Local impact and contribution to national impact

How action effect change: This action relates to policy and practice employed by
the Council and will also rely on support from local stakeholder initiatives.

Links to Corporate Plan: BPE19 Through the implementation of parks, open
spaces, play areas and tree strategies we will have an organised approach to
delivery across the Borough.

Short Term Actions/KPls

Complete digital mapping of all council owned property and land; assess OWBC land
usage, identifying constraints and opportunities; engage the Forestry Commission,
Woodland Trust and The Tree Council to ascertain the most appropriate funding
available by May 2020.

PW2: Promote the Leicester Low Carbon Transport Accelerator

Grants are available up to a maximum of £10,000 for the purchase of new taxi
vehicles. The Scheme can provide up to 40% of the difference between the cost of
an Ultra-Low Emission Vehicle and the cost of the usual replacement in grant
support (subject to a maximum cap). The scheme is managed by Leicester City
Council and part-funded through the European Regional Development Fund (ERDF),
the Scheme requires a Full Application form to be completed. Grant funding is
provided by the European Regional Development Fund (ERDF) and available to
Taxis operating across the Leicester and Leicestershire Economic Partnership Area.
In the medium term the Council intends to carry out a review of its Vehicle Licencing
Policy with a view to bringing in a staged reduction of the age of vehicles that are
licensed aimed at ensuring that all vehicles are Euro Standard 6 compliant.

Timescale: Short Term. The Council has already promoted the scheme to all taxi
operators within the Borough.

Cost: Staff time - making information and application packs available.
Environmental Impact: Local impact and contribution to national impact

How action effect change: This action relates to policy and practice at a European
level and employed at a local level.

Links to Corporate Plan: Growing the Borough Economically

Short Term Actions/KPls

Promotion of the scheme to all taxi operators within the Borough - achieved.

14

~ Page 66~



PW3: Manage Flood Planning and Response

This action relates to working with Leicester, Leicestershire & Rutland (LLR) on
countywide partnership plans, including flood planning and response, now and into
the future. Not only to provide an early and appropriate multi-agency response to a
flood or potential flooding incident, but to continue to be proactive in mapping critical
infrastructure at risk of flooding and identifying new areas at risk, as a result of
climate change. Training provided to officers and regular exercising of the locality
plan will enable the authority to be prepared.

Timescale: New Incident Plan template will be available by the end of October 2019.
This plan will incorporate the locality flood plan towards the end of the year, to
ensure all information is available in the same document.

Cost: The Council provides a contribution to the Resilience Partnership for their
expertise and ongoing advice. County-wide training and exercise is provided free of
charge. The purchase of additional sandbags will be based on the mapping of new
identified areas at risk and the need to increase current stocks.

Environment Impact: Flooding impacts on individuals, businesses and communities
and has a social economic and environmental consequence. By mapping new areas
that are identified ‘at risk’, the Council together with the LLR Partnership will continue
to raise awareness through campaigns to encourage home owners and businesses
to put in place contingency plans.

How action effects change: By working with LLR and the Environment Agency to
identify new hotspots, the Council will work with stakeholders to address areas of
concern.

Links to Corporate Plan: Building, Protecting and Empowering communities

Short Term Actions/KPls

Incident Plan/Locality Flood Plan to be complete by the end of March 2020

PW4: Encourage Schools to take up Sustainable Travel Initiatives

This action relates to working with our Leisure Contractor Everyone Active, as well
as the School Sports Partnership and Leicestershire County Council. The aim is to
encourage more schools to take up sustainable travel initiatives e.g. to walk or cycle
to school. Active travel will help reduce the number of people using their cars to
travel short distances, and reduce pollution levels, particularly at school drop-off and
pick -up times. This will in turn encourage more people to think about their wellbeing
and the importance of walking and being more physically active to improve their
health.

15

%



Timescale: Working with the School Sport Partnership during term-time and with the
leisure contractor as an ongoing action — utilising the range of local and national
campaigns.

Cost: This action will help towards the reduction in pollution levels, particularly at
peak travel times. It will improve participant’s health and wellbeing including mental
health.

Environment Impact: Working to increase the number of people being more active
and utilising other forms of travel, will help to improve air quality.

How action effects change: This action will require support from local stakeholders,
particularly Borough schools and engagement from residents.

Links to Corporate Plan: Building, Protecting and Empowering communities

Short Term Actions/KPIs

To have worked with 10 schools to introduce new sustainable transport initiatives by
the end of March 2021

PWS5: Formally Designate Brocks Hill Country Park as a Local Natural Reserve

OWBC is working with Natural England to formally designate Brocks Hill Country
Park as a Local Natural Reserve. This has many benefits including retaining the
countryside and natural open space of the Green Wedge, where Brocks Hill is an
essential link.

Timescale: This matter is on the Agenda for approval at September’s Service
Delivery Committee. Once approved this will deliver long term benefits for the
residents of O&W.

Cost: The only cost to implement this action is officer time, as well as Volunteer
assistance during conservation tasks in order to continue to improve and enhance
the Country Park.

Environment Impact: It will provide protection of the habitats and biodiversity, and
will promote Brocks Hill as an area for recreation and enjoyment for local people and
visitors from outside the Borough for years to come.

How action effects change: This action, sanctioned by OWBC, will prevent the land
from being used for development purposes.

Links to Corporate Plan: Building, Protecting and Empowering Communities

Short Term Actions/KPls

To have received formal designation from Natural England by December 2020

16

~ Page 68 ~



Objective: Volunteering

VO1: Improve the Environmental Quality of the Council’s Housing Estates

This action relates to developing community cohesion to improve the environmental
quality of the Council housing estates and to develop a sense of pride in tenants’
appreciation of their immediate environment. The proposal is to encourage local
community groups to extend their remit to include the Council’s housing estates and
to work with residents over initiatives which may include tree planting, creation and
planning up of borders, planters and improvements to street furniture with a view to a
contribution to the Britain on Bloom competition. Awards could be offered to tenants.
Also possibility to link to a campaign against fly tipping on the Council’s estates and
improving recycling and bin areas on estates to encourage more recycling.

Timescale: Short term — deliver during 2020

Cost: The Council would need to set aside a small amount of funding to finance this
initiative, although sponsorship could also be sought.

Environmental Impact: Local impact — enhanced quality of the Council’s housing
estates, improve wellbeing of tenants

How action effect change: This action will require support from local stakeholder
initiatives, particularly local community groups. It will also require close working with
and support from the Operations section who are currently responsible for grounds
maintenance at the Council’s estates

Links to Corporate Plan: BPE22 To keep our environment as clean as possible

Short Term Actions/KPls

To have community groups established with the aim of improving environmental
quality of the Council’s housing estates by the end of March 2021

VO2: To Increase the Number of Volunteers to Improve the Environment

Volunteers add value to the important work across the Borough’s Town Centres and
natural green and open spaces. This ranges from getting important messages out to
residents about recycling, to clearing litter from our Town Centres. Volunteers and
particularly community champions are well placed to engage with their communities
to make a difference, whilst providing volunteers with a positive experience which
develops new skills and heightens a sense of wellbeing. The Council will aim to bring
together initiatives currently underway, for example in relation to reducing the use of
plastics.

Timescale: The aim is to recruit further Volunteers in the short-term, before May
2020.

17

%



Cost: Utilising local Volunteers, who give their time freely, provides no additional
costs to the Local Authority.

Environment Impact: This action will continue to improve the local area by using
volunteers to get the message out about the importance of recycling, to assist with
clearing litter from our Town Centres, as well as helping to protect habitats and the
biodiversity of the local area, through conservation work.

How action effects change: This action will support local stakeholder initiatives and
influence the practice of local partners. The Council will aim to work closely with
voluntary and charitable organisations in the Borough.

Links to Corporate Plan: BPE7 Increase the number of volunteers the Council
recruits to assist with improving the Borough

Short Term Actions/KPIs
To have a volunteering strategy/policy in place by the end of March 2020

To have started the process of recruiting volunteers by the end of May 2020

18

~ Page 70~



Agenda ltem 12

N S Policy, Finance and Matter for
rT I
ﬁ ), Development N::::Il::‘:-'zzgw Information and

r»o;ﬁﬁﬁ/ :;%f*/ Committee Decision
Report Title: Volunteering Vision, Aims and Policy (2019-2024)
Report Author(s): Philippa Fisher (Marketing & Insight Manager)
Purpose of Report: The purpose of this report is to seek this Committee’s approval of the

Volunteering Vision, Aims and Policy for 2019-2024.

Report Summary: The Volunteering Vision, Aims and Policy sets out how Oadby and

Wigston Borough Council will deliver and co-ordinate use of volunt-
eers in providing services to the community and within the Council as
well as how it can usefully encourage volunteering opportunities.

Recommendation(s):

That the Volunteering Vision, Aims and Policy (2019-2024)
(as set out at Appendix 1 to this report) be approved.

Senior Leadership,
Head of Service,
Manager, Officer and
Other Contact(s):

Anne Court (Chief Executive)
(0116) 257 2257 2601
anne.courtl @oadby-wigston.gov.uk

Philippa Fisher (Marketing & Insight Manager)
(0116) 257 2677
philippa.fisher@oadby-wigston.gov.uk

Corporate Objectives:

Building, Protecting and Empowering Communities (CO1)
Providing Excellent Services (CO3)

Vision and Values:

“A Stronger Borough Together” (Vision)
Teamwork (V3)

Customer Focus (V5)

Innovation (V4)

Report Implications:-

Legal:

There are no implications directly arising from this report.

Financial:

There are no implications directly arising from this report.

Corporate Risk
Management:

Reputation Damage (CR4)
Decreasing Financial Resources / Increasing Financial Pressures (CR1)
Organisational / Transformational Change (CR8)

Equalities and Equalities
Assessment (EA):

There are no implications directly arising from this report.
Initial EA Screening (See Appendices).

Human Rights:

There are no implications directly arising from this report.

Health and Safety:

There are no implications directly arising from this report.

Statutory Officers’ Comments:-

Head of Paid Service:

The report is satisfactory.

~ Page 71 ~



mailto:forename.surname@oadby-wigston.gov.uk
mailto:philippa.fisher@oadby-wigston.gov.uk

Chief Finance Officer: The report is satisfactory.

Monitoring Officer: The report is satisfactory.

Consultees: None.

Background Papers: None.

Appendices: 1. Draft Volunteering Vision, Aims and Policy (2019-2024)
2. Initial EA Screening (November 2019)

1.1

1.2

1.3

1.4

Information

The Volunteering Vision, Aims and Policy (2019-2024) is attached at Appendix 1.

The draft document has been considered by Senior Leadership Team of the Council and has
subsequently been referred to this Committee for formal approval.

The Council already provides some opportunities for volunteers and works with volunteer
groups and therefore recognises the benefits of volunteering for individuals, organisations
and communities. The Volunteering Vision, Aims and Policy will enable development of
volunteering and consistency of practice.

The Volunteering Vision, Aims and Policy has identified three key volunteering opportunities
that it will focus its activities on:

Volunteers registering for the council for working in the community;
Oadby and Wigston Borough Council staff volunteering in the community and
Volunteers working in the council to support and deliver services.

~ Page 72 ~




Oadby and Wigston
Borough Council

Volunteering Vision, Aims
and Policy

2019 - 2024

Date for Approval: 26 November 2019
Review Date: November 2021
Version 1.1

Oadby & Wigston

BOROUGH COUNCIL




1 Executive Summary

Oadby and Wigston Borough Council’s Volunteering Policy provides a focus for the council
in how it makes use of volunteers in providing services to the community as well as how it
can usefully encourage volunteering opportunities, and the take up of those opportunities
across the Borough.

The volunteering policy is three fold:-

1.1 Volunteers registered with the Council for working in the community.
As part of the Council, the Community Engagement Team will link up with partners
and stakeholders in the community to identify local priorities, activities and
opportunities for volunteers registered with the council to work on.

1.2 Encouraging Oadby and Wigston Borough Council staff to volunteer in the
Community
Oadby and Wigston Borough Council will support its employees who undertake
voluntary roles and are exploring ways in which its existing staff population can
contribute to Oadby and Wigston community through volunteering.

1.3 Volunteers working in the Council to support services.
The Council seeks to encourage and facilitate volunteering to support the delivery of
the local and strategic priorities identified within the Council’s Corporate Plan 2019 —
2024 and within its services provided to the community.

The Council recognises the benefits of volunteering for individuals, organisations and
communities. These include the individual benefits of pride and an enhanced sense of
belonging in the community.

In addition, there are wider community benefits including retaining or providing services that
would otherwise be financial unviable. Other Council partners are supportive of the use of
volunteers and a volunteering policy.

Volunteering can be via short term one off events or attached to a more permanent scheme
or services.

Oadby and Wigston Borough Council’s Corporate Plan sets out a vision of ‘A Stronger
Borough Together, Improving the Lives of Our Communities’. Volunteering has a key role to
play in this. As well as making specific reference to working with the ‘voluntary sector
partners’ and providing specific Council services with the support of volunteers.

The policy is to encourage more people to get involved in volunteering and give the Council
a lead role in removing or reducing barriers to volunteering. The policy recognises the
challenges of the Council’s ability to impact individual decisions and therefore its focus is on
making the best use of volunteers and volunteering opportunities to maximise the personal,
organisation and community benefits from volunteering.

~ Page 74 ~



2 Volunteering Strategy — The Vision and Aims
Oadby and Wigston Borough Council is committed to:-

2.1 Overseeing , obtaining and increasing the number of people who volunteer in
Oadby and Wigston Borough but also the number of volunteering opportunities
available for those people.

2.2 Promoting opportunities for organisations that rely on volunteers to collaborate
and share best practice.

2.3 Making the best possible use of the time, energy and skills that volunteers
provide across the council services, out in the community and with partners.

2.4 Keeping volunteers, those they support and those that commission them safe.

2.5 Recognising the value of volunteers.

By making these commitments Oadby and Wigston Borough Council will achieve the
following:

2.6 Deliver more and improved greater services and support through volunteering to
more people across Oadby and Wigston Borough than is otherwise currently
possible.

2.7 Provide individuals with more skills and experience in order to improve their
employability.

2.8 Provide individuals with a sense of purpose, involvement and passion for their
community in order to help improve self-confidence, opportunities, health and
wellbeing.

29 Support the building of community cohesion by linking individuals and groups
through volunteering.

3 Volunteering Policy — Objectives

We will improve and grow our volunteering within Oadby and Wigston Borough Council.
Volunteers can be involved in supporting one off activities, often related to one off events or
campaigns. Other volunteering opportunities may be part of ongoing schemes.

Oadby and Wigston Borough Council can make use of volunteers in the following services:

Local Area Boards support by the Community & Wellbeing Teams
Supporting initiatives run by University of Leicester for community engagement
Right to Read/Schools

Chatter Natter

Community Fridge/Foodbanks

Action Homeless

Grand Union Canal

Gardening

Pride of the Borough

Park Volunteering

Supporting the UK Armed Forces

%



Oadby and Wigston Borough Council, as part of the volunteering policy, will have a continual
review process concerning the use of volunteers within the Council and policies and
procedures will be updated accordingly. This will include:-

= Recruitment of volunteers including the registration form.

= Vetting of volunteers including Disclosure and Barring (DBS) requirements for
volunteers working with the public in roles where this is a requirement e.g. working
with children or vulnerable adults.

» |nduction of new volunteers, which is pertinent to the role and service.

= Required training, including safeguard, as necessary.

= Review meetings and on-going support and training.

= How we recognise and celebrate the contributions and successes of volunteering.

A process has been developed to promote and support the use of volunteers registered with
the volunteers registered with the Council working in the community, Council staff working in
the community, volunteers working in the Council. Officers and Managers will act as internal
volunteering experts and as a source of knowledge and experience to be called on for
support if and when required.

Increasing the number of opportunities to volunteer will require a council wide response as
more volunteers will need to be managed within existing resources.

Oadby and Wigston Borough Council will develop a central register of volunteers for
management information and statistics purposes electronically to ensure proper volunteer
management and appropriate safeguarding procedures. This will comply with GDPR
regulations of May 2018.

All volunteering opportunities will be advertised on a single page on the council’s external
facing website www.oadby-wigston.gov.uk/volunteering with links to more details where
appropriate.

In addition, promotion of specific opportunities will be as appropriate for that opportunity;
within the community or within an interest group.

Volunteers will be accepted in accordance with the principles of fairness, consistency and

openness in accordance with the Council’'s Equal Opportunities Policy and should aim to
reflect the diversity in the Borough.

4

~ Page 76~


http://www.oadby-wigston.gov.uk/volunteering

Appendix 2

Oadby & Wigston

BOROUGH COUNCIL

EQUALITY ASSESSMENT

PART 1 - INITIAL SCREENING

Name of Policy/Function: X | This is new
Volunteering Vision, Aims and . - :
Policy (2019-2024) [ ]| This is a change to an existing policy
] This is an existing policy, Function, not
previously assessed
[ ]| This is an existing policy/function for review
Date of screening 18 November 2019

1. Briefly describe its aims & objectives

The Strategy is to develop volunteering opportunities within the Borough and to
provide consistency in practice

2. Are there external considerations?

e.g. legislation/government directive etc.

No

3. Who are the stakeholders and what are their interests?

The local community. Their interests are to either participate in volunteering services
or to receive the benefit of volunteering services

4. What outcomes do we want to achieve and for whom?

~ Page 77 ~



Increase the number and quality of volunteering opportunities to have a positive
impact for both the Council and the local community

5. Has any consultation/research been carried out?

Research with external partners/organisations who have volunteering strategies in
place.

6. Are there any concerns at this stage which indicate the possibility of
Inequalities/negative impacts?

Consider and identify any evidence you have -equality data relating to usage and
satisfaction levels, complaints, comments, research, outcomes of review, issues raised at
previous consultations, known inequalities) If so please provide details.

No

7. Could a particular group be affected differently in either a negative or positive
way?

Positive — It could benefit
Negative — It could disadvantage
Neutral — Neither positive nor negative impact or not sure.

Type of impact, reason & any evidence

Disability Positive

Race (including Gypsy | Positive
& Traveller)

Age Positive

Gender Reassignment | Positive

Sex Positive
Sexual Orientation Positive
Religion/Belief Positive

~ Page 78 ~



Marriage and Civil Positive
Partnership

Pregnancy and Positive
Maternity

8. Could other socio-economic groups be affected?

e.g. carers, ex-offenders, low incomes, homeless?

Volunteering can be positive in providing experience and learning skills to be
successful in gaining future employment.  Providing volunteer services supports
those most vulnerable and improves the quality of life for many people

9. Are there any human rights implications?

No

10. Is there an opportunity to promote equality and/or good community relations?

Yes, volunteering opportunities provide a way for bringing people and communities
together and for local people to be involved in local life. It also provides a voice to
local people particularly those whose without one.

11. If you have indicated a negative impact for any group is that impact legal?

i.e. not discriminatory under anti-discrimination legislation

N/A

12. Is any part of this policy/service to be carried out wholly or partly by
contractors?

No.

13. Is a Part 2 full Equality Assessment required?

No

~ Page 79 ~



14. Date by which a Part 2 full Equality Assessment is to be completed with actions.

N/A

Please note that you should proceed to a Part 2, the full Equality Impact
Assessment if you have identified actual, or the potential to cause, adverse impact
or discrimination against different groups in the community.

We are satisfied that an initial screening has been carried out and a full equality
assessment is not required* (please delete as appropriate).

Completed by Philippa Fisher Date 18/1/19
(Policy/Function/Report written)

Countersigned by Stephen Hinds Date 18/1/19
(Head of Service)

Please forward an electronic copy to:veronika.quintyne@oadby-wigston.gov.uk
(Community Engagement Officer)

Equality Assessments shall be published on the Council website with the relevant and
appropriate document upon which the equality assessment has been undertaken.

~ Page 80 ~



Agenda Item 13

Policy, Finance and
Development
Committee

Matter for
Information

Tuesday, 26
November 2019

Report Title:

Report Author(s):

Standards and Ethical Indicators Report Q2 2019/20

Dave Gill — Monitoring Officer (Head of Law and Democracy)

Purpose of Report:

To receive the figures for local determination of complaints and the
ethical indicators for Quarter 2 of 2019/20.

Report Summary:

The report provides information to Members in relation to Member
complaints, corporate and Ombudsman complaints, Freedom of
Information requests and Anti-Social Behaviour reports and
resolutions.

Recommendation(s):

A. That the content of the report and appendix be noted.

Senior Leadership,
Head of Service,
Manager, Officer and
Other Contact(s):

Stephen Hinds (Deputy Chief Executive)
(0116) 257 2821
stephen.hinds@oadby-wigston.gov.uk

Dave Gill (Monitoring Officer /Head of Law and Democracy)
(0116) 257 2626
david.gill@oadby-wigston.gov.uk

Corporate Objectives:

Providing Excellent Services (CO3)

Vision and Values:

Accountability (V1)

Respect (V2)

“A Stronger Borough Together” (Vision)
Customer Focus (V5)

Report Implications:-

Legal:

There are no implications arising from this report.

Financial:

There are no implications arising from this report.

Corporate Risk
Management:

Political Dynamics (CR3)
Reputation Damage (CR4)
Regulatory Governance (CR6)

Equalities and Equalities
Assessment (EA):

There are no implications arising from this report.
EA not applicable

Human Rights:

There are no implications arising from this report.

Health and Safety:

There are no implications arising from this report.

Statutory Officers’ Comments:-

Head of Paid Service:

The report is satisfactory.

~ Page 81 ~




Chief Finance Officer: The report is satisfactory.

Monitoring Officer: As the author, the report is satisfactory.

Consultees: None.

Background Papers: None.

Appendices: 1. Standards and Ethical Indicators Quarter Two Report
2019/20

1. Background

1.1

1.2

1.3

Members will recall that when they considered the report of the Investigatory
Powers Commissioner into the Council’s use of the Regulation of Investigatory
Powers Act 2000 on 26 March 2019 it was noted by the Commissioner that regular
reports about the Council’s activities under that Act were not being reported
regularly to Members.

In order to address that issue it was agreed that a quarterly report would
henceforth be provided to this Committee and the opportunity would be taken

to reference other matters which Officers considered would be of interest

to Members, including the number and disposal of Member complaints,

the number of corporate and Ombudsman complaints, the number of Freedom of
Information requests and the number of ASB reports and resolutions.

The Quarter 2 report for 2019/20 is attached for Members’ information.

~ Page 82 ~




Appendix 1

OADBY AND WIGSTON BOROUGH COUNCIL

STANDARDS AND ETHICAL INDICATORS
QUARTER 2 REPORT

2019-20

~ Page 83 ~



1. Introduction

This is the quarterly report to the Policy Finance and Development Committee detailing both the
figures for the Ethical Indicators and the figures for the Local Determination of Complaints process
for 2019-20.

For clarification purposes the months covered by the quarters are as follows:

Quarter 1 — 1 April to 30 June

Quarter 2 — 1 July to 30 September
Quarter 3 — 1 October to 31 December
Quarter 4 — 1 January to 31 March

The report is split into 2 parts for ease of reference; Part 1 refers to the local determination of
complaints, part 2 is the table showing the ethical indicators figures.

The report will enable the Policy Finance and Development Committee to build up a picture over
time of how many complaints are received and where these are coming from. The parts of the Code
of Conduct which have been breached will also be recorded to enable training to be targeted
effectively.

2. Part 1 — Local Determination of Complaints

The Monitoring Officer received 1 complaint in Quarter 2 of 2019/20.

2.1 Source of Complaint

The complainant was a member of staff.

2.2 Assessment Sub-committee Decisions

There have been No Assessment Sub-committee meetings in this quarter.

As members will be aware, the Monitoring Officer now pursues an informal dispute resolution
process prior to initialling formal proceedings via the Sub-committee route.

In respect of the above complaint the Monitoring Officer and the Deputy Monitoring Officer spoke
with the Member concerned about the tenor of an email sent to an officer which caused offence. The
Member involved declined to apologise stating that the content of the email was a statement of fact.
Having discussed the matter further with the complainant whilst they were disappointed that the
Member had declined to apologise they felt that it was not a good use of public resources to
pursue the matter further.

The Monitoring Officer has therefore decided that no further action is warranted in this matter and
considers the matter closed.

2.3 Timeliness of Decision

The Standards for England Guidance stated that the Assessment Sub-committee should complete
its initial assessment of an allegation “within an average of 20 working days” to reach a decision on
what should happen with the complaint. The Council has taken this standard and adapted it under
the new rules to aim to hold an Assessment Sub-committee within 20 working days of notifying the
parties that informal resolution is not possible.

~ Page 84 ~



2.4 Review Requests
There have been no review requests in Quarter 2. Review requests can only be made following a

decision of ‘No further Action’ by the Assessment Sub-committee where there is submission of new
evidence or information by the complainant.

2.5 Subsequent Referrals

None to report — see above.

2.6 Outcome of Investigations

There were no formal investigations concluded in this period.

2.7 Parts of the Code Breached

This section is intended to show where there are patterns forming to enable the Policy Finance and
Development Committee to determine where there needs to be further training for Councillors.
Targeting training in this way makes it more sustainable and, hopefully, more effective.

So far this year, the following areas of the code were found to have been breached:

Not applicable

~ Page 85 ~



~ 9g abed ~

(Continued Overleatf)



i i 1 2 3 4
Sk ;:;?r?:l?:: ¢ Indicator OfﬁfcoerrPT‘s?l?:l)i:sglble Actual . 2019/20 Actual . 2019/20 Actual . 2019/20 Actual . 2019/20
Information 2018/19 2018/19 2018/19 2018/19
LG1 Objections to the Council’s Head of Finance 0 0 0 0 0 0
Accounts
Follow up Action relating to
LG2 reaches of the Member/Officer HeDad of Law & 0 0 0 0 0 0
emocracy
Protocol (Members)
Disciplinary Action relating to
LG3 breaches of the Member / HR Manager 0 0 0 0 0 0
Officer Protocol (Staff)
Number of Whistle Blowing
Hes Incidents Reported 0 0 0 0 0 0
No. of Recommendations
.é LG5 made to improve Governance H%ad of Law & 2 0 1 (C/F) 0 23 20 (C/F)
. emocracy
g Procedures/Policies
d .
d LG6 No. of Recommendations 1 0 1 0 3 20
z Implemented
Complaints
No. L1 Corporate Complaints 16 27 28 36 24 75
Received
LG7 No. L1 Corporate Complaints 14 24 27 34 5 1
Resolved
No. L1 Corporate Complaints 2 3 1 2 0 0
escalated to L2 PA to Senior
Total No. Corporate Leadership Team
LG7a | Complaints Resolved without 16 25 28 35 24 25
reference to the Ombudsman
No. Corporate Complaints 0 1 0 0 0
where compensation paid
LG7b
Service Area - C(?rzgn&




- . 1 2 3 4
Ref Performance Indicator omf%irpltgfl?:l’izsglble Actual . Actual . Actual . Actual .
* | Description .
P Information 2018/19 2019/20 2018/19 2019/20 2018/19 2019/20 2018/19 2019/20
No. Ombudsman complaints 4 (+1
received 2 2 2 1 2 C/F)
LG8
Service Area - ; gg;?.lpagx - - Planning
Lgga | NO- Ombudsman complaints PA to Senior 2 2 2 1 1 5
resolved Leadership Team
No. Ombudsman complaints
LG8b | not yet determined by the 0 0 - -
Ombudsman
No. Ombudsman complaints
HeRe where compensation paid 0 0 1 0
'] Freedom of Information Act Indicators
-
jab
| Lo | Total No. of FOI Requests 193 235 216 182 200 162
received
&
!
LG9a | No. of FOI Requests Compliant 185 214 199 159 186 156
LG9b No. of Non-compliant FOI Data Protection 8 21 17 23 14 6
Requests Officer
No. of FOI Requests still open
LG9c | and within the 20 working 0 0 0 8 0 0
days
No. of FOI Requests withheld
LG9d | due to exemptions/fees 5 6 4 11 5 3
applied




. Officer Responsible Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4
Ref. ;erfofnl?nce Indicator for Providing Actual Actual Actual Actual
escription .
Information | 2018/19  2019/20 | 5918/19 2019/20 | 551g/19 2019/20 | 5418/19 | 2019/20
Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act Indicators
No. of Directed Surveillance
LG10 | Authorisations granted during 0 0 0 0 0
the quarter
LG10a No. in force at the end of the 0 0 0 0 0
quarter
LG10b No. of CHIS recruited during 0 0 0 0 0
the quarter
LG10c No. ceased to be used during 0 0 0 0 0
the quarter
LG10d No. active at the end of the 0 0 0 0 0
| quarter
1 Head of Law &
o .
q | G10e No. of br_eaches (pa}rt|cularly Democracy 0 0 0 0 0
o | unauthorised surveillance)
u, No. of applications submitted
LG10f ] to obtain communications data 0 0 0 0 0
which were rejected
No. of Notices requiring
LG10g | disclosure of communications 0 0 0 0 0
data
No. of authorisations for
LG10h | conduct to acquire 0 0 0 0 0
communications data
LG10i | No. of recordable errors 0 0 0 0 0




Performance Indicator

Officer Responsible

Q1

Q2

Q3

Q4

Ref. B for Providing Actual Actual Actual Actual
Description .
P Information 2018/19 2019/20 2018/19 2019/20 2018/19 2019/20 2018/19 2019/20
Anti-Social Behaviour Indicators
No. of Complaints Registered 6 20 16 17 18 24
No. of Disposals 2 14 18 20 10 13
Head of Community
& Wellbeing
No. of Complaints still Open 0 2 3 0 0 3
No Further Action - 4 0
| Food Safety Inspections
‘g No. of Programmed Inspections
o BPE31 | carried over from previous 12 21
Y quarter
|
No. of Programmed Inspections 34 20 52 38 44 78
Head of Law &
. Democracy
No. of Programmed Inspections 17 8 47 29 35 74
Completed
No. of Pr(_)grammed Inspections 17 12 5 21 9 4
Outstanding
The deficit in
inspections has
arisen due to the
No. of Programmed Inspections Iosg of a stgff d
includes new registrations of m.i?: egcgme;ni
which 11 were received in the w Arrz:: :ment;, ’
last month of Q1 and have have bgen made
been programmed for for the
inspection in Q2. outstanding
inspections to be
completed by the
end of November




	Agenda
	4 Minutes of the Previous Meeting
	5 Action List Arising from the Previous Meeting
	7 Review of Scale of Fees & Charges (2020/21)
	Appendix 1 - Review of Scale of Fees & Charges (2020/21)

	8 Collection and Write-Off of Miscellaneous Debtors (Q2 2019/20)
	9 Third Sector and Community Support Funding Requests (Q2 2019/20)
	10 Section 106 Open Space, Sport and Recreation Contributions (June - November 2019)
	Appendix 1 - Current Section 106 Projects (Fully Funded)
	Appendix 2 - Current Section 106 Projects (Funding Not Allocated)
	Appendix 3 - Completed Section 106 Projects (Since Last Report)

	11 Environment Strategy and Action Plan (November 2019)
	Appendix 1 - Environment Strategy and Action Plan (November 2019)

	12 Volunteering Vision, Aims and Policy (2019-2024)
	Appendix 1 - Draft Volunteering Vision, Aims and Policy (2019-2024)
	Appendix 2 - Initial EA Screening (November 2019)

	13 Standards & Ethical Indicators (Q2 2019/20)
	Appendix 1 - Standards & Ethical Indicators (Q2 2019/20)


